
May 28, 2025, 6:00 PM 

AGENDA: 
1. Call to Order, Accessibility, Roll Call – President, Becky Coletta
2. Consent Agenda: Action Item

a. April 2025 Meeting Minutes
b. Environmental Notices (MEPA)
c. FFY 2026 Old Colony MPO Unified Planning Work

Program (UPWP)
d. FFY 2026 Title III Grantees (AAA)

3. Finance-Audit Committee Meeting Report – Brenda Robinson
a. April 2025 Financials Action Item
b. Fiscal Reserves

4. April OCPC Staff Report – Mary Waldron
a. AAA Area Plan – David Klein

5. Personnel Committee Report – Steven Santeusanio Action Item
6. Legislative Committee Report – Mary Waldron

a. Retirement Legislation
7. Other Business - Reserved for matters the Chair did not

reasonably anticipate at the time of posting
8. Adjournment

The listings of matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair, which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all items 
listed may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 

This meeting is accessible to 
people with disabilities. 
Microphones or telephones will 
be used by all speakers. Large- 
print materials are available 
upon advance request. If you 
would like either of these 
accommodations, please contact 
Mary Waldron. 

The Notice of Nondiscrimination 
Rights and Protections to 
Beneficiaries regarding the 
Federal “Title VI/ 
Nondiscrimination” Protections 
and the State Nondiscrimination 
Protections is available on the 
Old Colony Planning Council 
Website. 

(508) 583-1833
OLDCOLONYPLANNING.ORG 

CALL-IN: 
Video: https://zoom.us/join 
Phone: +1 (786) 635-1003 

Meeting ID: 832 2140 2258 
Passcode:168176 

MEETING DETAILS 
IN-PERSON: 
Old Colony Planning Council 
70 School St., Brockton, MA 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 
Finance-Audit Committee Meeting: Tuesday, June 24th 5:45pm
OCPC Annual Meeting: Wednesday, June 25th 6:00pm

http://www.oldcolonyplanning.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83221402258


APRIL 30, 2025, 6:00 PM 
www.oldcolonyplanning.org

MINUTES: 
Recording Access: https://youtu.be/v3ekkfCZT20

1. Meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President Becky Coletta
2. Roll Call:

TOWN NAME ROLL CALL ROLE 

Abington 
Steven Santeusanio Present Delegate 

Alex Hagerty Present Alternate 

Avon 
Frank Staffier Delegate 

John Costa Present Alternate 

Bridgewater 
Sandy Wright Present Delegate 

Bob Rulli Present Alternate 

Brockton 
Iolando Spinola Present Delegate 

Preston Huckabee Alternate 

Duxbury Allison Shane Delegate 
Vacant Alternate 

East Bridgewater 
Peter Spagone Jr. Present Delegate 

John Haines Alternate 

Easton Jeanmarie Kent-Joyce Present Delegate 

Vacant Alternate 

Halifax 
John Bruno Delegate 

Jonathan Selig Alternate 

Hanover Rhonda Nyman Present Delegate 
not at calendar 
vote 

Steve Louko Alternate 

Hanson 
Tony De Frias Present Delegate 
Joe Campbell Alternate 

Kingston 
Val Massard Present Delegate 

Vacant Alternate 

Pembroke Becky Coletta Present Delegate 
Alysha Siciliano-Perry Present Alternate 

Plymouth Lee Hartmann Present Delegate 

https://youtu.be/v3ekkfCZT20


Vacant   Alternate  

Plympton 
Vacant   Delegate  
Vacant   Alternate  

Stoughton 
Will Roth   Delegate  

Marc Tisdelle   Alternate  

West Bridgewater 
Vacant   Delegate  

Mike Perez   Alternate  

Whitman 
Noreen O'Toole Present Delegate  
Daniel Salvucci Present Alternate  

At-Large Christine Joy Present Delegate  
 

a. OCPC Staff: Mary Waldron, Charles Kilmer, Brenda Robinson, Megan Fournier, 
Joanne Zygmunt, Paul Umano, Kyle Mowatt, Shawn Bailey, Don Sullivan, Nick 
Giaquinto, Matt Dyer, Bill McNulty 
 

3. A moment of silence was held for the passing of the beloved Avon Delegate, Frank Staffier. 
 

4. Consent Agenda: Unanimous Approval 
a. Agenda items covered March 2025 meeting minutes, environmental notices 

(MEPA), FFY 2025-2029 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment 
4, FFY 2026-2030 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), Old Colony Safe 
Streets for All (SS4A) Action Plan, Old Colony Bike Month proclamation, and Older 
Americans Month proclamation. 
 

5. Finance-Audit Committee Meeting Report Unanimous Approval 
 

At the end of March, we show a positive Financial Standing – with a 1.46% Budget surplus. 
Available surplus funds remaining at $179,066 . 
 
A.  Statement of Expenditures Report shows total expenses for the month of $320,929.33 –   
B.  Cash Position Report shows Income for the month of $441,986.56 –   
 
Disbursements for the month were $610,288.96 –   
The Total cash available at month’s end was $1,870,176.99 –  
OPEB Account had a LOSS of $33,082.82 –   Bringing the ending balance in the OPEB account 
balance to $1,248,837.33 – . 
 
C.  Budget Resources Report: Cash Receipts being $441,986.56 –   – brings the total Year to 
Date receipts to $5,423,706.56 –   
 
D.  AAA Report:   

• Outstanding Balance for AAA Pass Through Programs was $539,376.04 – 
• Outstanding Balance for AAA Admin and Ombudsman Programs was $108,130.95 – . 
• This brings the total outstanding balance for all AAA Programs to $647,506.99 –  



 
Volunteer Transportation Account:  beginning balance was - $162,273,14–  Donations received 
were a total of $301.40.  Bringing the ending balance in the fund to $162,574.54 –   
 
E. ROM Statement and Activity:  
 
Balance at the beginning of the month was $161,376.81 -  
Receipts were $5,850, bringing the total receipts to $68,650 – . 
Expenses were $7,270.76 –  bringing the total expenses to $75,043.10 –  
The ending Statement Balance was $150,793.22 – . 
The format of this report will be changed sometime over the next few months to fit better with 
the actual bank statement format instead of this older format which sort of re-invents the 
wheel. 
 
F. Budget Reports 
 
The Spent-to-date Percentage rate at the end of the month was 73.54%.  The Ideal Percentage 
in the 9th Month of the Fiscal Year would be 75%, so at month’s end we had a 1.46% surplus.  
Available surplus funds remaining were a total of $99.428 –  
 
Page One:  Expenditures at the end of the month were a total of $2,314,910 – .  Budgeted funds 
remaining at the end of the month were a total of $832,714 –   
Page Two: Projected Grant Income for this fiscal year remains at $3,147,624 –    
Page Three: Projected Pass-thru income for this fiscal year remains at $1,996,327 –  
 
G. List of combined A/P and Cash Transfers for the month  
 

Projected FY26 Expenses are currently at $3,116,269 –   Notable Increases: 

• Admin Professional Fees Increase – this is due to the bi-annual fee from the Odyssey 
Advisors, our actuary. This will be billed in FY26, and the auditor increases somewhat 
each year of the contract. 

• Fringe Benefits – regular employee employer charges increased substantially due to 
newly added employees, as well as several employees having increased their coverages 
to family plans. The retired employee employer charges increased due to Ray Guarino 
moving from regular employee to retired employee. 

• Salaries increased due to annual merit increases. The longevity payments in FY26, 
though lower than FY25, are a total of $9,579.  This increase in salaries increases all 
Payroll related charges, such as payroll taxes and payroll provider service charges.  

All other expenses have been budgeted conservatively to keep the expenses down as much as 
possible. 

The current projected FY26 Income of $2,876,834 – : is based on ongoing grants that included 
FY26 in the contract or agreement, and new grants that have been awarded but will not be 



billed until FY26.  Based on history, the income numbers should increase based on new grants 
that are in the works and will continue to be sought after.   

Summarized Finances at-a-glance report on April 15th, 2025: 

Total Cash Balances for all accounts is a total of $1,808,787 –  

All Account Balance is decreased by $542,225 –  leaving total unallotted cash available on April 
15th, of $1,266,562 – . 

Fund reductions are the amount of funds that have already been allotted for specific grants and 
programs only – such as OPEB Account, Volunteer Transportation Account, Advance Payments 
for specific Grants. 

Accounts Receivable balance on April 15th are a total of $743,252 
ROM Account balance on April 15th was - $146,432 
After March payment - Building Loan had a Principal Balance of $274,614 

6. OCPC Staff Report: 
Mary Waldron highlighted items from the monthly staff report that each department takes 
time to complete with the accomplishments and projects worked on. View the full report here:  

• Special reports were on the Regional Water Plan, Grant Tracking procedures, Bike 
Month events, and the annual IT Assessment. 

 
7. Legislative Committee Report 

• Retirement Legislation: no real updates at this point 
 

8. Review of OCPC Council Meeting Schedule Unanimous Approval 
a. Council voted to not hold Council meetings during the summer months 

of July and August. The Executive Committee will meet if a need arises. 
 
9. Meeting Adjourned 



Environmental Monitor Preview

Publish Date:05/07/2025

Environmental Notification Forms
EEA 
No.

Project 
Name

Municipality Document 
Type

Comments 
Due

For Copies MEPA Analyst

16503 South 
River 
Marina - 
Redevelo
pment 
Project

SCITUATE ENF 06/12/2025

tpozerski@merri
llinc.com

Alexander Strysky, 
(857)408-6957,
alexander.strysk
y@mass.gov

16947 Cape 
Cod 
Canal 
Pipeline 
Relocatio
n Project

BOURNE ENF 05/27/2025

katelyn.wheele
r@swca.com

Nicholas Moreno, 
(617)699-4254,
Nicholas.Moreno
@mass.gov

16948 Longwoo
d Place

BOSTON ENF 06/03/2025

ldevoe@vhb.co
m

Alexander Strysky, 
(857)408-6957,
alexander.strysk
y@mass.gov

16949 Off 
Street 
Parking - 
3 33rd 
Street, 
Newbury

NEWBURY ENF 05/27/2025

thughes@hughe
senvr.com

Amina Miliani, , 
amina.miliani@ma
ss.gov

16950 2 White 
Cap Path 
Lane

SANDWICH ENF 06/06/2025

hraddatz@bscgr
oup.com

Nicholas Perry, 
(617)921-2961,
Nicholas.Perry@m
ass.gov

Projects Submitted - Site Visits
EEA 
No.

Project Name Municipality Meeting Date Meeting 
Time

Location

16942 Reconstruction 
of Route 38 
(Main Street), 
from Route 62 
to the Woburn 
C.L.

WILMINGTON 05/08/2025 5:30 pm REMOTE MEETING. Please 
RSVP to 
amina.miliani@mass.gov at 
least one hour before the 
meeting for instructions on 
joining the video conference 
or calling in by phone.

16943 Mt. Hope 
Street Housing 
Development 

NORTH 
ATTLEBOROUGH

05/08/2025 11:00 
pm

REMOTE MEETING. Please 
RSVP to 
Eva.Vaughan@mass.gov at 



“Achin Acres” least one hour but preferably 
one day before the meeting 
for instructions on joining 
the video conference or 
calling in by phone. Evening 
remote meeting available 
upon request; deadline to 
request is May 7th.

16944 Piers Park II 
Seawall 
Structural 
Rehabilitation

BOSTON 05/19/2025 6:00 pm REMOTE MEETING. Please 
RSVP to 
alexander.strysky@mass.gov 
at least one hour before the 
meeting for instructions on 
joining the video conference 
or calling in by phone

16945 Weld Pond 
Dam Lowering 
Project

DEDHAM 05/08/2025 11:00 
am

REMOTE MEETING. Please 
RSVP to 
Nicholas.Moreno@mass.gov 
at least one hour but 
preferably one day before the 
meeting for instructions on 
joining the video conference 
or calling in by phone.

16945 Weld Pond 
Dam Lowering 
Project

DEDHAM 05/15/2025 9:30 am Endicott House, 80 Haven St, 
Dedham, MA 02026 (Please 
RSVP to 
Nicholas.Moreno@mass.gov 
to ensure sufficient parking.)

16948 Longwood 
Place

BOSTON 05/22/2025 6:00 pm REMOTE MEETING. Please 
RSVP to 
alexander.strysky@mass.gov 
at least one hour before the 
meeting for instructions on 
joining the video conference 
or calling in by phone

16949 Off Street 
Parking - 3 
33rd Street, 
Newbury

NEWBURY 05/19/2025 10:00 
am

REMOTE MEETING. Please 
RSVP to 
amina.miliani@mass.gov at 
least one hour before the 
meeting for instructions on 
joining the video conference 
or calling in by phone.

16950 2 White Cap 
Path Lane

SANDWICH 05/20/2025 11:00 
am

REMOTE MEETING. Please 
RSVP to 
Nicholas.Perry@mass.gov at 
least one hour but preferably 
one day before the meeting 
for instructions on joining 
the video conference or 
calling in by phone.



Projects Submitted - Environmental Impact Reports
EEA 
No.

Project 
Name

Municipality Document 
Type

Comments 
Due

For Copies MEPA Analyst

16827 Plainville 
Water 
Treatment 
Plant

PLAINVILLE FEIR 06/06/2025
 
 jniro@beta-
inc.com

Eva Vaughan, 
(857)408-6381, 
Eva.Vaughan@mas
s.gov

16835 Mount 
Williams 
Reservoir 
Dam and 
Notch 
Reservoir 
Dam 
Improveme
nts 
Projects

NORTH 
ADAMS

Single EIR 06/06/2025
 
 
VLocker@tigheb
ond.com

Amina Miliani, , 
amina.miliani@ma
ss.gov

16859 The 
Commons 
at Trask 
Lane

BEVERLY FEIR 06/06/2025
 
 
DHewett@Epsilo
nassociates.co
m

Nicholas Perry, 
(617)921-2961, 
Nicholas.Perry@m
ass.gov

16909 Woerd 
Avenue 
Landfill 
Revitalizati
on Project

WALTHAM Single EIR 06/06/2025
 
 
BAngus@tigheB
ond.com

Eva Vaughan, 
(857)408-6381, 
Eva.Vaughan@mas
s.gov

16917 Hidden 
Trails

WAREHAM Single EIR 06/06/2025
 
 
BWallace@jceng
.org

Nicholas Moreno, 
(617)699-4254, 
Nicholas.Moreno
@mass.gov

Projects Submitted - Notices of Project Change
EEA 
No.

Project 
Name

Municipality Document 
Type

Comments 
Due

For Copies MEPA Analyst

15135 City Pier 
Marina 
Redevelo
pment 
Project 
(fka 
FALL 
RIVER 
CITY 
PIER - 
MARINA 
DEVELO
PMENT)

FALL RIVER NPC 05/27/2025
 
 etripp@BETA-
inc.com

Nicholas Perry, 
(617)921-2961, 
Nicholas.Perry@m
ass.gov

16433 Boston BOSTON NPC 05/27/2025 Jennifer Hughes, 



Logan 
Internati
onal 
Airport 
Runway 
27 End 
Runway 
Safety 
Area 
(RSA) 
Improvem
ents 
Project

 
 
ofisher@vhb.co
m

(617)455-7063, 
Jennifer.Hughes@
mass.gov

Projects Submitted - Special Review Procedure Request
EEA 
No.

Project 
Name

Municipality Document 
Type

Comments 
Due

For Copies MEPA Analyst

Projects Under Review - Environmental Notification Forms
EEA 
No.

Project 
Name

Municipality Document 
Type

Comments 
Due

For Copies MEPA Analyst

16938 Coggesha
ll Street 
Phase 3 
Sewer 
Separatio
n Project

NEW BEDFORD EENF 05/09/2025
 
 
lofstedtmh@cd
msmith.com

Nicholas Moreno, 
(617)699-4254, 
Nicholas.Moreno
@mass.gov

16939 642-644 
Turnpike 
Street

EASTON ENF 05/06/2025
 
 
mark@ecoterrad
esign.com

Amina Miliani, , 
amina.miliani@ma
ss.gov

16940 Green 
Wave 
Car 
Wash

WEST 
BRIDGEWATER

ENF 04/29/2025
 
 
garretttunison@
gmail.com

Nicholas Perry, 
(617)921-2961, 
Nicholas.Perry@m
ass.gov

16941 108 
Tafts Ave

WINTHROP ENF 04/29/2025
 
 
marissa.seifert
7@gmail.com

Eva Vaughan, 
(857)408-6381, 
Eva.Vaughan@mas
s.gov

16942 Reconstr
uction of 
Route 38 
(Main 
Street), 
from 
Route 62 
to the 
Woburn 

WILMINGTON EENF 05/23/2025
 
 
ofartushnaya@gr
eenintl.com

Amina Miliani, , 
amina.miliani@ma
ss.gov

Kyle Mowatt
Highlight

Kyle Mowatt
Highlight



C.L.
16943 Mt. Hope 

Street 
Housing 
Developm
ent 
“Achin 
Acres”

NORTH 
ATTLEBOROUGH

EENF 05/23/2025
 
 
steven@goddardc
onsultingllc.com

Eva Vaughan, 
(857)408-6381, 
Eva.Vaughan@mas
s.gov

16944 Piers 
Park II 
Seawall 
Structural
 
Rehabilit
ation

BOSTON EENF 05/23/2025
 
 
Fiona.Vardy@Fo
th.com

Alexander Strysky, 
(857)408-6957, 
alexander.strysk
y@mass.gov

16945 Weld 
Pond 
Dam 
Lowering 
Project

DEDHAM EENF 06/06/2025
 
 
ajacobs@epsilo
nassoociates.c
om

Nicholas Moreno, 
(617)699-4254, 
Nicholas.Moreno
@mass.gov

16946 Retroacti
ve 
Permittin
g of the 
Lakeview 
Marine 
Docks

WEBSTER EENF 06/06/2025
 
 
Steven@goddardc
onsultingllc.com

Alexander Strysky, 
(857)408-6957, 
alexander.strysk
y@mass.gov

Projects Under Review - Environmental Impact Reports
EEA 
No.

Project 
Name

Municipality Document 
Type

Comments 
Due

For Copies MEPA Analyst

16643 Gardner 
Sludge 
Landfill

GARDNER DEIR 05/09/2025
 
 
megan.gatto@wo
odardcurran.co
m

Alexander Strysky, 
(857)408-6957, 
alexander.strysk
y@mass.gov

16711 Gibson 
Park 
Resiliency 
Project

REVERE FEIR 05/09/2025
 
 
jmcallister@mcal
lister-eng.com

Nicholas Moreno, 
(617)699-4254, 
Nicholas.Moreno
@mass.gov

16779 Horn Pond 
Brook and 
Fish 
Passage 
Project

WOBURN SEIR 05/09/2025
 
 
herrick.devin@w
seinc.com

Eva Vaughan, 
(857)408-6381, 
Eva.Vaughan@mas
s.gov

16782 The Oasis 
at 

MIDDLEBOROUGH DEIR 05/23/2025
 

Eva Vaughan, 
(857)408-6381, 



Middlebor
ough

 
dhewett@epsilo
nassociates.co
m

Eva.Vaughan@mas
s.gov

16785 Provinceto
wn Pier 
Hotel

PROVINCETOWN NPC/DEIR 06/06/2025
 
 
ddunk@epsilona
ssociates.com
 
 
 
tmoked@epsilon
associates.com

Nicholas Moreno, 
(617)699-4254, 
Nicholas.Moreno
@mass.gov

16928 Centralville 
and Phase 
3 Areas 
Sewer 
Separation 
Project

LOWELL FEIR 
ROLLOVER

05/23/2025
 
 
lofstedtmh@cd
msmith.com

Alexander Strysky, 
(857)408-6957, 
alexander.strysk
y@mass.gov

Projects Under Review - Notices of Project Change
EEA 
No.

Project 
Name

Municipality Document 
Type

Comments 
Due

For Copies MEPA Analyst

12615 WATERS
HED 
NITROGE
N 
MANAGE
MENT

MASHPEE NPC 04/29/2025
 
 
Julia.Khrakovs
ky@ghd.com

Nicholas Perry, 
(617)921-2961, 
Nicholas.Perry@m
ass.gov

14935 HEWITTS
 POINT 
SEAWALL
 
REVETM
ENT 
REPAIRS

MARSHFIELD NPC 05/13/2025
 
 
joshua.zall@gza
.com

Nicholas Moreno, 
(617)699-4254, 
Nicholas.Moreno
@mass.gov

16785 Province
town 
Pier 
Hotel

PROVINCETOWN NPC/DEIR 06/06/2025
 
 
ddunk@epsilona
ssociates.com
 
 
 
tmoked@epsilon
associates.com

Nicholas Moreno, 
(617)699-4254, 
Nicholas.Moreno
@mass.gov

Projects Under Review - Special Review Procedure Request
EEA 
No.

Project 
Name

Municipality Document 
Type

Comments 
Due

For Copies MEPA Analyst



Secretary's Certificates - Environmental Notification Forms
EEA 
No.

Project Name Municipality Document 
Type

Action Action Date

16936 Wannacomet Water 
Emergency PFAS 
Treatment Project

NANTUCKET ENF Cert Requires an 
Environmental 
Notification Form

04/25/2025

Secretary's Certificates - Environmental Impact Reports
EEA No. Project Name Municipality Document Type Action Action Date

Secretary's Certificates - Notices of Project Change
EEA No. Project Name Municipality Document Type Action Action Date

Secretary's Certificates - Records of Decision
EEA No. Project Name Municipality Document Type Comments Due Action Action Date

Secretary's Certificates - Special Review Procedures
EEA 
No.

Project Name Municipality Document 
Type

Action Action Date

14069 Harvard University’s 
Campus in Allston

BOSTON SRP Cert Special Review 
Procedure 
Established

04/28/2025

16930 75 Morrissey BOSTON SRP Cert Special Review 
Procedure 
Established

04/28/2025

Secretary's Certificates - Public Benefits Determinations
EEA No. Project Name Municipality Document Type Action Action Date

Secretary's Certificates - Advisory Opinions
EEA No. Project Name Municipality Action Action Date

Requests for Advisory Opinions
Project Name Municipality Comments 

Due
MEPA Analyst

Island End River Flood 
Resilience Project

EVERETT, 
CHELSEA

04/22/2025 Tori Kim, (857)207-2996, 
tori.kim@mass.gov

Public Notices
Notice Type Municipality Agency
Notice of Application for a Chapter 91 Waterways 
License- 

Scituate MassDEP

Notice of Intent to Initiate an Ecological 
Restoration Project- 

Fall River Conservation 
Commission

Notice of Application and Issuance of a Draft 
Groundwater Discharge Permit- 

Provincetown MassDEP

Notice of Application for a Water Management Act 
Permit Renewal- 

Belchertown & 
Wareham

MassDEP

Notice of Application for a Chapter 91 Waterways Salem MassDEP



License- 
Notice of Intent to Initiate an Ecological 
Restoration Project- 

Oxford Conservation 
Commission

Notice of Application and Issuance of a Draft 
Groundwater Discharge Permit- 

Acton MassDEP

Notice of Submission of a Yearly Operational Plan- Haverhill MDAR
Notice of Public Hearing re: Vegetation 
Management Plan- 

Shelburne MDAR

Notice of Intent to Initiate an Ecological 
Restoration Project- 

Manchester-by-the-
Sea

Conservation 
Commission

Notice of Decision on an Interbasin Transfer Act 
Application- 

Norwood WRC

Notice of Application for a 401 Water Quality 
Certificate- 

Wilmington MassDEP

Notice of Intent to Initiate an Ecological 
Restoration Project- 

Dartmouth Conservation 
Commission

Notice of Application for a 401 Water Quality 
Certificate- 

West Boylston MassDEP

Notice of Decision on an Interbasin Transfer Act 
Application- 

Lynnfield WRC

Notice of Federal Consistency Review- Statewide CZM
Determination to Issue an Antidegradation 
Authorization to Discharge- 

Revere MassDEP



PREPARED UNDER MASSDOT CONTRACT #126742 
OLD COLONY PLANNING COUNCIL (OCPC)                                                                                  
70 SCHOOL STREET, BROCKTON, MA 02301 

FFY 2026 
OLD COLONY MPO   
UNIFIED PLANNING 
WORK PROGRAM 
(UPWP) 
RELEASED FOR PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT ON MAY 20, 2025 

 
  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
    

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
INTRODUCTION 1 
1.1 - National Planning Factors 2 
1.2 - Title VI and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 5 
1.3 - Funding Sources 6 
1.4 - Administrative Modification and Amendment Procedures 7 
1.5 - Geographic Distribution of Major UPWP Funded Studies 8 
  
TASK 1000: MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT OF PLANNING PROCESS AND CERTIFICATION ACTIVITIES 10 
1100 - 3C Program Support 11 
1200 - Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)  13 
1300 - Public Participation Program (PPP) 14 
1400 - Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 16 
1500 - Title VI 18 
  
TASK 2000: DATA RECONNAISSANCE, ACQUISITION, AND ANALYSIS ACTIVITIES 20 
2100 - Demographic and Land Use Surveillance 21 
2200 - Multi-Modal Transportation System Data Surveillance and System Monitoring 23 
2300 - System Planning Resource Activities 25 
2400 - Geographic Information System (GIS) 27 
2500 - Management Systems (Congestion, Pavement & Safety), and Travel Demand Modeling 28 
  
TASK 3000: SHORT RANGE AND LONG-RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ACTIVITIES 35 
3100 - Regional Multimodal Transportation Planning and Studies 36 
3200 - Local Highway Transportation Technical Assistance 39 
3300 - Coordinated Human Services Transportation (CHSTP) Plan 40 
3400 - 2028 Long Range Transportation Plan Phase 1 42 
3500 - Routes 53/139 Corridor Study (Pembroke) 44 
3600 - Route 80 Corridor Study (Kingston & Plymouth) 46 
3700 - Performance Based Planning  48 
  
TASK 4000: OTHER TRANSPORTATION TECHNICAL ACTIVITIES, STAFF, ESTIMATED BUDGET 50 
4100 - Transit Technical Assistance, and Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Support 51 
4200 - BAT Planning and Technical Studies 53 
Transportation Planning Staff 54 
Estimated FFY 2026 Budget 55 
  
APPENDICES  
A. FFY 2026 Old Colony Unified Planning Work Program Endorsement Appendix A 
B. 23 CFR Part 450 Subpart C §450.336 - Self Certifications and Federal Certifications Endorsement Appendix B 
C. Estimates of Other Funding Sources, and Other Transportation Planning Activities Appendix C 
D. Glossary of Terms and Acronyms  Appendix D 
E. Public Review Period and Public Comments Appendix E 

 
  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
    
The Old Colony Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) was prepared by the following: 
 
Old Colony Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Members: 
 Monica Tibbits-Nutt, MPO Chair, Secretary and Chief Executive Officer, Massachusetts Department of 

Transportation (MassDOT) 
 Michael Lambert, MPO Vice-Chair, Administrator, Brockton Area Regional Transit Authority 
 The Honorable Robert Sullivan, Mayor, City of Brockton 
 Richard Quintal, Jr., Chair, Select Board, Plymouth 
 Tyler Bouchard, Vice-Chair, Board of Selectmen, Kingston (Representing communities with populations 

less than 15,000 persons) 
 Daniel Salvucci, Vice Chair, Board of Selectmen, Whitman (Representing communities with populations 

of more than 15,000 persons) 
 Rebecca Coletta, President, Old Colony Planning Council 
 Jonathan Gulliver, Administrator, MassDOT Highway Division 

 
MPO Ex-Officio Members (Non-Voting): 
 Noreen O’Toole, Chair, Joint Transportation Committee (JTC) 
 Daniel Salvucci, Vice-Chair, Joint Transportation Committee (JTC) 
 Joi Singh, Federal Highway Administration, Massachusetts Division 
 Peter Butler, Federal Transit Administration, Region 1 

 
Old Colony UPWP Staff Contacts: 
 Charles Kilmer, AICP 

 
DISCLAIMER 

 
The preparation of this report has been financed in part through grant[s] from the Federal Highway Administration 
and Federal Transit Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, under the State Planning and Research 
Program, Section 505 [or Metropolitan Planning Program, Section 104(f)] of Title 23, U.S. Code. 
 
The views and opinions of the Old Colony Planning Council expressed herein do not necessarily state or reflect 
those of the U. S. Department of Transportation. 
 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION RIGHTS AND PROTECTIONS TO BENEFICIARIES 
 
FEDERAL “TITLE VI/NONDISCRIMINATION” PROTECTIONS 
 
The Old Colony Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) operates its programs, services, and activities in 
compliance with federal nondiscrimination laws including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), the Civil 
Rights Restoration Act of 1987, and related statutes and regulations. Title VI prohibits discrimination in federally 
assisted programs and requires that no person in the United States of America shall, on the grounds of race, color, 
or national origin (including limited English proficiency), be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 
of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal assistance. Related 
federal nondiscrimination laws administrated by the Federal Highway Administration, the Federal Transit 
Administration, or both prohibit discrimination on the basis of age, sex, and disability. These protected categories 
are contemplated within the Old Colony MPO’s Title VI Programs consistent with federal interpretation and 
administration. Additionally, the Old Colony MPO provides meaningful access to its programs, services, and 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
    
activities to individuals with limited English proficiency, in compliance with U.S. Department of Transportation 
policy and guidance on federal Executive Order 13166.   
 
STATE NONDISCRIMINATION PROTECTIONS 
 
The Old Colony MPO also complies with the Massachusetts Public Accommodation Law, M.G.L. c 272 §§ 92a, 98, 
98a, prohibiting making any distinction, discrimination, or restriction in admission to or treatment in a place of 
public accommodation based on race, color, religious creed, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, disability, 
or ancestry. Likewise, the Old Colony MPO complies with the Governor’s Executive Order 526, section 4 requiring 
all programs, activities, and services provided, performed, licensed, chartered, funded, regulated, or contracted 
for by the state shall be conducted without unlawful discrimination based on race, color, age, gender, ethnicity, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, religion, creed, ancestry, national origin, disability, veteran's 
status (including Vietnam-era veterans), or background.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  
To request additional information regarding Title VI and related federal and state nondiscrimination obligations, 
please contact:  

Old Colony Planning Council 
Title VI/ Nondiscrimination Coordinator 
Mary Waldron 
70 School Street 
Brockton, MA 02301 
508-583-1833 
mwaldron@ocpcrpa.org 

 
Title VI Coordinator 
MassDOT, Office of Diversity and Civil Rights  
Suite 3800 
10 Park Plaza 
Boston, MA 02116 
857-368-8580 
massdot.civilrights@dot.state.ma.us 

 
COMPLAINT FILING 
 
To file a complaint alleging a violation of Title VI or related federal nondiscrimination law, contact the Title VI 
Specialist (above) within 180 days of the alleged discriminatory conduct.  
 
To file a complaint alleging a violation of the state’s Public Accommodation Law, contact the Massachusetts 
Commission Against Discrimination within 180 days of the alleged discriminatory conduct at:  

Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination (MCAD)  
1 Ashburton Place, Suite 601 
Boston, MA 02108 
Phone: 617-994-6000 
TTY: 617-994-6196 
mcad@mass.gov 

https://www.mass.gov/file-a-complaint-of-discrimination 

mailto:mwaldron@ocpcrpa.org
mailto:massdot.civilrights@dot.state.ma.us
mailto:mcad@mass.gov
https://www.mass.gov/file-a-complaint-of-discrimination


DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
    
TRANSLATION 
 

English 

If this information is needed in another language, please contact the MPO Title VI Coordinator at 508-583-1833. 

Spanish 

Si necesita esta información en otro idioma, por favor contacte al coordinador de MPO del Título VI al 508-583-

1833. 

Portuguese 

Caso estas informações sejam necessárias em outro idioma, por favor, contate o Coordenador de Título VI da 

MPO pelo telefone 508-583-1833. 

Chinese Simple 

如果需要使用其它语言了解信息，请联系Old Colony大都会规划组织（MPO）《民权法案》第六章协调

员，电话508- 583-1833。 

Chinese Traditional 

如果需要使用其他語言瞭解資訊，請聯繫Old Colony大都會規劃組織（MPO）《民權法案》第六章協調

員，電話508- 583-1833。 

Vietnamese 

Nếu quý vị cần thông tin này bằng tiếng khác, vui lòng liên hệ Điều phối viên Luật VI của MPO theo số điện 

thoại 508- 583-1833. 

Haitian Creole 

Si yon moun bezwen enfòmasyon sa a nan yon lòt lang, tanpri kontakte Koòdonatè a Title VI MPO nan 508-583-

1833. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
    

French Creole 

Si yon moun vle genyen enfòmasyon sa yo nan yon lòt lang, tanpri kontakte Kowòdinatè MPO Title VI la nan 

nimewo 508-583-1833. 

Russian 

Если Вам необходима данная информация на любом другом языке, пожалуйста, свяжитесь с 

Координатором Титула VI в MPO по тел: 508-583-1833. 

French 

Si vous avez besoin d’obtenir une copie de la présente dans une autre langue, veuillez contacter le coordinateur 

du Titre VI de MPO en composant le 508-583-1833. 

Italian 

Se ha bisogno di ricevere queste informazioni in un’altra lingua si prega di contattare il coordinatore MPO del 

Titolo VI al 508- 583-1833. 

Mon-Khmer, Cambodian 
្របសិនេបើេលាក-អ្នក្រត�វការបកែ្របពត័ម៌ាɒនេនះ សូមទាɒក់ទងអ្នកស្រមបស្រម�លជំពូកទី6 របស់ MPO តាɒមរយៈេលខទូរស័ព្ទ 508-583-1833 រួចភាɒ្ជ ប់េ�េលខ  

Arabic 

 1833-583-508 :الھاتف على العمراني التخطیط بمنظمة 6 الفقرة بمنسق الاتصال فیرجى ، أخرى بلغة المعلومات ھذه إلى بحاجة كنت إذا

Updated 2025 
Old Colony Planning Council 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 1 of 55 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
The Old Colony Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) conducts and implements a federally 
certified, continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive transportation planning process (3C) that results 
in plans, programs, and projects that encompass all transportation modes and that support the region’s 
vision and goals that are articulated in the Old Colony Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP). The Old 
Colony MPO plans for the movement of both people and goods within the region by all modes of travel, 
including highways, rail, public transportation, bicycles, and foot, and plans for the connections linking 
these modes.  
 
The transportation planning area covered by the Old Colony MPO includes the seventeen (17) 
communities of the Old Colony Region: Abington, Avon, Bridgewater, Brockton, Duxbury, East 
Bridgewater, Easton, Halifax, Hanover, Hanson, Kingston, Pembroke, Plymouth, Plympton, Stoughton, 
West Bridgewater, and Whitman, and the Brockton Area Transit Authority (BAT). 
 
The Old Colony MPO consists of eleven (11) members. The following eight (8) members are voting 
members: MassDOT; MassDOT Highway Division; Brockton Area Transit Authority (BAT); Old Colony 
Planning Council (OCPC); City of Brockton; Town of Plymouth; A Community with a population greater 
than 15,000; and a community with a population less than 15,000. The following three (3) members: Old 
Colony Joint Transportation Committee (JTC) Chairperson, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) are ex-officio, non-voting members of the Old Colony MPO. 
 
The FFY 2026 Old Colony Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) describes and provides budgetary 
information for the transportation planning tasks and activities, which are to be conducted in the region 
during the federal fiscal year. The UPWP is prepared and endorsed annually by the Old Colony MPO, prior 
to the start of the planning program. The Old Colony Planning Council has the responsibility of preparing 
the UPWP and implementing the tasks contained here within. 
 
The FFY 2026 Old Colony UPWP describes the planning to be undertaken by the Old Colony MPO. 
Transportation planning activities are described as procedures under specific tasks. For each task, the 
anticipated accomplishment or product is provided. For each task, budget, and sources of funding are 
also provided. For management convenience, similar tasks are grouped into the following tasks: 

 Task 1000 - Management and Support of Planning Process and Certification Activities 
 Task 2000 - Data Reconnaissance, Acquisition, and Analysis Activities 
 Task 3000 - Short Range and Long-Range Transportation Planning Activities 
 Task 4000 - Other Transportation Technical Activities 

 
The Old Colony UPWP is a planning and budgeting tool that is used by Brockton Area Transit, Federal 
Highway Administration, Federal Transit Administration, Massachusetts Department of Transportation 
(MassDOT), and Old Colony Planning Council, as the Scope of Services for the contracting for planning 
services, and may be amended, and/ or administratively modified during the program year with approval 
of the Old Colony MPO. All relevant tasks will be performed with input from MassDOT District 5. 
 
Continued growth in population, employment, and housing, and the associated increases in travel 
demand continue to place pressure on the transportation system in the Old Colony Region and beyond. 
The Vision 2025 Old Colony Long Range Regional Transportation Plan represents the Old Colony MPO’s 
effort to create a document and a process that will meet the challenges of preserving and expanding a 
truly intermodal transportation system. The LRTP includes goals and objectives, performance measures, 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 2 of 55 
 

analyses, and recommendations necessary to build and maintain an efficient, effective, and affordable 
regional transportation system. It is the intention of the Old Colony MPO to build on the current system, 
striving to make it comprehensive and multi-modal. The goal is to provide a balanced range of well-
connected transportation options that will optimize each travel mode: automobile, transit, rail, bicycle, 
pedestrian, boat, air, and freight. The LRTP identifies the region’s transportation project needs for the 
next twenty years. The principal way in which LRTP recommendations will be translated into action is 
through the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The TIP is a multimodal list of investments for 
which federal surface transportation funds will be used. The TIP covers a five-year period, is updated 
annually, and is based on reasonable estimates of funds available to the region. 
 
The FFY 2026 Old Colony UPWP continues to expand on several major tasks that are specifically targeted 
to implement provisions of several pieces of federal legislation, such as the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law 
(BIL), the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, and the Americans with Disabilities Act. The Old Colony 
MPO develops its programs with regional needs in mind, and in alignment with the BIL Planning Factors. 
The federal transportation act, the BIL identifies ten (10) Planning Factors 23 CFR § 450.306(b) that 
Metropolitan Planning Organizations, such as the Old Colony MPO, must consider in their Unified 
Planning Work Programs. Each planning factor may apply to a varying degree to each specific UPWP task  

 
1.1 National Planning Factors 
 
The BIL requires MPOs to implement a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive performance-based 
multimodal transportation planning process. To meet this requirement, the Old Colony MPO develops the 
LRTP, TIP, and UPWP that facilitate the safe and efficient movement of safe and efficient management, 
operation, and development of surface transportation systems that will serve the mobility needs of 
people and freight (including accessible pedestrian walkways, bicycle transportation facilities, and 
intermodal facilities that support intercity transportation, including intercity bus facilities and commuter 
van pool providers) and that fosters economic growth and development within and between States and 
urbanized areas, and take into consideration resiliency needs while minimizing transportation-related fuel 
consumption and air pollution in all areas of the region. 

The metropolitan transportation planning process shall be continuous, cooperative, and comprehensive, 
and provide for consideration and implementation of projects, strategies, and services that will address 
the following factors: 

1. Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global 
competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency; 

2. Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users; 
3. Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users; 
4. Increase accessibility and mobility of people and freight; 
5. Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve the quality of 

life, and promote consistency between transportation improvements and State and local 
planned growth and economic development patterns; 

6. Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between 
modes, for people and freight; 

7. Promote efficient system management and operation; 
8. Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system; 
9. Improve the resiliency and reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate 

stormwater impacts of surface transportation; and 
10. Enhance travel and tourism. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=50d83bc36a57f1eab16c2b698164ef41&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:23:Chapter:I:Subchapter:E:Part:450:Subpart:C:450.306


DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 3 of 55 
 

The BIL continues to emphasize performance-based planning as part of the metropolitan planning 
process: states are to develop performance goals, guided by the national goals, and then MPOs will work 
with state departments of transportation to develop MPO performance measures and targets, or adopt 
the statewide performance measures and targets. The TIP and UPWP integrate MassDOT’s and the MPOs’ 
performance measures and link transportation-investment decisions to progress toward achieving 
performance targets. The MPOs, MassDOT, and providers of public transportation jointly agree and have 
developed specific written provisions for cooperatively developing and sharing information related to 
transportation performance data, the selection of performance targets, the reporting of performance 
targets, the reporting of performance to be used in tracking progress towards attainment of critical 
outcomes for the MPO regions and the collection of data for the MassDOT Asset Management Plan.  
 
The Old Colony MPO develops the UPWP with consideration of planning activities within the metropolitan 
area and utilizes a process that provides for the design and delivery of transportation services within the 
metropolitan planning area. The following is an overview of the Old Colony MPO specific goals, 
performance measures, and targets that reflect the national planning factors and performance-based 
planning. Some of these planning factors essentially have entire tasks devoted to them, while others have 
their intent woven throughout the composition of various undertakings. Accomplishment of these 
planning objectives occurs in multiple tasks simultaneously, in several tasks independently, and in general 
techniques and approaches used in more than one task. 
 
The work tasks selected for inclusion in the FFY 2026 UPWP attempt to address each of the region’s 
identified planning priorities, in the spirit of the BIL and more recent federal and state emphasis areas. 
The following describes the four main Elements of the UPWP and identifies the previously listed Federal 
Planning Factors that are heavily supported by number in parentheses (note that each Element supports 
all factors, but some support other factors more heavily). 
 
UPWP Task 1000 - Management and Support of Planning Process and Certification Activities provides 
for the management of the transportation planning process and the development of the annual work 
program. The Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) effort allows for the development of a 
prioritized listing (driven by performance measurement) of improvement projects, programmed for 
federal-aid funding, which are brought forth through the Management Systems (National Planning Factors 
1,2,4,5,6,7) as well as the proactive public outreach process. The TIP development process considers both 
the maintenance of existing multi-modal  transportation infrastructure as well as a limited number of 
expansion projects (particularly in the healthy transportation modes), and is prepared in consultation with 
various stakeholder groups, including modal and Title VI communities (National Planning Factors 1,5,7). 
 
UPWP Task 2000 - Data Reconnaissance, Acquisition, and Analysis Activities include the collection & 
analysis of quality transportation data is integral to the MPO’s ongoing planning efforts. Element 2 
focuses, in part, on obtaining and analyzing traffic count data, vehicle crash research, and the assessment 
of sidewalk conditions. Although most of these efforts involve federal-aid roadways, study locations 
identified by the communities are also included, as well as data collection on transit, bike, and pedestrian 
modes (National Planning Factors 6, 7, 8). Additionally, this element also supports ongoing work on 
incorporating the various mode data and performance analysis using the regional transportation network 
simulation model, and other data integration techniques. 
 
UPWP Task 3000 - Short Range and Long-Range Transportation Planning Activities work tasks include 
performance analysis of integrated Management Systems (safety, congestion, and pavement) for use in 
corridor studies and bottleneck reduction efforts as well as to assist in the development, selection and 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 4 of 55 
 

prioritization of potential TIP projects (National Planning Factors 2, 3, 4, 7, 8). Transportation system 
security, including identification of vulnerable transportation infrastructure and evacuation planning, is 
addressed under Safety and Security. Also, drawing on the Management Systems, this UPWP includes 
short & medium range management & operations implementation efforts, as recommended from 
previous studies. Further, this element supports continued efforts to introduce ITS technologies to the 
region as well as expand local awareness of freight issues - both truck and rail - and their respective 
impacts on highway congestion and efforts to increase Commuter Rail service (Factors 6,7). The 
implementation of the Vision 2050 LRTP has identified new projects and initiatives, most notably tracking 
performance management data, assisting communities in developing projects for  implementation in one 
of the four program areas identified in the plan, working with potential project proponents on multi-mode 
projects, and assisting freight partners in securing grant funds. The LRTP and therefore the TIP includes a 
focus on addressing Climate Change. Where appropriate, TIP projects will include assessments of 
vulnerabilities and negative risks that climate change effects or extreme weather events pose to the 
region’s transportation infrastructure. These vulnerabilities and risks will be seriously considered when 
planning future improvements. Where appropriate, TIP projects include adaptation strategies that will 
enable the region to implement improvements appropriately. The reduction of greenhouse gas emissions 
(GHG) remains an important goal in addressing climate change. Planning for livability, sustainability and 
promotion of alternative mode, including strategies for greenhouse gas reduction and health linkages, as 
well as, identifying gaps and solutions to fill the gaps in Access to Essential Services and making linkages 
to enhance travel and tourism are also included in Element 3 (National Planning Factors 1,4,5,6,9,10). 
 
UPWP Task 4000 - Other Transportation Technical Activities also considers intermodal planning (Factor 
6), general public transportation planning, the transportation needs of transportation-disadvantaged 
populations, as well as the coordination of public transit with various human service agencies (Factor 4). 
The work outlined in this FFY 2026 UPWP will be fully undertaken by Old Colony MPO staff. 
 
In addition to the above planning factors, the UPWP embraces several state policy emphasis areas.  
 
Statewide Planning Areas 
 
MassDOT has prepared Beyond Mobility, the Massachusetts 2050 Transportation Plan. Beyond Mobility 
will help guide transportation decision-making and investments in Massachusetts in a way that advances 
MassDOT’s goals and maximizes the equity and resilience of the transportation system. The plan is 
structured by six Priority Areas: Safety, Reliability, Supporting Clean Transportation, Destination 
Connectivity, Resiliency, and Travel Experience. These Priority Areas, informed directly by over 5,000 
pieces of unique public feedback received as part of the development of the plan, serve as the backbone 
of Beyond Mobility. Over 100 action items across these priorities have been identified within the plan for 
MassDOT and the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority (MBTA) to achieve a safer and more 
equitable, reliable, and resilient network. 
 
Also on the statewide level, MassDOT has completed various multi-modal plans, such as the Statewide 
Bicycle Plan, Pedestrian Plan, Freight Plan, and Rail Plan. 
 
The Statewide Bicycle Plan was updated in 2021. The vision of this plan is to provide a safe, comfortable, 
and well-connected bicycle network that will increase access for both transportation and recreational 
purposes. The plan will also advance bicycling statewide for everyday travel to the broadest base of users 
and free of geographic inequities. The Statewide Pedestrian Plan was also completed in 2019. This plan 
defines a vision in which all people have a safe and comfortable walking option for short trips. The plan 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 5 of 55 
 

also establishes a comprehensive approach for MassDOT to lead by example to better operate and 
maintain the walking infrastructure under its authority and to make investments in new facilities. 
 
The Massachusetts Freight Plan was completed in 2023. The Freight Plan is a planning document that 
defines the short and long-term vision for the freight system in the Commonwealth. The Plan builds a 
cohesive picture of how these elements function today and offers a roadmap as to how policymakers and 
users of the freight system could make improvements to benefit our customers. 
 
MassDOT created the “Municipal Complete Streets Funding Program” in February 2016 to advance its 
commitment to increase mode shift and provide safe and accessible options for all travel modes for people 
of all ages and abilities. MassDOT is committed to the Complete Streets principles in policy and in practice 
and provides training, design guidance and funding. This UPWP emphasizes efforts that move 
communities to create Complete Streets policies, prioritize locations, and finalize design and 
implementation of priorities. Currently, 65% of the OCPC member communities have achieved Tier 3 
Status as they have applied for and received funding for implementation of Projects. Information on the 
MassDOT Complete Streets Program and may be found at: Complete Streets Public Overview.  
 
This year's UPWP efforts focus on the development of the Coordinated Human Services Transportation 
(CHSTP) Plan, the 2028 Long Range Transportation Plan Phase 1, the Routes 53/139 Corridor Study 
(Pembroke), Route 80 Corridor Study (Kingston & Plymouth),  Performance Based Planning and 
Performance Measures and Target development, continued development of the Regional Travel Demand 
Model (operation of the Congestion Management Process, operation of the Safety Management System, 
operation of the Pavement Management System, and the development of the Transportation 
Improvement Program. Attention is also focused on the regional multi-modal data surveillance program 
(including counting of bicycles and pedestrians, developing an inventory of gaps in the bicycle network, 
and developing an index of regional bikeability), maintaining regional databases, adjusting, and amending 
certification documents as needed, and implementing the management systems. Tasks within the UPWP 
are consistent with the goals of the LRTP. As an example, the LRTP supports efforts to reduce congestion, 
improve safety, and develop capital projects that represent an efficient expenditure of public dollars. Such 
efforts are addressed in this UPWP under multiple tasks that include the Management Systems of 
Congestion, Pavement, and Safety, along with the TIP. 
 
Public participation continues to be a vital element of the transportation planning process. The 
encouragement of participation and provision of meaningful access to all local citizens in metropolitan 
transportation planning is one of the most important goals of the "3C" (continuing, cooperative, and 
comprehensive) process. Community and transit representatives of the Old Colony Joint Transportation 
Committee typically meet monthly on the first Thursday to discuss transportation investments and issues 
of regional importance. The Old Colony MPO meets several times per year to discuss and coordinate 
transportation planning issues, and to review and endorse certification documents. A Public Participation 
Program (PPP) was developed to solicit input to the various tasks and programs undertaken. This process 
will continually be reviewed and refined, as necessary. 
 
1.2 TITLE VI AND THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 
 
Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act 

Federal “Title VI/ Nondiscrimination” Protections 

https://madothway.my.site.com/GrantCentral/s/complete-streets-public-overview?tabset-93f75=44891


DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 6 of 55 
 

The Old Colony MPO operates its programs, services, and activities in compliance with federal 
nondiscrimination laws including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), the Civil Rights Restoration 
Act of 1987, and related statutes and regulations. Title VI prohibits discrimination in federally assisted 
programs and requires that no person in the United States of America shall, on the grounds of race, color, 
or national origin (including limited English proficiency), be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal 
assistance. Related federal nondiscrimination laws administrated by the Federal Highway Administration, 
the Federal Transit Administration, or both prohibit discrimination based on age, sex, and disability. These 
protected categories are contemplated within the Old Colony MPO’s Title VI Programs consistent with 
federal interpretation and administration. Additionally, the Old Colony MPO provides meaningful access to 
its programs, services, and activities to individuals with limited English proficiency.   
 
State Nondiscrimination Protections 

The Old Colony MPO also complies with the Massachusetts Public Accommodation Law, M.G.L. c 272 §§ 
92a, 98, 98a, prohibiting making any distinction, discrimination, or restriction in admission to or treatment 
in a place of public accommodation based on race, color, religious creed, national origin, sex, sexual 
orientation, disability, or ancestry. Likewise, the Old Colony MPO complies with the Governor’s Executive 
Order 526, section 4 requiring all programs, activities, and services provided, performed, licensed, 
chartered, funded, regulated, or contracted for by the state shall be conducted without unlawful 
discrimination based on race, color, age, gender, ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
expression, religion, creed, ancestry, national origin, disability, veteran's status (including Vietnam-era 
veterans), or background. 
 
FTA Environmental Justice Policy Guidance For Federal Transit Administration Recipients Circular 4703.1 
(2012) provides recommendations on how to fully engage environmental justice populations in the public 
transportation decision-making process; how to determine whether environmental justice populations 
would be subjected to disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects as a 
result of a transportation plan, project, or activity; and how to avoid, minimize, or mitigate these effects. 
 
FTA Title VI Circular to 4702.1B (2012) provides guidance to grantees on how to comply with Title VI 
regulations, as well as to ensure grantees provide meaningful language access to persons who are limited 
English proficient. 
 
U.S. DOT Order 1000.12C - Title VI Program overriding objective is to ensure all DOT assisted programs 
are implemented in compliance with Title VI so that all members of the public enjoy equality of 
opportunity, regardless of race, color, or national origin (including limited English proficiency). 
 
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
 
Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act requires all transportation projects, plans, and programs to 
be accessible to people with disabilities. At the MPO level, this means that public meetings must be held 
in accessible places and MPO materials must be made available in accessible formats. 
 
1.3 FUNDING SOURCES 
 
The period covered by each contract described in this UPWP by funding source is as follows: 
 FHWA PL/ MassDOT; FTA 5303/ MassDOT: October 2025 through September 2026 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 7 of 55 
 

 BAT: July 2025 through June 2026 
 
For the contract beginning October 1, 2025, the FHWA PL ($1,048,632) and FTA 5303 funds ($251,461) 
will be combined into one appropriation to MassDOT to fund Old Colony MPO activities. FHWA and FTA 
will provide 80% of the funds ($1,040,075), while MassDOT will provide the 20% match ($260,019). 
MassDOT will annually work with the Old Colony MPO through a single contract that combines these two 
federal funding sources. 
 
1.4 ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATION AND AMENDMENT PROCEDURES 
 
Unified Planning Work Programs, no matter how well planned, may need to be modified from their 
original MPO endorsed form. There are different actions that may be taken to modify the endorsed UPWP. 
These actions vary, depending on the extent of the modification, and have different impacts on the UPWP. 
All proposed administrative adjustments and amendments are presented to the MPO for consultation 
prior to endorsement. The procedures for modifying the UPWP are: 

UPWP Amendment 

A UPWP Amendment is the most extensive change procedure that a UPWP may undergo. A UPWP 
Amendment requires the proposed change to undergo a twenty-one (21) day public review period and 
requires MPO endorsement. However, the Old Colony MPO, at their discretion, may vote to abbreviate 
the public comment period under what they consider extraordinary circumstances beyond the MPO’s 
control. Examples of actions that require an Amendment include: 
 Addition or deletion of a UPWP task or sub-task;  
 Major changes to UPWP task descriptions, activities, and other information;  
 Funding increase above the originally approved UPWP overall budget;  
 Funding transfers between tasks equal to or greater than 25% of the UPWP task budget; and  
 Funding increase or decrease equal to or greater than 25% of the UPWP task budget.  

 
UPWP Administrative Modification (Adjustment)  

A UPWP Administrative Modification (Adjustment) is a minor Amendment. The Adjustment procedure 
requires an administrative action, consultation with the MPO, and MassDOT-OTP approval through the 
utilization of a Budget Reallocation Request Form. Examples of actions that require an Adjustment 
include: 
 Minor changes to UPWP task descriptions, activities, and other information;  
 Funding transfers between UPWP tasks less than 25% of the UPWP task budget; and  
 Funding increase or decrease less than 25% of the UPWP task budget.  

 
1.5 GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF MAJOR UPWP FUNDED STUDIES 
 
The OCPC staff monitors the geographic distribution of UPWP funded studies over time. Table 1 provides 
the distribution of Major UPWP Studies over the period of 2004 through 2026. Included in the table is 
2020 Population and 2019 Median Household Income. A Major UPWP Study is defined as a study 
programmed in the UPWP under Element 3000 - Short Range and Long-Range Transportation Planning 
Activities. Major studies under this element typically involve the in-depth study and analysis of roadway 
corridors within a community or may include a roadway corridor that spans multiple communities. Major 
UPWP studies also may include studies such as region wide bicycle and pedestrian connectivity studies, 
climate change transportation studies, and priority development areas studies. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 8 of 55 
 

From an examination of the distribution of Major UPWP Studies, the following observations may be made: 
 There are higher concentrations of studies within the more populated urban areas (i.e., Brockton 

and Stoughton). Such concentrations tend to follow areas with elevated levels of congestion and 
crash clusters. 

 The towns of Bridgewater, Plymouth, and Stoughton have higher concentration of studies. A 
potential explanation for such a trend is that these populous communities feature proximity to 
limited access highways, commuter rail, and academic institutions of higher learning. Such 
features, while beneficial in many respects, also feature higher pedestrian, bicyclist and vehicle 
trips, and the need for additional multimodal and infrastructure. 

 
Table 1 

Geographic Distribution of Major UPWP Funded Studies (Task 3000) FFYs 2004-2026 

Community
2020 

Population

2020 Title VI 
Minority 

Population
Percent Title 

VI Minority

Median 
Household 

Income, 2019

Number of 
Major Studies, 

2004 - 2026

Percentage  
of Total 
Studies, 

2004 - 2026

Brockton 105,643 74,569 71% $58,469 7 7.7%

Stoughton 29,281 11,088 38% $83,519 6 6.6%

Avon 4,777 1,685 35% $85,200 5 5.5%

Bridgewater 28,633 4,997 17% $95,675 9 9.9%

Abington 17,062 2,910 17% $99,381 4 4.4%

Easton 25,058 4,025 16% $112,268 1 1.1%

Whitman 15,121 1,969 13% $86,570 3 3.3%

West Bridgewater 7,707 968 13% $97,404 3 3.3%

Plymouth 61,217 6,673 11% $90,279 6 6.6%

East Bridgewater 14,440 1,560 11% $90,528 5 5.5%

Hanson 10,639 844 8% $96,693 1 1.1%

Kingston 13,708 1,069 8% $96,104 6 6.6%

Hanover 14,833 1,140 8% $127,981 2 2.2%

Pembroke 18,361 1,285 7% $103,905 3 3.3%

Duxbury 16,090 1,081 7% $128,173 2 2.2%

Halifax 7,749 519 7% $92,774 3 3.3%
Plympton 2,930 162 6% $94,167 2 2.2%

Region wide 393,249 116,544 30% $96,417 23 25.3%

91 100.0%  
 
  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 9 of 55 
 

Table 2  
Geographic Distribution of Local Technical Assistance UPWP Funded Studies (Elements 2200 and 3200) 

FFYs 2015-2024 

Community
2020 

Population

2020 Title VI 
Minority 

Population

Percent      
Title VI 

Minority

Median 
Household 

Income, 2019

Number of 
ATR Counts          
FFYs 2015- 

2024

% of ATR 
Counts FFYs 

2015-2024

Number of 
TMCs              

FFYs 2015- 
2024

% of TMCs              
FFYs 2015-

2024

Number of 
LTA Studies           

FFYs 2015- 
2024

% of LTA 
Studies    

FFYs 2015- 
2024

Brockton 105,643 74,569 71% $58,469 199 19.5% 88 23.4% 15 10.5%
Stoughton 29,281 11,088 38% $83,519 77 7.5% 20 5.3% 12 8.4%
Avon 4,777 1,685 35% $85,200 29 2.8% 5 1.3% 6 4.2%
Bridgewater 28,633 4,997 17% $95,675 51 5.0% 18 4.8% 5 3.5%
Abington 17,062 2,910 17% $99,381 77 7.5% 19 5.1% 9 6.3%
Easton 25,058 4,025 16% $112,268 60 5.9% 9 2.4% 11 7.7%
Whitman 15,121 1,969 13% $86,570 39 3.8% 8 2.1% 9 6.3%
West Bridgewater 7,707 968 13% $97,404 43 4.2% 8 2.1% 5 3.5%
Plymouth 61,217 6,673 11% $90,279 103 10.1% 37 9.8% 20 14.0%
East Bridgewater 14,440 1,560 11% $90,528 38 3.7% 19 5.1% 5 3.5%
Hanson 10,639 844 8% $96,693 10 1.0% 3 0.8% 3 2.1%
Kingston 13,708 1,069 8% $96,104 72 7.1% 47 12.5% 10 7.0%
Hanover 14,833 1,140 8% $127,981 39 3.8% 38 10.1% 5 3.5%
Pembroke 18,361 1,285 7% $103,905 16 1.6% 14 3.7% 7 4.9%
Duxbury 16,090 1,081 7% $128,173 93 9.1% 25 6.6% 13 9.1%
Halifax 7,749 519 7% $92,774 28 2.7% 12 3.2% 4 2.8%
Plympton 2,930 162 6% $94,167 47 4.6% 6 1.6% 4 2.8%

393,249 116,544 30% Totals: 1,021            100.0% 376 100.0% 143 100.0%

Automatic Traffic Counter 
Recorder (ATR) Locations

Turning Movement Count 
(TMC) Locations

Local Technical 
Assistance (LTA) Studies

UPWP Task 3200UPWP Task 2200UPWP Task 2200

  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 10 of 55 
 

TASK 1000 - MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT OF THE PLANNING PROCESS AND CERTIFICATION 
ACTIVITIES 
 
To properly support and effectively control the transportation planning activities of the Old 
Colony Metropolitan Planning Organization, program support activities must be undertaken. 
These tasks allow for the functioning and the continued certification of the Old Colony MPO in 
accordance with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and U.S. DOT requirements.  
 
Task 1100 - 3C Program Support 
Task 1200 - Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
Task 1300 - Public Participation Program (PPP) 
Task 1400 - Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
Task 1500 - Title VI 
 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 11 of 55 
 

TASK 1100 - 3C PROGRAM SUPPORT 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To manage, support, and provide the capability to maintain a Comprehensive, Cooperative, and 
Continuing (3C) Transportation Planning and Programming Process at all levels in conformance with 
applicable Federal and State requirements and guidelines. Tasks include preparation and presentation of 
transportation plans, programs studies; Technical assistance and information related to transportation 
planning to the public, local, state and federal agencies; Review and updates to memorandums of 
understandings, and agreements; Participation in the Transportation Program Managers Group; 
Continuance of a federally certified Transportation Planning Process; Timely response to planning studies 
and initiatives by local, state, and federal agencies; and Contract administration. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 

 Administration of Massachusetts Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, 
Federal Transit Administration, Brockton Area Transit, Greater Attleboro-Taunton Transit 
Authority, and Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs contract and work products. 

 Assistance with statewide transportation planning programs. 
 Distribution of information on federal and state rules and regulations. 
 Input and support for economic and community development programs. 
 Maintenance and federal certification of a viable and ongoing 3C Transportation Planning Process. 
 Maintenance and operation of the Old Colony Metropolitan Planning Organization and Old Colony 

Joint Transportation Committee. 
 Preparation of 3C certification documents. 
 Provision of ongoing technical assistance to departments, agencies, authorities, and communities. 
 Support for public participation and private involvement in the 3C process, Federal Highway 

Administration, Federal Transit Administration, and air-quality programs. 
     
PROCEDURES: 
1. Provide administrative and technical support to the 3C regional planning process; Provide community 

liaison activities and short term planning assistance to communities on transportation planning 
matters; Review Federal and State transportation programs, guidelines, circulars and manuals, plans 
and regulations as may be required or necessary; Provide for and support public and private 
involvement in the 3C Planning Process; and Participate in informational programs on transportation, 
air quality, hazardous waste, energy conservation, accessibility, gaming, and other planning areas. 

 
2. Provide and maintain coordination for Old Colony MPO activities including the preparation and 

presentation of certification documents, transportation plans and programs developed through the 
public participation process. Develop documents necessary for the certification reviews, related 
action plans, and the self-certification process; and Maintain all Old Colony MPO documentation 
records, and files. 

 
3. Provide for participation of staff in professional development programs and conferences, and provide 

for coordination with BAT, GATRA, FHWA, FTA, MassDOT, MBTA, and other agencies as applicable. 
 
4. Provide inter-agency coordination with other transportation agencies, including FHWA, FTA, 

MassDOT, MBTA, RPAs, and RTAs on an ongoing, regular basis; and Coordinate highway-planning 
activities with local officials and MassDOT District 5. 

 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 12 of 55 
 

5. Provide financial management of the transportation planning contracts with FHWA/ MassDOT, BAT, 
GATRA, and MBTA, and staff supervision and work assignments; and Prepare applications, contracts, 
time sheets, progress reports, invoices, request forms, and perform other contract administration 
activities necessary to the conduct of the 3C Transportation Planning Process. 

 
6. Follow up on recommendations of previous transportation planning studies by attending and 

participating in public meetings or making presentation of study results. 
 

7. Coordinate planning activities within the Barnstable Urbanized Area and the Boston Urbanized Area 
with MassDOT, the common MPOs, and the providers of public transportation to ensure that there 
are effective processes for cross-jurisdictional communication to foster collaboration, policy 
implementation, technology use, and performance management. 
 

8. Review and implement 2023 Transportation Planning Certification Review recommendations. 
Implementation of recommendations will be guided by the Action Plan and reported quarterly. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Maintenance and federal certification of a viable 3C Transportation Planning Process and Old Colony MPO 
operation; Support of community development and environmental planning; Memorandums of 
Understandings reviews including 3C Memorandum of Understanding review and amendments; 
Information on BIL and the Clean Air Act (CAA) as needed; Consideration and implementation of MPO 
certification review recommendations; Inter-agency meetings, memorandum and correspondence on 
various aspects of the transportation planning program; Attendance and participation in Transportation 
Program Managers Group; and Administration of contracts and invoices. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
Management and support activities to be conducted on a continuing basis throughout the program year. 

 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$67,274 $16,819 $84,093 

 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 13 of 55 
 

TASK 1200 - UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To develop, endorse and maintain an annual UPWP which provides a description of the overall 
transportation related planning activities that are ongoing and anticipated in the region, during the 
forthcoming year and include funding sources and agency responsibility. Endorsement of this document 
shall be consistent with the procedures documented in the Public Participation Plan. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
UPWPs prepared and endorsed annually by the Old Colony MPO; Monthly Invoices; Year End Progress 
Reports. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Maintain the current UPWP and prepare related invoicing; and Review and adjust and/ or amend the 

UPWP when necessary and circulate revisions to the Old Colony MPO, Old Colony JTC, OCPC, and 
other appropriate agencies for review, adjustments, and/ or endorsement, as appropriate. 

 
2. Follow the Old Colony MPO endorsement process for amendments. Other revisions to the Unified 

Planning Work Program, such as changes in the existing level of effort or funding of a specific task or 
the addition/ deletion of a task and procedures within the current contract/ grant programs, etc., will 
be made as needed throughout the program year upon mutual agreement of the agencies involved. 
Such revisions/ adjustments will be conducted by the OCPC staff and distributed to the appropriate 
agencies, as appropriate. These revisions/ adjustments require formal Old Colony MPO consultation. 

 
3. Develop the FFY 2027 UPWP for the Old Colony region covering the upcoming federal fiscal year. The 

UPWP will be developed in conformance with the latest federal and state regulations and guidelines. 
The UPWP describes transportation, air quality and transportation related planning activities 
anticipated within the region during the upcoming year. The staff will prepare the UPWP in 
coordination with the Old Colony JTC and conduct a public review and comment period consistent 
with the Old Colony Public Participation Plan. The Old Colony MPO will endorse the final document 
by July 2026. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Maintain the current UPWP and prepare invoices; Prepare FFY 2025 UPWP Annual Report; Prepare and 
submit Adjustments and Amendments, as needed; and Prepare the FFY 2027 UPWP. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
FFY 2025 UPWP Annual Report to be developed and submitted by December 30, 2025. FFY 2027 
UPWP to be developed and endorsed by July 2026.  
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$16,000 $4,000 $20,000 

 
 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 14 of 55 
 

TASK 1300 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROGRAM 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To continue to support, implement, review, and amend the 2021 Old Colony MPO’s Public Participation 
as needed. This process is designed to ensure that key public agencies at all levels of government, private 
and nonprofit organizations and interested citizens will be kept apprised of transportation planning 
activities and opportunities to participate in the region. The encouragement of participation and provision 
of meaningful access to the metropolitan transportation planning for the public is one of the most 
important goals of the "3C" (continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive) process. The Public 
Participation Plan is reviewed and updated as deemed appropriate. 
 
To provide staff support and actively encourage public and private participation in the 3C planning process 
through engagement, social media, and the Old Colony JTC, Old Colony MPO, and OCPC. 
 
To continue monitoring the effectiveness of its public participation program. The process outlines the 
public outreach procedures that will be followed by the Old Colony MPO in developing and amending the 
Region's LRTP and TIP. 
 
To conduct outreach activities related to the development of BIL performance measures and targets. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Measures of Effectiveness (MOE) Reports; Newsletters and Articles; Social Media Postings; News Releases 
and Articles for the Media; OCPC Annual Reports; Old Colony JTC meetings; Old Colony LRTPs; Old Colony 
TIPs and Implementation; Public Engagement; Title VI Reports; and Public Participation Plans. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Provide a proactive public involvement process that provides complete information, timely public 

notice, full public access to decisions, and support continuing involvement of the public in the 
developing Plans, Transportation Improvement Programs, and other documents; and employ social 
media as a meaningful and effective communication medium. 

 
2. Provide staff support and actively encourage public and private participation in the 3C planning 

process through the Old Colony Joint Transportation Committee including: 
 Host meetings (virtual, hybrid and potentially in-person) of the JTC and MPO. 
 Collaborate with the Old Colony JTC towards expanding and developing the membership. 
 Modify and expand the Transportation Advisory Network (TAN) as appropriate. 
 Maintain and update comprehensive mailing lists of interested groups, local, state, and federal 

agencies, Old Colony JTC, minority and low-income groups, individuals, and other relevant 
stakeholders, who should be informed of regional plans, programs, and accomplishments in 
comprehensive transportation and environmental planning and development. 

 Ensure early and continuing engagement and involvement of the public in the development of 
plans and other documents. Utilize visualization techniques and publish or announce the 
availability of plans and/ or document for review and comments. 

 Review and evaluate the effectiveness of the public participation plan; identify innovative public 
involvement techniques and/ or programs that enhance public participation.  

 Implement the public involvement process with particular emphasis on the LRTP and the TIP. 
 Continue to prepare mailings, newspaper announcements, public notices, and public service 

announcements, as outlined in the Public Participation Plan. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 15 of 55 
 

 Continue to identify and engage under-served and under-represented groups in the Old Colony 
region, continue to make efforts to reach out, attempt to get them interested, and involved in the 
transportation planning process. OCPC will continue efforts to broaden public participation 
especially reaching out to the limited English proficient, minority, and low-income population 
groups. 

 
3. Prepare articles and documentation related to transportation planning including articles for the OCPC 

Annual Report, newsletters, website, social media, and other media outlets, as appropriate. 
 
4. Address Title VI as part of the public participation process and ensure that there is fairness in the 

distribution of transportation resources in the Old Colony region. This process is designed to ensure 
that public and private minority agencies, organizations, and interested residents will be kept apprised 
of transportation planning milestones in the region. The encouragement of meaningful participation 
of local minority groups, organizations, and citizens in metropolitan transportation planning is one of 
the most important goals of the "3C" process (comprehensive, cooperative, and continuing). Staff will 
continue to implement and/or update the PPP based on new virtual public involvement tools and 
software, as well as the U.S. DOT’s June 2021 Title VI Executive Order. 

 
5. Present transportation plans and programs (Long Range Transportation Plan, Transportation 

Improvement Program, Public Participation Plan, and Unified Planning Work Program, etc.) developed 
through the public participation process to the Old Colony MPO for appropriate action. 

 
6. Maintain, adjust, and/ or amend the current PPP and ensure that the interested parties and the public 

engage in developing outreach procedures and will have opportunities to voice their opinions on 
these changes once proposed. Endorsement procedures will be conducted in a manner acceptable to 
the FHWA and FTA. 

 
7. Conduct outreach activities related to the development of BIL performance measures. 

 
8. Prepare Annual Measures of Effectiveness (MOE) Report that qualitatively and quantitatively 

measures the effectiveness of the public participation process. 
 
PRODUCTS: 
Measures of Effectiveness (MOE) Annual Report; Old Colony MPO meetings; Old Colony JTC meetings and 
documents; Old Colony MPO meetings and documents; Website Notices; Legal Notices; Articles in OCPC 
Annual Report and News Releases; Participation in public meetings; Public Engagement; Newsletter 
Articles; Social Media Postings;  Outreach activities related to the development of performance measures 
and thresholds; Maintenance of a viable Public Participation Process; and Public Participation Plan 
Amendments, and refinements for the website. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout the program year. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$56,000 $14,000 $70,000 

 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 16 of 55 
 

TASK 1400 - TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To develop and maintain a multi-year, financially constrained, program of transportation improvement 
projects and operational assistance that is consistent with the Old Colony MPO’s LRTP, the State 
Implementation Plan (SIP), the Environmental Protection Agency’s Air Quality Conformity Regulations, 
and US DOT Planning Regulations. The TIP will include a program of highway and transit projects for FFY 
2026-2030. Any project which is to be implemented, using federal funding, must appear in this document 
and any project which is to be implemented in the current fiscal year must appear in the annual element. 
Projects and service implemented through the TIP will help to achieve the performance targets for Safety 
(PM1), Bridge and Pavement Condition (PM2), System Performance Measures (PM3), Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP), and Transit Asset Management State of Good Repair. 
 
The FFY 2026-2030 TIP will be maintained, and any amendments will be conducted in accordance with 
the PPP. The FFY 2027-2031 TIP will be developed and endorsed by the Old Colony MPO. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Transportation Improvement Programs have been developed and endorsed annually; Public Participation 
Process; Transportation Improvement Program Amendments and Administrative Modifications; 
Transportation Evaluation Criteria Analyses and Applications; CMAQ Analysis and CMAQ Committee 
Participation; GHG Tracking and Evaluations; Technical Assistance and formulation, implementation, and 
coordination of TIP Subcommittee; and Preparation of related products. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Develop a program of projects: In developing the FFY 2027-2031 TIP, staff will update the list of all 

transit, highway, and bridge projects that are expected to require federal and state transportation 
funds for planning and engineering, construction, or purchase during FFY 2027-2031. This work will 
include: 
     All transportation projects or programs that require FHWA or FTA approval. 
 For informational purposes, all projects are to be funded with Federal funds other than those 

from FHWA or FTA. 
 
2. Provide the following information: The MassDOT identification number; Project description; 

Transportation Evaluation Criteria Scores; Estimated total cost expressed in year of expenditure 
dollars; Amount of federal funds proposed to be obligated during each program year; Proposed source 
of Federal and Non-Federal funds; and Identification of the recipient/ sub recipient and state and local 
agencies responsible for conducting the project, and project phase. In addition, the total costs of 
projects seeking Federal funds in each program year shall not exceed reasonably anticipated Federal 
funds. 

 
3. Prepare the Draft FFY 2027-2031 TIP. The following tasks and procedures will be performed during 

the development of the Draft FFY 2027-2031 TIP: 
 Include involvement of the communities, officials, and the public through the public participation 

process. 
 Provide technical assistance to municipalities and transit providers in developing projects and 

priorities.  
 Meet with communities, MassDOT District 5, and MassDOT in developing project information, 

and utilizing Transportation Evaluation Criteria. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 17 of 55 
 

 Analyze Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Projects. 
 
4. The Transportation Improvement Program will also include sections relative to: 

 Funding categories and amounts of federal funding proposed to be obligated during each program 
year. 

 An Annual Listing of Obligated Projects, programs, and an explanation of any significant delays in 
the planned implementation of major projects. The Annual List for the preceding FFY will be 
prepared and posted to the website by December 31, 2025. 

 A description of the transportation evaluation criteria and process for prioritizing projects. 
 Air quality significance and relationship of the TIP, State Transportation Improvement Program, 

and State Implementation Plan. 
 Reporting of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emission Analyses. 
 A financial plan that compares revenue needs to revenue sources for highway and transit 

programs. 
 

5. Public Participation: There will be reasonable public engagement and opportunity for public comment 
on the Draft FFY 2026-2030 TIP in accordance with the PPP. Public meetings of the JTC and MPO will 
be held during the TIP development process and both the proposed and approved TIP will be 
published or otherwise made readily available for informational purposes via various media outlets, 
and website.  

 
6. TIP Administrative Modifications/ Amendments: Amendments to the TIP will require Old Colony MPO 

endorsement. Administrative Modifications to the TIP typically require approval of the Old Colony JTC 
and notification of the Old Colony MPO. 

 
8. Conduct public health assessments and consider public health outcomes as part of ongoing planning 

and performance measures planning. 
 

9. TIP Endorsement: The TIP will be reviewed and endorsed by the Old Colony MPO. Once endorsed, the 
TIP will include the required air quality conformity documentation necessary for U.S. DOT and EPA 
conformity determinations. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Maintenance of the FFY 2026-2030 TIP, and Amendments and Administrative Modifications, as needed; 
Preparation and endorsement of the FFY 2027-2031 TIP. 

 
SCHEDULE: 
FFY 2025 Annual Obligation of Projects posted to website by December 31, 2025. FFY 2027-2031 TIP will 
be developed and endorsed by June 2026. 

 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$56,800 $14,200 $71,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 18 of 55 
 

TASK 1500 - TITLE VI 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To ensure that there is fairness in the distribution of transportation resources in the Old Colony region. 
Ensuring that the 3C planning process is accessible to the public, including members of the Title VI, is a 
central federal, state, and regional priority. This process is designed to ensure that public and private 
minority agencies, organizations, and interested citizens will be kept apprised of and involved in the 
transportation planning milestones in the region. The encouragement of participation and provision of 
meaningful access to all local citizens in metropolitan transportation planning is one of the most important 
goals of the "3C" (continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive) process. The MPO process engages with 
these populations throughout all transportation planning related activities. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Old Colony LEP Plan; Old Colony PPP; Newsletter Articles; Social Media Postings; News Releases and 
Articles for the Media; OCPC Annual Reports; Website; Old Colony JTC meetings; 2050 LRTP Public 
Participation Process; TIP and Implementation Process; and Annual Old Colony Title VI Reports. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Ensure that there is fairness in the distribution of transportation resources and that there is 

reasonable access to the planning process, OCPC will continually conduct Title VI planning for the Old 
Colony Region. The planning includes the following: 
 Evaluate the effectiveness of the public participation plan for engaging transportation-

disadvantaged communities in the transportation decision-making process. 
 Regional maps using the U.S. Census illustrating geographic distribution of populations.  
 Regional maps using the U.S. Census identifying where highway Transportation Improvement 

Projects are located. 
 Regional maps using the U.S. Census illustrating the existing transit routes, fatal crash locations, 

pavement conditions, safe routes to school buffers, and future capital transit projects. 
 Examination of mobility issues using the U.S. Census, access to jobs and services, and levels of 

service for both transit services and automobiles. 
 Promote access to the planning process to those with limited English proficiency by developing 

and utilizing techniques and strategies such as visualizations, graphics, posters, interpreters, and 
providing information via ethnic media and community-based organizations. 

 Analyze the outcomes of processes and plans by assessing the geographic distribution of the 
benefits and burdens of the regional transportation system to protected populations. 

 
2. Provide staff support and actively encourage both public and private minority groups/ agencies/ 

community-based organizations participation in the 3C planning process through the Old Colony Joint 
Transportation Committee. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Title VI planning for the Old Colony Region; 2026 Title VI Annual Report; Maintain an outreach contact list 
of minority groups, low-income groups, and community based organizations;  Develop maps identifying 
geographic distribution of  populations, transit route maps, and maps showing existing and future location 
of Transportation Improvement Program and Transportation Plan projects; Conduct benefits, burden 
analysis, and include in TIP; Continue to expand outreach process and methods; Obtain and secure on-call 
interpreters; and Utilize MassDOT Title VI Tool. 

 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 19 of 55 
 

SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout FFY 2026. 

 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$28,000 $7,000 $35,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 20 of 55 
 

TASK 2000 - DATA RECONNAISSANCE, ACQUISITION, AND ANALYSIS ACTIVITIES 
 
A major requirement of planning is to know what is happening in the real world. Surveillance 
activities are designed to do just that by gathering data on transportation resources, their use, 
and demand for their use. This information is used to locate and define problems for further 
study and analysis, define requirements for plans and designs, develop programming priorities 
and evaluate the success of projects after implementation. 
 
Task 2100 - Demographic and Land Use Surveillance 
Task 2200 - Multi-Modal Data Surveillance and System Monitoring 
Task 2300 - System Planning Resource Activities 
Task 2400 - Geographic Information System (GIS) 
Task 2500 - Management Systems (Congestion, Pavement & Safety), and Travel Demand            
Modeling 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 21 of 55 
 

TASK 2100 - DEMOGRAPHIC AND LAND USE SURVEILLANCE 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To continue to develop, update, and maintain current demographic and land use information and related 
data to ensure that transportation planning, programming analyses, and forecasting methods are based 
on the most current information. This includes analyzing social, economic, housing, and land use data, 
including historic, current, and forecast information, and the development, update, and revision of 
socioeconomic forecasts, and updated the road inventory for use in refinement of the regional 
transportation model and the LRTP. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Population, employment, land use, building permits, build out analyses, Journey to Work data, socio-
economic projections, and GIS data analyses; Road Inventory Updates; Regional demographic data book 
preparations; U.S. Census Participant Statistical Areas Program (PSAP); and MassBuilds project updates. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1.  Review and continue to maintain, update, and develop where appropriate existing demographic files 

based on the U.S. Census information, and the 2024 Massachusetts Household Transportation Survey. 
 Attend and participate in workshops and courses (U.S. Census, CTPP, etc.) sponsored by FHWA, 

FTA, MassDOT, Baystate Roads, and other agencies or groups. 
 Develop traffic analysis zones for the travel demand model with the most recent census data. 
 Develop, update, and revise socioeconomic forecasts for use in refinement of the regional model, 

Geographic Information Systems, scenario planning, and the Long-Range Transportation Plan. 
 Provide and respond to requests for U.S. Census Data and demographic data. 
 Review and analyze the U.S. Census Data and demographic data. 
 Review, maintain and periodically update physical data and prepare data maps, including land 

use, zoning, etc.               
 Review, update, and add development projects in MassBuilds. 

 
2. Socio-Economic forecasting 

 Develop, update, and revise socioeconomic forecasts for use in refinement of the regional 
travel demand model. 

 Obtain the necessary information to revise the population and employment projections based on 
the U.S. Census, and the 2024 Massachusetts Household Transportation Survey. 

 
3. Monitor changes in local government land use plans and regulations, land use patterns, development 

projects, trip generations, on and off-site mitigation, and the various associated land use 
characteristics of the region to update the land use and zonal forecasts, and to use as inputs into the 
MassBuilds, congestion management process, and mitigation activities. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Updated Socio-Economic Data Files; Journey-to-Work Data Tables and Reports; Technical assistance 
regarding the 2020 U.S. Census, and the 2024 Massachusetts Household Transportation Survey; Updates 
to MassBuilds; Development of Priority Development Areas and Priority Preservation Areas.  
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout FFY 2026. 

 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 22 of 55 
 

FUNDING: 
FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$24,000 $6,000 $30,000 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 23 of 55 
 

TASK 2200 - MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM SURVEILLANCE AND SYSTEM MONITORING 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To develop and maintain a region-wide, multi-modal transportation system-monitoring program (includes 
OCPC Program and MassDOT Program).  
 
To respond to requests for traffic (vehicle, bicycle, pedestrian, and transit) counts from state and 
municipal officials within the region.  
 
To preserve up-to-date files of traffic - specific data characteristics of the multi-modal transportation 
system, demand, and its use.  
 
To conduct or acquire pedestrian counts, bicyclist counts, vehicle counts, and transit counts, and prepare 
measures such as levels of service. 
 
To respond to planning needs and requests for aerial photography and/or videography through the OCPC 
Drone Program. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Annual Old Colony Traffic Volume Reports; Maintenance of database of local, state, and other traffic 
counts, and MS2 upload; Turning movement counts and Travel Time Studies; Collection and analysis of 
data previously performed for other transportation studies; Speed and vehicle classification studies 
requested by member communities; Drone Missions for aerial photography and/or videography; Review 
of technical studies and reports; and MassDOT/ RPA Traffic Count Program (vehicle, bicycle, pedestrian, 
and transit). In addition, a count program of strategic road/ locations within the region has been 
developed to provide information for implementation of the regional growth factors, and model inputs, 
etc. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Undertake a transportation system counting program (vehicle, bicycle, pedestrian, and transit) in 

coordination with municipalities and MassDOT officials including: 
 Conduct bicycle and pedestrian counts, as appropriate. 
 Conduct directional traffic counts as part of the MassDOT Statewide Traffic Coverage Counts, and 

upload to MS2. 
 Conduct traffic counts using mechanical recorders and conduct manual turning movement counts 

within the region, and/or as needed for planning purposes. 
 Conduct transit passengers and vehicle counts. 
 Conduct turning movement counts and upload to MS2. 
 Conduct drone missions to acquire imagery. 
 Develop bikeability measures and/ or quality of service metrics. 
 Maintain and continue to expand on an ongoing region wide traffic count database for use in 

monitoring regional VMT growth rate. 
 Maintain interactive traffic count database. 
 Measure levels of service for all modes (vehicle, pedestrian, bicycle, and transit). 
 Prepare reports summarizing the traffic counting activities in the region (includes distribution to 

MassDOT), as appropriate. 
 Prepare inventory of gaps within the regional bicycle network. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 24 of 55 
 

 Provide maintenance, payments, and replacements of all traffic counters, and traffic counting 
related equipment, as needed. 

 Purchase equipment and supplies as needed to continue the traffic count program and drone 
program. 

 Verify and calibrate traffic counters according to MassDOT Procedures. 
 
2. Conduct or acquire additional transportation system (vehicle, bicycle, pedestrian, and transit) counts 

as needed to refine and update the traffic count database for the travel demand model. 
 
3. Undertake travel time and vehicle occupancy study in the Old Colony region as needed for the 

Regional Transportation Model, the LRTP, and/ or other planning activities. 
 
4. Review, monitor and update the following transportation systems data as needed including: 

 Average Daily Traffic and transportation growth trends and seasonal adjustments (vehicle, 
pedestrians, bicycles, and transit). 

 Commuter rail parking lots and park and ride facilities (inventory) and utilization study. 
 Traffic crash and crash rate documentation. 
 Traffic control devices. 
 U.S. Census Place of Work and Residence Data. 
 2024 Massachusetts Household Transportation Survey. 

 
5. Conduct drone missions for aerial photography and/or videography as needed and requested and 

provide the results of the missions. Purchase drone(s), equipment and supplies as needed. 
 
PRODUCTS: 
Transportation System Counting Program; Bikeability measures and/ or quality of service metrics; 
Highway Data Displays; speed and classification reports; Turning movement counts; MS2 Upload; Drone 
missions for aerial photography and/or videography as needed; Vehicle Occupancy and Travel Time 
Reports as needed and updated traffic counts on a community/ roadway basis and a data layer of regional 
counts with Geographic Information System and Commuter Rail Parking Lots and MassDOT Park and Ride 
Utilization documentation; Replacement, maintenance, and, purchase of traffic counters, equipment, and 
software; Annual Traffic Volumes Report; Traffic Count Interactive Database; Turning Movement Count 
Interactive Database; and Traffic Volume Growth/ Decline Rates. 

 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted typically from January to December (weather permitting). Year End Traffic Volume 
Report to be completed during spring 2026. 

 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$88,000 $22,000 $110,000 

 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 25 of 55 
 

TASK 2300 - SYSTEM PLANNING AND RESOURCE ACTIVITIES 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To continually improve the staff's capability for estimating and evaluating impacts of existing and 
proposed regional and multi-modal transportation facilities, stormwater management systems, and to 
provide support for the day-to-day operation of the Transportation Department’s technology including 
computer systems, devices, and software, and to expand the utility of said technologies to other areas of 
transportation planning. Additionally, to provide for staff development, training, and their related 
participation in educational development programs, seminars, conferences, and courses. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Staff development and participation in courses, seminars, and workshops; Use of Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE), TransCAD, Geographic Information System, Pavement Management, 
McTrans Highway Capacity Software, SYNCHRO, CMAQ Analysis, GHG Analysis, and other transportation 
analysis software packages; Purchase, installation, and upgrade of computer systems, software, and 
equipment, technologies, as needed; and Purchase of relevant reference materials and documents. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Staff professional development, attendance and participation in transportation courses, trainings, 

seminars, and workshops sponsored by BAT, Baystate Roads, GATRA, DEP, EOEEA, EPA, FHWA, FTA, 
MassDOT, National Transit Institute, North Atlantic Aquatic Connectivity Collaborative (NAACC)and 
others. This will assist staff in continued and ongoing development, maintenance, and application, 
sketch planning, quick response, and other forecasting methods. This will also encompass all activities 
that are directed at the production of new computer procedures that support analytical, 
administrative and documentation tasks. 

 
2. Computer hardware, software, and technology acquisition, maintenance, and updates. 

 Purchase, update/ upgrade, and maintenance of all hardware equipment/ supplies and software 
applications that are needed for the Transportation Department's computer facilities. 

 Integrate computer capabilities into all practical aspects of the transportation planning process. 
This effort entails the acquisition, testing, and refinement of additional hardware and 
transportation related software from U.S. DOT supported research and other public agencies as 
well as private companies. 

 Provide necessary support for the effective operation of the staff's computers. 
 Monitor technological development in the field of computer hardware and software for potential 

use in planning activities. Continue ongoing planning, evaluation, and implementation of 
computer software and hardware. 

 Familiarize the Transportation Staff with the computer and applications through informal and 
formal training sessions. 

 Continue to maintain and update the inventory of programs and data files. 
 Maintain and update website. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Staff professional development of enhanced technical and multi-modal planning capabilities; Attend 
courses/ workshops etc.; Maintain, and update website, computer hardware and software, and 
knowledge bases, as needed; Purchase of relevant software, reference materials, and documents; and 
Application of new forecasting techniques and transportation analysis techniques. 
 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 26 of 55 
 

SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout FFY 2026. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$60,000 $15,000 $75,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 27 of 55 
 

TASK 2400 - GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To improve, develop, and utilize the digital data and geographic tools of the GIS for various tasks within 
the UPWP. The GIS provides the ability to store, display, manage, and analyze data for different work 
tasks. This includes land use projections for the LRTP; road inventory files; travel demand modeling; traffic 
volume; high-crash locations; roadway functional classification; transit route analysis; and pavement 
management analysis. This task will also include collaboration with communities and regional 
organizations, and provision of technical assistance on geographic matters. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Development of public outreach tools; roadway classification; technical assistance for member 
communities; buildout analysis; regional intersection database; regional crash database; Regional land 
use map; Regional growth maps; Priority Development Areas (PDAs) and Priority Preservation Areas 
(PPAs); Parcel Maps; Trail Maps; Crash Cluster Maps; Stormwater Maps. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Collect and map information on the built environment, zoning, and land use.  
2. Collect, develop and maintain regional transportation data  - inclusive of all modes of travel from road 

and rail to pedestrian infrastructure - as well as the regulatory limitations, usage amounts, and events 
affecting the transportation network.  

3. Collect, map and interpret data on populations, with a focus on identifying inequalities.  
4. Enter demographic, economic, environmental, housing, stormwater, drainage, trails, and traffic data 

into the GIS as needed to provide increased abilities for organization, analysis, and retrieval. 
5. Identify and map affordable housing, Priority Development Areas (PDAs), and 43D Priority 

Development Sites.  
6. Incorporate data collected in the field (drone photos, traffic count data, etc.) into GIS.  
7. Provide GIS, Global Positioning System, and technical assistance to regional communities. 
8. Review, select, and purchase additional software and hardware as needed. 
9. Utilize GIS and GPS capabilities in maintaining traffic data, mapping pavement condition information, 

mapping existing and projected land use data for use in various transportation projects such as the 
revisions to long range transportation plans, special studies, road inventories, roadway functional 
classifications, crash location analyses, travel demand models, and transit routes; etc. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Base maps; Web applications to serve data and maps to public stakeholders; GIS layers that can be utilized 
for tasks including travel demand modeling, traffic counting program, management systems, road 
inventory; PDAs and PPAs maps; trails and paths; Crash data processing; Transit routing; Vulnerable 
population maps; Environmentally sensitive areas; Data models for advanced geoprocessing; and Traffic 
signal and intersection inventory. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout FFY 2026. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$78,400 $19,600 $98,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 28 of 55 
 

TASK 2500 - MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS (CONGESTION, PAVEMENT, SAFETY, AND FLOW), AND TRAVEL 
DEMAND MODELING 
 
OBJECTIVE:  
Congestion Management Process (CMP) 
To continue to implement a congestion management process. Considered an ongoing effort, staff will 
continue to collect and maintain data needed in the estimation of refined performance measures while 
identifying both existing and future needs of the region’s transportation system (vehicle, pedestrian, 
bicyclist, and transit). Subsequently, ranked regional listing of congested highways, transit facilities, 
pedestrian and bicycle networks, and park and ride parking facilities that have been established will 
continue to be refined. As part of this System, regional congestion will be addressed at locations 
identified in the 2050 Old Colony LRTP. 
 
Pavement Management System (PMS) 
To continue to implement a pavement management system on a continual basis in keeping with 
objective driven, performance-based planning. Staff will implement a planned update of its Pavement 
Management System to reflect changes in ease of data collection, data condition input, and cloud-based 
technology for collecting, storing, and reporting on pavement surface conditions and recommendations. 
Staff will utilize the updated PMS for informing the LRTP regarding the pavement needs of federal-aid 
roads, including existing conditions, potential future conditions, and potential costs. Staff will continue 
to collect and analyze road surface data on federal aid eligible roadways and update the PMS database 
on an ongoing basis. Staff will also continue to assist and provide technical assistance to local 
communities interested in developing a local Pavement Management Program. Staff will continue 
research in updating and/ or replacing the existing pavement management system software. 
 
Safety Management System (SMS) 
To continue to implement a safety management system. This consists of a systematic process that has the 
goal of reducing the number of and severity of traffic crashes on roads, reducing transit crashes, and 
reducing crashes and injuries involving vulnerable road users (reducing pedestrians, bicyclists, and those 
who use personal conveyances). Staff will incorporate the Safe System Approach encompassing required 
roadway safety interventions that work toward achieving the goal of zero fatalities. The Safe System 
Approach incorporates the following principles: Death and Serious Injuries are Unacceptable, Humans 
Make Mistakes, Humans Are Vulnerable, Responsibility is Shared, Safety is Proactive, and Redundancy is 
Crucial. 
 
Recommended actions include providing information for selecting and implementing effective safety 
strategies and projects. The safety management system incorporates roadway, human, and vehicle safety 
elements. Considered an ongoing effort, staff will collect and maintain data needed in the estimation of 
refined performance measures and the completion of road safety audits. Staff will identify both existing 
and future needs of the region’s multi-modal transportation system regarding safety. This includes 
identifying high hazard locations by evaluating intersections using Equivalent to Property Damage Only 
(EPDO) and crash rate methodologies; monitoring crashes and injuries on roadway corridors, participation 
and implementation of the Strategic Highway Safety Plan and the Highway Safety Improvement Program, 
and evaluation of potential improvements. 
 
Functionally Limited and Obstructed Waterways (FLOW) Management System 
To continue promote the retention of connections between critical infrastructure to preserve the services that it 
provides (including enhanced water quality, flood storage, air quality mitigation, fish and wildlife passage), directly 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 29 of 55 
 

supplementing ongoing work on road safety, stormwater, and air quality related issues. This includes working with 
our federal, state, regional, and local partners to promote nature-based solutions to help preserve and enhance 
community and regional resiliency. 
 
Travel Demand Modeling 
To continue to develop Travel Demand Model by using latest version of TransCAD and other supplemental 
tools and software, and provide assistance in the development of the Statewide Model; Continue 
refinement, calibration, development, maintenance, and application of the Old Colony Regional Travel 
Demand Model used in the development of the Long Range Transportation Plan; and Continue refining 
and calibrating the transportation demand model to meet the forecasting requirements of federal 
transportation and air quality laws and regulations. 
 
The regional transportation model is an effective and comprehensive way to forecast transportation 
needs for the build out, upcoming 20 years in the Old Colony region. The transportation model enables 
forecasting of traffic impacts caused by population and economic growth, identifies congestion growth 
areas on highways, impacts on travel patterns, and estimate Vehicle Miles Traveled. The model is a 
valuable transportation tool in analyzing the transportation network and evaluating alternative solution 
to transportation problems. Incorporate MassDOT Socio-economic data projection efforts. 
  
Development of OCPC Travel Demand Model came mainly through in-house effort and collaboration with 
other regional modeling agencies. The model will also be used to assist in identifying future problem areas 
and in the development of strategies for the ongoing CMP. Staff will utilize the model in testing the transit 
alternatives as part of the refinement of the LRTP and transit studies as appropriate. Staff will continue to 
work with MassDOT in developing the statewide travel demand model as needed. Model calibration 
process will follow FHWA modeling and simulation guidance and other various resources of best practice. 
Staff continue to expand modeling application and functionalities to assist regional transportation studies. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Congestion Management Process 
Monitoring and analysis of the parking, transit, and roadway facilities. Link V/C Ratios as part of the 
regional traffic-counting program; Participation on the Congestion Management Technical Team, 
development of strategies, and corridor studies; Data collection, consisting of numerous travel time runs 
on roads identified as having existing congestion; and Analyzation of Brockton Area Transit’s route 
ridership data. Staff also identified and analyzed the park and ride lots and commuter rail lots and 
identified problematic bottleneck areas to be studied. 
 
Pavement Management System 
Maintenance of a PMS on the federal aid eligible roadways miles in the region (approximately 642 miles);  
Report On Roadway Condition; Road Inventory Update; Technical assistance to communities interested 
in Pavement Management Program; Pavement Management Subcommittee; PCI development for 
incorporation in transportation evaluation criteria, and formation coordination and implementation of 
Pavement Management Subcommittee, and related products; and Revisions to the PMS database to 
reflect changes in road classifications, and cost of materials for developing budgets. 
 
Safety Management System 
Participation in development of Highway Safety Improvement Program; Safety analyses as part of 
Transportation Evaluation Criteria application; Crash Rate processing; Annual inventory of EPDO values 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 30 of 55 
 

for intersections on the federal aid eligible roadway network; Road Safety Audits (RSAs); Safe Street for 
All (SS4A) Action Plan; and Studies for communities warranting specific attention to safety. 
 
Travel Demand Modeling 
The Regional Transportation Model was used as an analytical tool during the development of the LRTP. 
Staff utilized a regional traffic simulation model that encompasses every community in the region. The 
model was used to identify and verify congested corridors/ areas in the region for the CMP, Corridor 
Studies, and Major Bottleneck Identification Studies. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
Congestion Management Process 
1. Continue to work with the CMP to identify and coordinate various work tasks and to ensure 

consistency with requirements of Transportation Management Areas. Staff will continue to attend 
meetings and training as appropriate since they serve as a forum for the dissemination of data 
produced by the system and allow personnel from other RPAs to meet and share information on data 
collection, data sources, etc. 

2. Continue to refine the established CMP network by utilizing the region-wide traffic simulation model 
to identify any additional facilities on which congestion exists or is predicted; and develop and monitor 
a system of performance measures and thresholds. 

3. Continue to identify areas of congestion, and measure identified congested areas on CMP corridors/ 
roadways/ transit/ pedestrian/ bicycle through a data collection and analysis effort, which includes, 
but is not limited to the following: 
 Conduct travel time, delay runs in each identified corridor, utilize INRIX, RITUS and Replica 

platforms, and collect traffic counts and turning movement count data, as appropriate. 
 Monitor, survey, and analyze usage at commuter parking lots, and park and ride lots. Develop and 

monitor mobility and accessibility enhancement measures for the commuter parking lots within 
the region. 

 Extend and recalibrate the regional model for peak periods and travel time delay. Incorporate 
turning movement counts and phase specific signal timing information into the model. 

 Continue ongoing collection and analysis of fixed-route transit data. Also included in this process 
will be to conduct origin/ destination surveys of current transit ridership, walk to transit, and the 
development and utilization of condition measures and load factors. 

 Continue to identify, evaluate, and select strategies that address congestion, and provide 
administrative and technical support during the implementation of congestion management 
strategies. 

 Provide inputs to statewide and regional plans and transportation evaluation criteria for 
Transportation Improvement Programs. 

 Develop knowledge and skills regarding the integration of goods movement. Meetings with 
stakeholders representing the freight community, to understand inefficiencies. 

4. Continue to develop and refine congestion control strategies. Develop both general and corridor 
specific recommendations for relieving congestion on selected corridors.  

5. Continue to evaluate performance measures that provide relevant and up-to-date information on the 
congestion status of transportation facilities. 

6. Continue to identify bicycle and pedestrian connectivity gaps. 
7. Continue ongoing assessment of the effectiveness of implemented strategies on alleviating 

congestion. 
8. Continue ongoing monitoring and analyses that identify the underlying causes of congestion. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 31 of 55 
 

9. Provide analyses that consider non-traditional congestion management strategies (Transportation 
Demand Management, growth management, congestion pricing, traffic operational improvements, 
public transportation, and Intelligent Transportation System) to reduce transportation system 
congestion. 

10. Provide study of regional congestion at priority locations. 
 
Pavement Management System 
1. Continue to use the pavement management software to maintain and update the Old Colony 

Pavement Management Program as needed. Pavement management data collection and analyses will 
be used to develop estimated costs associated with regional pavement conditions and needs. This 
information is to support the inclusion of pavement projects in the TIP and will aid in the development 
of realistic estimates of costs to the Region, particularly while developing the LRTP. Staff will update 
the PMS database to reflect the expansion of the federal aid eligible mileage due to the reclassification 
of roads and inclusion of new member communities. Pavement management tasks include: 
 Conducting windshield surveys to determine severity and extent of pavement distresses. 
 Developing conditions analysis and recommended repairs and costs, and reports to 

municipalities. 
 Developing a system of performance measures and thresholds. 
 Continuing to implement update of PMS Software. 

2. Provide technical assistance to member communities interested in the Pavement Management 
Program. 

3. Meet with MassDOT, RPAs, and committees to coordinate regional and statewide efforts and to 
compare programs and strategies for improvement of data collection, analysis, and assistance to local 
communities. 

 
Safety Management System 
1. Develop and work with SMS to identify and coordinate various work tasks and prepare and participate 

in Road Safety Audits. Staff will continue to attend meetings (such as SHSP and TRCC, etc.), and 
training as appropriate since they serve as a forum for the dissemination of data produced by the 
system, and allow personnel from other RPAs to meet and share information on data collection, data 
sources, etc. 

2. Review local and state crash data for intersections and corridors. Calculation of crash rates (crashes 
per million entering vehicles and crashes per hundred million miles) and comparison to both State 
and District Averages will be conducted. For corridors, the crashes per lane mile and fatality per lane 
mile will be used. Produce a list of locations, including both intersections and corridors, with elevated 
EPDO, based on MassDOT criteria to develop a list of hazardous locations from a regional perspective. 
Maintain an inventory of EPDO values for intersections on the federal-aid eligible roadway network. 

3. Conduct RSAs and develop both site specific and general recommendations to address safety 
deficiencies. This will include recommendations regarding geometric, speed reductions, traffic 
calming techniques, vegetation clearing, signage consolidation, pavement markings, pedestrian 
ramps and crossings, roundabouts, and signalizations, as appropriate. 

4. Incorporate safety criteria in the transportation evaluation process used in the development of the 
TIP. Project specific recommendations will be discussed with local, regional, and state officials as 
appropriate, to address safety issues and concerns. 
 Provide administrative and technical support during the implementation of safety management 

strategies. 
 Provide safety inputs to statewide and regional plans and TIPs. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 32 of 55 
 

5. Continue to develop and refine safety strategies and develop both general and corridor specific 
recommendations for addressing safety on selected corridors, as well as incorporating the Safe 
System Approach encompassing required roadway safety interventions that work toward achieving 
the goal of zero fatalities. Continue implementation and maintenance of the Safe Streets for All (SS4A) 
Action Plan. 

6. Develop a system of performance measures and thresholds, and document results of implemented 
safety measures. Such measures may include percent reduction in crash rate, percent reduction in 
the number of injury crashes, and percent reduction in crashes involving fatalities. Improve methods 
for compiling and retrieving crash data through utilization of GIS and through the improvement of 
information sharing with local, State, and Federal partners. 

7. Continue development and identification of countermeasures and strategies in order to assist with 
the implementation and maintenance of the Safe Streets for All (SS4A) Action Plan. 

8. Continue to measure identified safety at high hazard locations through a data collection effort, which 
includes, but is not limited to the following: 
 Conducting turning movement counts, vehicle volume studies, vehicle speed studies, vehicle 

classification studies and pedestrian studies. 
 Continuing to identify, evaluate, and select strategies that address safety. 
 Updating status of performance measures at locations where safety improvements have been 

implemented. 
 
Functionally Limited and Obstructed Waterways (FLOW) Management System 
1. Inventory and assess stream crossing, continuity, and fish and wildlife passage at culverts, bridges, 

and tide gates with partnership opportunities including MassDOT, MA Division of Marine Fisheries 
(DMF), MA Coastal Zone Management (CZM), the Narragansett Bay Estuary Program (NBEP), local 
Highway, DPW, and Conservation staff, and numerous non-profit organizations  

2. Inventory and assess dams, flood hazards, and waterway obstructions in proximity to roads and 
bridges 

3. Explore ecological restoration opportunities that also improve transportation safety and efficiency, 
with partnership opportunities including MassDOT, the MA Division of Ecological Restoration (DER), 
NOAA, US Fish & Wildlife, the Taunton River Stewardship Council (TRSC) and others  

4. Evaluate the role that structurally deficient and functionally obsolete infrastructure (culverts, dams, 
swales) plays in areas with flood, wash out, habitat fragmentation or other problems. 

5. Review Master Plans, Open Space Plans, Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness (MVP) Plans, 
Hazard Mitigation Plans, flood maps, and related land use and natural resource planning 
documents, to adequately plan for and address the needs of vulnerable areas and 
populations related to transportation safety and public and environmental health. 

Travel Demand Modeling 
1. The products developed from the model, i.e., the base and future year scenarios used for network 

analysis of air quality and travel demand will be reviewed, evaluated, and utilized as part of any 
changes/ updates to the LRTP and TIP. 

2. Continue to refine and update the Old Colony travel demand model to include the block group 
demographic data from U.S. Census. This information will be used to calibrate them. 

3. Continue to collect/ compile, update traffic count data, and adjust as necessary to refine the accuracy 
of the model. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 33 of 55 
 

4. Develop external zones from external stations on the edge areas of the region to improve the 
calibration of the existing conditions as appropriate. 

5. Utilize the refined and calibrated model for analyzing alternatives in the development and refinement 
of the Long-Range Transportation Plan and other transportation or corridor. 

6. Analyze forecast information to identify deficiencies as required for the LRTP and Air Quality 
Conformity. Evaluate improvement strategies. Incorporate findings in the LRTP as appropriate. 

7. Assist MassDOT in the preparation of statewide modeling efforts as needed. Integrate the U.S. Census 
Block Group data and MassDOT Road Inventories Files into TransCAD model for use with the statewide 
travel demand model. 

8. Collect data on existing services provided by the MBTA, BAT, and GATRA. This data collection will 
include route and service information provided by the respective transit providers as appropriate. 

9. Collect data on needs for transit services across region. Data will be collected using a variety of 
techniques such as ridership surveys origin/ destination, license plate surveys, and mode split analysis 
as appropriate. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Congestion Management Process 
Annual Management System Reporting will be undertaken; Data collection, intersection data survey, 
roadway refinement, proposal strategies, progress report preparation, and congestion management team 
support; In-depth study of regional congestion at priority locations; Consistency with CMP requirement 
of Transportation Management Areas; Transportation Evaluation Criteria inputs; Locations for expansion 
of existing Park and Ride Lots; Locations for additional Park and Ride Lots; Establishment of Performances 
Measures and thresholds; and Measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, VMT, and congestion. 
 
Pavement Management System 
Annual Management System Reporting will be undertaken; Continue data collection, analysis, and cost 
estimates for federal aid eligible roadways in the region and use of said data in evaluation of projects to 
be programmed in the TIP; Database refinement and information for incorporation into GIS; Operations 
and maintenance cost to maintain the federal aid roadway network; Technical assistance to local 
communities; and Establishment of Performances Measures and Thresholds, and Transportation 
Evaluation Criteria inputs. 
 
Safety Management System 
Annual Management System Reporting will be undertaken; Road Safety Audits; Development of specific-
safety recommendations for intersections, corridors, and pedestrian crossings; Inclusion of safety 
analyses as a component of the Transportation Evaluation Criteria in the development of the TIP; 
Implementation and maintenance of the Safe Streets for All (SS4A) Action Plan; Establishment of 
Performances Measures and Thresholds; and Identification of safety specific projects for the Old Colony 
Region. 
 
Functionally Limited and Obstructed Waterways (FLOW) Management System 
Annual Management System Reporting will be undertaken; Inventory and assess stream crossing, 
continuity, and fish and wildlife passage at culverts, bridges, and tide gates; Inventory and assess dams, 
flood hazards, and waterway obstructions in proximity to roads and bridges; Explore ecological restoration 
opportunities that also improve transportation safety and efficiency; 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 34 of 55 
 

Evaluate the role that structurally deficient and functionally obsolete infrastructure (culverts, dams, 
swales) plays in areas with flood, wash out, habitat fragmentation or other problems; Review Master 
Plans, Open Space Plans, Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness (MVP) Plans, Hazard Mitigation Plans, 
flood maps, and related land use and natural resource planning documents, to adequately plan for and 
address the needs of vulnerable areas and populations related to transportation safety and public and 
environmental health. 

Travel Demand Modeling 
A completed refined/ recalibrated transportation model for the Old Colony region that can be expanded 
upon as needed, utilized for travel demand estimation, and forecasting; and Updated network models for 
the Old Colony region, and refinement of the Traffic Analysis Zones. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
Management Systems and processes, and travel demand modeling to be conducted throughout FFY 2026. 
Road Safety Audits, and analyses to be completed by end of September 2026. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$108,000 $27,000 $135,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 35 of 55 
 

TASK 3000 - SHORT- AND LONG-RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ACTIVITIES 
 
Task 3000 charts the direction for major transportation development activities in the region. As 
such, it is concerned with continuously updating projects dealing with the demand for 
transportation; development of a transportation plan which encompasses a Long-Range Element 
and a Short-Range Element, both incorporating the concept of Transportation Systems 
Management; a further detailing of the broad findings and recommendations of the Plan in plan 
refinement; and special purpose plans addressing such items as air quality, energy, and seniors 
and individuals with disabilities. 
 
Task 3100 - Regional Multimodal Transportation Planning and Studies 
Task 3200 - Local Highway Transportation Technical Assistance 
Task 3300 - Coordinated Human Services Transportation (CHSTP) Plan  
Task 3400 - 2028 Long Range Transportation Plan Phase 1 
Task 3500 - Routes 53/139 Corridor Study (Pembroke) 
Task 3600 - Route 80 Corridor Study (Kingston & Plymouth) 
Task 3700 - Performance Based Planning and Management  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 36 of 55 
 

TASK 3100 - REGIONAL MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND STUDIES 
 
OBJECTIVE:  
To provide planning services for highway, bicycle, pedestrian, transit, and movement of goods in the 
region designed to address immediate traffic and safety problems identified in the LRTP. The LRTP 
identifies deficiencies in the region's transportation network. The deficiencies shown in the plan include 
deficient bridges, hazardous intersections, congested highway corridors, extreme weather events, and 
overcrowded transit facilities. Where projects have not been developed to correct these deficiencies, 
studies and intermodal planning are necessary to be undertaken to evaluate each problem in more 
extensive detail and to recommend the appropriate solution. 
 
To provide a comprehensive inventory of roadway facilities, stormwater management systems, and 
culverts that interact with the regional hydrologic network, including the condition, type, location, 
function, surrounding conditions, and environmental attributes of these facilities, as appropriate.  
 
To update an assessment of vulnerabilities and risks, such as extreme weather events, which may impact 
the transportation system. 
 
To conduct traffic studies and intermodal planning to assist member communities and agencies in 
developing the appropriate solutions for any identified local transportation deficiencies. Staff anticipate 
undertaking traffic studies at selected intersections and along selected roadway corridors identified in the 
Old Colony LRTP or as part of the CMP, as warranting further study.  
 
To review Statewide Modal Plans connections and coordinate and connect planning efforts with such 
plans where appropriate (Statewide Plans). 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
2011 Major Bottleneck Study (Plymouth Route 3 at Exit 6, East Bridgewater Central Square, and West 
Bridgewater Route 106); 2012 Major Bottleneck Study (Bridgewater Route 104 and Stoughton Route 138); 
2013 Major Bottleneck Study (Stoughton Central Street and Avon Harrison Boulevard); 2014 Southwest 
Brockton Corridor Study; 2014 Regional Freight and Goods Movement Study; Route 53 Corridor Study; 
Route 28 Corridor Study; Route 27 Corridor Study; Route 18 Corridor Study; Route 58 Corridor Study; 
Route 106 Corridor Study; Route 123 Corridor Study; 2020 Route 139 Corridor Study; 2020 Main Street 
Brockton Corridor Study; Stoughton Square By-Pass Study; Stoughton Square Origin - Destination Study; 
Bridgewater Center Circulation Study; Bourne Road Corridor Study; 2013 participation in development 
Regional Intelligent Transportation System Architecture for the Metro Boston Area and Southeastern 
Massachusetts Area; Complete Streets Technical Assistance; Safe Route to School (SRTS) Technical 
Assistance; South Coast Rail Technical Assistance; Climate Change Transportation Impact Study; Climate 
Change Roadway Drainage and Runoff Program; and Avon and Halifax Stormwater Management System 
Mapping and Database. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1.   The following is an illustrative list of potential projects that could be undertaken as part of this 

task: 
 Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning, Levels of Service, Technical Assistance, and Education 
 Brockton Area Transit Planning and Technical Assistance 
 City/ town center circulation studies 

https://www.mass.gov/statewide-plans


DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 37 of 55 
 

 Extreme weather events adaptation strategies to enable the region to implement 
improvements 

 Collection and mapping of data on bus stops, routes, and ridership 
 Complete Streets Technical Assistance 
 Corridor travel time analysis 
 Crash and Safety Studies 
 Culvert assessments 
 Follow-up studies to the Congestion, Land Use, Pavement, and Safety Management 

Systems 
 Freight Planning and Related Analyses 
 Geographic analyses and attribute analyses of drainage facilities that includes capacity 

and adequacy structures regarding extreme weather events and climate change 
 Identification and demarcation of roadway drainage and stormwater management 

systems 
 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Reduction analysis and technical assistance 
 Identification of transportation connectivity gaps in accessing essential services 
 Intermodal Connector Analysis 
 Intersection and corridor modeling and simulation analysis 
 Inventory of critical infrastructure vulnerable to extreme weather events and climate 

change 
 Inventory of gaps within the regional bicycle and pedestrian network 
 Meetings with stakeholders representing the freight community, to understand 

inefficiencies 
 Origin and destination analysis 
 Public Health Assessments 
 Regional Casino/ Gaming Impact Review 
 Roundabout analysis 
 Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Technical Assistance 
 Site impact analysis 
 Stormwater system analysis 
 Traffic Calming alternatives analysis 
 Trail analysis and network development 
 Transit Prioritization planning analysis 
 Travel time contour analysis 
 Trip Generation Study 
 Various corridor-wide traffic studies and Sub-area Traffic Studies 

 
2.  Efforts will include undertaking transportation studies at locations and developing specific reports as 

products for intermodal connectors as requested by local communities, FHWA, FTA, and/ or 
MassDOT. Staff will collaborate with community officials, MassDOT, and MassDOT District 5, and 
stakeholders to develop a scope of service for the proposed study. 

 
3.  Potential corridor studies have been identified in the UPWP Universe of Projects; however, with the 

completion of the High Priority Corridor Study Screening Assessment in 2022, the screening of 
potential corridors for study has been expanded. The High Priority Corridor Study Screening 
Assessment identified and ranked major corridors in the region for potential study.  The evaluation 
process included use of a matrix of evaluation criteria. Potential corridor studies were evaluated using 
number of categories, (Safety Conditions, Congested Conditions, Multimodal Significance, Regional 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 38 of 55 
 

Significance, and Implementation Potential). For each corridor study, staff will prepare a draft report, 
which outlines the Study's findings and recommendations. The report will then be circulated for 
review and comment. Comments will be incorporated into the final report. The findings and 
recommendations contained in the final report will serve as the basis for including projects in the 
region's TIP and LRTP. 
 

5. Conduct public health assessments and consider public health outcomes as part of ongoing planning 
and performance measures planning; and Assist communities in advancing bicycle and pedestrian 
projects into the MassDOT Highway Division project development process. 

 
6. Promote bicycle, pedestrian, and trail initiatives in the region; Develop bikeability measures and/ or 

quality of service metrics; and Coordinate activities within the MassDOT’s bicycle and pedestrian 
planning efforts. 
 

PRODUCTS:   
Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning and Technical Assistance; Inventory of gaps within the regional bicycle 
network; Brockton Area Transit Planning and Technical Assistance; Complete Streets Support and 
Technical Assistance; Culvert Assessments; Stormwater System Assessments; South Coast Rail Technical 
Assistance; Studies to identify solutions to traffic congestion and safety deficiencies on roadways within 
the region; Livability Measures; Performance Measures; Walk to Transit Analysis; Safe Routes to School 
Technical Assistance; Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning, Levels of Service and Education; Participation in 
updates to Regional Intelligent Transportation System Architectures; Climate Change Roadway Drainage 
and Runoff Report with recommendations for consideration for future implementation; Inventory of 
critical infrastructure vulnerable to extreme weather events and climate change; Stormwater 
management system mapping; Bikeability measures and/ or quality of service metrics; and Climate 
Change Adaptation. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout FFY 2026. 

 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
 $83,200   $20,800 $104,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 39 of 55 
 

TASK 3200 - LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To provide a rapid and effective response mechanism to address special, short-term transportation issues 
and/or projects as they arise. This will include the development, upon request from communities, regional 
authorities, state agencies, and federal agencies, of detailed technical data, analyses, and reports that will 
assist in improving the region's transportation infrastructure. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Hancock Street at Chestnut Street Road Safety Audit, Abington; Heavy Commercial Vehicle Exclusion 
(HCVE) for West Spring Street, Avon; Traffic Safety Study of West Main Street at South Street and School 
Street, Avon; Bedford Street (Route 18) at Grove Street Traffic Study, Bridgewater; Lawrence Street at 
Grove Street Road Safety Audit (RSA) Brockton; Effectiveness of 25 MPH Speed Limits (Adoption of 
Chapter 90 Section 17C) on Multiple Roadways, Duxbury; East Street Traffic Study, East Bridgewater; 
Washington Street (Route 138) and Elm Street Intersection Study in Easton; Technical Analysis of 
Implementation of Left Turn Lanes on Plymouth Street (Route 106), Halifax; Analysis of Crosswalks on 
Route 106, Halifax; Woodland Drive Neighborhood Traffic Study, Hanover; Mill Street at Hanover Mall 
Drive/ YMCA Drive Study, Hanover; Safety Analysis of Route 58 Curvature and Alignment, Hanson; East 
Washington Street Speed Study, Hanson; Identification of Thickly Settled and Business District Areas, 
Kingston; Congress Street and Taylor Street Transportation Study (Pembroke); Clark Road/ Beaver Damn 
Road Traffic Study, Plymouth; Carver Road at Montgomery Drive Traffic Study, Plymouth; Long Pond Road 
Speed Study in Plymouth; Speed Safety Zones and HCVE Zones Analysis, Plympton; Turnpike Street Speed 
Limits Study, Stoughton; Island Street Traffic Study and Road Safety Audit;  Park Street (Route 27) at 
Turnpike Street Traffic Study, Stoughton; Traffic Study for Walnut Street, Howard Street, and Prospect 
Street, West Bridgewater; Traffic Study of Pleasant Street, South Avenue, and Franklin Street, Whitman.  
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Provide technical planning analysis assistance to communities and MassDOT on highway, pedestrian, 

and bicycle transportation planning related matters in the form of meetings, data, analyses, and 
reports. The staff shall perform work on specific short-range highway planning tasks including but not 
limited to: Intersection and capacity analysis; Road Safety Audits; SYNCHRO analysis; Walk to transit 
analysis; Crash analysis; Air quality analysis, both commuter and municipal parking analysis; Carpool/ 
vanpool analysis; Trip generation estimation analysis; Sight distance analysis; Traffic impact analysis 
of proposed developments; Traffic analysis studies; and Other short-range studies to determine the 
need for traffic signals, traffic signs, traffic markings and the use of one-way streets. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Local Technical Assistance Reports will be prepared. Included in these reports/ documents will be data, 
analyses, and improvement recommendations (location improvements, speed zoning, heavy vehicle 
exclusions, etc.) for implementation, and inclusion in MassDOT Project Information Forms, as appropriate. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout the program year. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$76,000 $19,000 $95,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 40 of 55 
 

TASK 3300 - COORDINATED HUMAN SERVICES TRANSPORTATION (CHSTP) PLAN 
 
To prepare the 2026 Coordinated Public Transit - Human Service Transportation Plan (CHSTP) that will 
identify the transportation needs of individuals with disabilities, older adults, and people with low 
incomes, and provide strategies for meeting these needs, and prioritize transportation services for 
funding and implementation. 
 
To maintain an understanding of the region's transit system in order to provide an accurate basis for future 
forecasting, planning and program analysis, and project evaluation. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
BAT - Aging in Place Studies; Comprehensive Regional Transit Plan; Fare Elasticity and Equity Study; Fixed 
Route Ridership Analyses; Service Change Equity Analysis; Title VI Studies; Air quality analysis for CMAQ 
and Transportation Demand Management proposals; Rockland Transit Feasibility Study; System Time 
Study; Route 2A Analysis; Abington Transportation Study; Paratransit Expansion; Regional Coordinating 
Committee participation; and Human Services Coordination Plan. 
 
GATRA - Ridership analysis; Human Services Coordination Plan. 
 
Other – Assistance to Communities, COAs and other public and private agencies with the Section 5310, 
5317, and MAP programs; Transit Directories; RTA Fare Comparison; Queset Commons Transit Study, 
Rockland Transit Study; Community Transit Grant solicitations, reviews, rankings, and related 
coordination. 
 
2019 Coordinated Public Transit - Human Service Transportation Plan (CHSTP) Senior and Individuals with 
Disabilities Neighborhood Sourcebook; Technical assistance to public and private non-profit organizations 
in preparing Federal Transit Administration applications for Section 5310, and Mobility Assistance; 
Participation in Regional Coordinating Councils; Regional map of the OCPC area showing the locations 
with high density of senior population (60+); Compilation of US Census data of senior population; BAT 
Route Ridership Analysis; BAT Title VI Study; Brockton Area Transit Fare Elasticity Study; Air quality analysis 
for CMAQ proposals; Brockton -Taunton Fixed Route Options Study; Abington Transportation Study. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Develop and approve that CHSTP through a process that includes participation by seniors, individuals 

with disabilities, representatives of public, private, and nonprofit transportation and human services 
providers and other members of the public utilizing transportation services 

 
2. Acquire and review paratransit data from BAT and GATRA. 
 
3. Identify needs and gaps in human transportation services for seniors and individuals with disabilities. 

Additionally, assess medical and aging in place transportation needs. 
 
4. Coordinate plan development with Area Agency on Aging, BAT, GATRA, SSCAC, Regional Coordinating 

Councils, and Councils on Aging. 
 

5. Review past Community Transit Grant Program projects to assist with determining regional needs. 
 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 41 of 55 
 

6. Provide technical assistance to public and private non-profit agencies in the development, 
maintenance, and expansion of senior and/ or individuals with disabilities services in the region. 

 
7. Consider applicability of public health assessments and consider public health outcomes as part of 

ongoing planning and performance measures planning. 
 
8. Develop Draft CHSTP and provide opportunity for public review and comment. Following public 

review and comment period, prepare Final CHSTP. 
 

PRODUCTS:   
Coordinated Public Transit - Human Service Coordination Plan; and Technical assistance to BAT, GATRA, 
MBTA, SSCAC, and to area communities and public providers of transportation entities, as needed. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout the year and completed by the end of September 2026. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$40,000 $10,000 $50,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 42 of 55 
 

TASK 3400 - 2028 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN PHASE 1 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To amend the 2024  Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) as needed and develop the 2028 Long Range 
Transportation Plan (LRTP) Phase 1. The LRTP identifies transportation issues/concerns and problems that 
will require improvements now or are expected to need additional attention in the future, and outline 
possible courses of action designed to facilitate these improvements. The LRTP will be submitted to the 
Old Colony JTC, local officials, MassDOT, FHWA, FTA, and the public for review and comments, and the 
Old Colony MPO for endorsement. The LRTP will be consistent with regional growth policies, public 
investment decisions, the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), the amended Clean Air Act (CAA), Americans 
with Disabilities Act, and state air quality regulations. The LRTP will include emphasis on the areas of safety 
and traffic congestion management.  
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
2024 Long Range Transportation Plan, surveys, public participation and consultation, and preparation of 
analyses and draft chapters. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Develop the 2028 Long Range Transportation Plan Phase that will be consistent with State 

Transportation Plans.  
 Review and Refine Regional Goals, Policies and Objectives. 
 Review and update Regional Profile and Socio-Economic Data. 
 Review and refine the population, household, and employment forecasts. 
 Develop land use component of the plan and include recommendations. 
 Refine plan based on improved modeling efforts and Journey-to-Work data and other new data 

inputs. 
 Develop regional highway and regional transit sections. This shall include identifying existing and 

future needs. Evaluate current and future demand, identify deficiencies, and evaluate alternative 
improvement strategies and recommendations for all facilities. 

 Assess regional congestion and identify priority locations for in-depth study in the FFY 2020 
Unified Planning Work Program. 

 Develop bicycle and pedestrian section. 
 Develop freight and goods mobility section. 
 Develop performance measures and thresholds section. 
 Develop short and long-range transportation improvement and incorporate transportation 

evaluation criteria. 
 Review State Transportation Plans and include goals, policies, and procedures as appropriate. 
 Develop recommendations of the plan in relation to the recommended strategies in the State 

Implementation Plan and State Transportation Plan. 
 Develop financial section and provide cost estimates for short and long-range recommendations. 

 
2. Include recommendations from other transportation studies conducted during the previous years; 

including but not limited to corridor studies; transit studies; OCPC’s Regional Transportation and Land 
Use Policy Plan; Kingston, Plymouth and Plympton Transportation Induced Growth Impact Study; and 
Brockton Central Area Traffic Study.   

 
3. Develop and refine the financial section of the plan. Each project and/ or program appearing in the 

transportation plan will have an identified source of funding that can reasonably be assumed available 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 43 of 55 
 

for implementation. Staff will develop cost estimates for projects appearing in the long-range element 
of the plan. Additionally, the financial section will define projects that are designed to preserve the 
existing transportation infrastructure. Staff will also examine in detail the following activities required 
to produce the Long Range Transportation Plan: 
 Assessment of current financial condition. 
 Projections of future financial requirements for operation and maintenance. 
 Assessment of ability to meet future financial requirements, based on analysis of existing revenue 

sources. 
 Identification of potential revenue sources to meet possible future shortfalls, including innovative 

financing methodologies. 
 Analyses of existing and future revenue sources, to include long-term availability and sensitivity 

to external factors. 
 Forecasts of baseline transportation system costs for use in making service and investment 

decisions. 
 
4. Combine revised working papers into a comprehensive Long Range Transportation Plan Phase 1; 

Conduct public outreach and meetings in accordance to the Public Participation Plan; and Distribute 
plan to federal and state agencies for review and comment. 
 

5. Public Participation that will be undertaken during Phase 2 in FFY 2027: Conduct initial outreach and 
public meetings, workshops, surveys; Prepare for Public Participation that is expansive and inclusive 
in accordance with the Public Participation Plan that will be undertaken during Phase 2 in FFY 2027; 
Coordinate with the Old Colony Joint Transportation Committee and Old Colony Planning Council, 
which will assist in obtaining input from citizens, business community, special interest groups, and 
local officials on the transportation issues facing the region.   

 
PRODUCTS:  
2028 Long Range Transportation Plan Phase 1. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout the year and completed by the end of September 2026. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$72,000 $18,000 $90,000 

 
 
  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 44 of 55 
 

TASK 3500 - ROUTES 53/139 CORRIDOR STUDY (PEMBROKE) 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To study the Route 53/139 Corridor (Route 53/ 139 at the Hanover Town Line to Route 139 at the 
Marshfield Town Line), approximately 2.5 miles, in the town of Pembroke.  
 
To develop short-term and long-term recommendations and strategies that focus on transportation 
access, improved circulation, improved mobility, reduced congestion, reduced collisions, improvements 
in air quality, traffic flow efficiency, and improved safety for all transportation modes, including bicycle, 
pedestrian, and transit accommodation.  
 
The corridor study area includes Route 53/139 from the Hanover Town Line to Route 139 at the Marshfield 
Town Line. Staff will review volume to capacity ratios, levels-of-service, crash analyses, bus routes and 
transit access, and include public participation as part of the process. The Route 53/139  Corridor Study 
will align with industry standards based on Federal and State guidelines and practices, with the 
consideration of local ordinance and statutes. The study will determine system needs and identify 
operational deficiencies and will coordinate improvements that support regional objectives, adjacent land 
use, and future land use development. The study will consolidate and formalize driveway access, improve 
intersection design, improve air quality, and reduce emissions. Suggested further evaluation, such as 
intersection Road Safety Audits, Site Impact Analysis, housing demand and supply analysis, before and 
after analysis, Origin and Destination survey etc. will be discussed. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Congestion Management Process; 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan; Route 139 Corridor Study (2010); 
Pembroke RSA for Route 139 Corridor between Water Street and Marshfield Townline; High Priority 
Corridor Screening Assessment; Local Technical Assistance; Road Safety Audits; Access Management Plan; 
Regional Traffic Count Program 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Documentation of Existing Conditions: Gather and compile existing transportation data along Route 

53/139  within the study area. Data, such as, average daily traffic, peak period volumes and levels-of-
service, truck, and heavy vehicle volumes, MassDOT truck exclusions, MassDOT speed permits, traffic 
signal timing and phasing designs/plans, crashes rates, trip generators, land uses, housing, culverts, 
stormwater management systems, bus routes (transit and passenger rail), will be compiled. The data 
and analyses compiled for the existing conditions will be assessed to document the deficiencies along 
the corridor and vicinity area, and to identify their causes and their impact on traffic flow and 
accessibility. This section will validate or disprove current perceived problems within the study area. 
The study will consider public health outcomes as part of ongoing planning and performance 
measures planning. Consider the anticipated housing needs such as transit-oriented development and 
affordable housing and provide suggestions for recommendations if applicable. The process shall 
utilize the CMP, SMS, the 2050 LRTP, Regional Travel Demand Models, Travel Time Studies, and 
Corridor Studies. All relevant and attainable data will be collected and reported during this phase of 
the project. RITIS, Replica, Google Traffic, GeoDOT, IMPACT and other resources will be utilized to 
verify and support analyses. Photos of key locations will be recorded by camera or Small Unmanned 
Aircraft (Drone) will be deployed as appropriate. Information on Land use, business, and landmark 
locations will be gathered and compiled. Comprehensive existing condition map layers including but 
not limited to network, land use, business, physical environments etc., by using GIS software will be 
compiled and developed. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 45 of 55 
 

2. Short-Term and Long-Term Improvements Development: Conduct traffic modeling and simulation 
analysis with proposed alternatives for mitigation or congestion alleviation developed specific to 
problems identified in the critical areas. Provide consideration for potential bicycle and pedestrian 
improvements to ready the project recommendations for compliance with the Healthy Transportation 
Policy Directive and alignment with municipal future land use and transportation plans. Alternatives 
will include recommendations that are cost effective as well as recommendations that will produce 
the closest to ideal conditions. Consideration will be given to Transportation Systems Management 
Operations (TSMO) and maintenance, the incidental and routine causes of congestion, Complete 
Streets, and access management. The promotion of efficient system management and operations is 
one of the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) planning factors seeking to integrate this concept in the 
planning process. Consider project improvement air quality impact and environmental impact. 

 
3. Prepare Conclusions and Recommendations: The product of this Task is a report that provides a 

framework for the alleviation of traffic congestion and the improvement of safety throughout the 
corridor, and to provide the necessary information for stakeholders to move projects forward in the 
project funding and implementation phases. OCPC will prepare a final report, which will include an 
outline for implementation and identifies potential funding sources. Short-term and long-term 
recommendations will be discussed with MassDOT and including projects in the region’s TIPs, LRTPs, 
and beyond. 

 
4. Public Participation: Staff will be presenting at public meetings and workshops, developing surveys, 

and coordinating with the town of Pembroke, Greater Attleboro-Taunton Regional Transit Authority 
(GATRA), Old Colony Joint Transportation Committee, Old Colony Planning Council, MassDOT, and 
adjacent RPAs as applicable. Staff will obtain stakeholder input from citizens, community-based 
organizations, business community, special interest groups, state, and local officials, etc. on the 
transportation issues facing the region. Expansive and inclusive public outreach will be in accordance 
with Old Colony’s Public Participation Plan. 

 
PRODUCT: 
Preparation of the Route 53/139  Corridor Study, which will include conclusions and recommendations. 
Included in study will be data, congestion and safety analysis, traffic flow and safety improvement 
recommendations (intersection geometric improvement, signal upgrade, bicycle and pedestrian 
accommodation, transit planning improvement, access management plan, location improvements, speed 
zoning, heavy vehicle exclusions, etc.) for implementation, and inclusion in MassDOT Project Initiation 
Form Data for MaPIT, as appropriate.  
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout the year and completed by the end of September 2026. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$76,000 $19,000 $95,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 46 of 55 
 

TASK 3600 - ROUTE 80 CORRIDOR STUDY (KINGSTON & PLYMOUTH) 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To study the Route 80 Corridor (Route 3A in Kingston to Carver Road in Plymouth), approximately 6.5 
miles, in the towns of Kingston and Plymouth.  
 
To develop short-term and long-term recommendations and strategies that focus on transportation 
access, improved circulation, improved mobility, reduced congestion, reduced collisions, improvements 
in air quality, traffic flow efficiency, and improved safety for all transportation modes, including bicycle, 
pedestrian, and transit accommodation.  
 
The corridor study area includes Route 80 from Route 3A in Kingston to Carver Road in Plymouth. Staff 
will review volume to capacity ratios, levels-of-service, crash analyses, bus routes and transit access, and 
include public participation as part of the process. The Route 80 Corridor Study will align with industry 
standards based on Federal and State guidelines and practices, with the consideration of local ordinance 
and statutes. The study will determine system needs and identify operational deficiencies and will 
coordinate improvements that support regional objectives, adjacent land use, and future land use 
development. The study will consolidate and formalize driveway access, improve intersection design, 
improve air quality, and reduce emissions. Suggested further evaluation, such as intersection Road Safety 
Audits, Site Impact Analysis, housing demand and supply analysis, before and after analysis, Origin and 
Destination survey etc. will be discussed. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
Congestion Management Process; 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan; High Priority Corridor Screening 
Assessment; Local Technical Assistance; Road Safety Audits; Access Management Plan; Regional Traffic 
Count Program 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Documentation of Existing Conditions: Gather and compile existing transportation data along Route 

80 within the study area. Data, such as, average daily traffic, peak period volumes and levels-of-
service, truck, and heavy vehicle volumes, MassDOT truck exclusions, MassDOT speed permits, traffic 
signal timing and phasing designs/plans, crashes rates, trip generators, land uses, housing, culverts, 
stormwater management systems, bus routes (transit and passenger rail), will be compiled. The data 
and analyses compiled for the existing conditions will be assessed to document the deficiencies along 
the corridor and vicinity area, and to identify their causes and their impact on traffic flow and 
accessibility. This section will validate or disprove current perceived problems within the study area. 
The study will consider public health outcomes as part of ongoing planning and performance 
measures planning. Consider the anticipated housing needs such as transit-oriented development and 
affordable housing and provide suggestions for recommendations if applicable. The process shall 
utilize the CMP, SMS, the 2050 LRTP, Regional Travel Demand Models, Travel Time Studies, and 
Corridor Studies. All relevant and attainable data will be collected and reported during this phase of 
the project. RITIS, Replica, Google Traffic, GeoDOT, IMPACT and other resources will be utilized to 
verify and support analyses. Photos of key locations will be recorded by camera or Small Unmanned 
Aircraft (Drone) will be deployed as appropriate. Information on Land use, business, and landmark 
locations will be gathered and compiled. Comprehensive existing condition map layers including but 
not limited to network, land use, business, physical environments etc., by using GIS software will be 
compiled and developed. 

 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 47 of 55 
 

2. Short-Term and Long-Term Improvements Development: Conduct traffic modeling and simulation 
analysis with proposed alternatives for mitigation or congestion alleviation developed specific to 
problems identified in the critical areas. Provide consideration for potential bicycle and pedestrian 
improvements to ready the project recommendations for compliance with the Healthy Transportation 
Policy Directive and alignment with municipal future land use and transportation plans. Alternatives 
will include recommendations that are cost effective as well as recommendations that will produce 
the closest to ideal conditions. Consideration will be given to Transportation Systems Management 
Operations (TSMO) and maintenance, the incidental and routine causes of congestion, Complete 
Streets, and access management. The promotion of efficient system management and operations is 
one of the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) planning factors seeking to integrate this concept in the 
planning process. Consider project improvement air quality impact and environmental impact. 

 
3. Prepare Conclusions and Recommendations: The product of this Task is a report that provides a 

framework for the alleviation of traffic congestion and the improvement of safety throughout the 
corridor, and to provide the necessary information for stakeholders to move projects forward in the 
project funding and implementation phases. OCPC will prepare a final report, which will include an 
outline for implementation and identifies potential funding sources. Short-term and long-term 
recommendations will be discussed with MassDOT and including projects in the region’s TIPs, LRTPs, 
and beyond. 

 
4. Public Participation: Staff will be presenting at public meetings and workshops, developing surveys, 

and coordinating with the towns of Kingston and Plymouth, Greater Attleboro-Taunton Regional 
Transit Authority (GATRA), Old Colony Joint Transportation Committee, Old Colony Planning Council, 
MassDOT, and adjacent RPAs as applicable. Staff will obtain stakeholder input from citizens, 
community-based organizations, business community, special interest groups, state, and local 
officials, etc. on the transportation issues facing the region. Expansive and inclusive public outreach 
will be in accordance with Old Colony’s Public Participation Plan. 

 
PRODUCT: 
Preparation of the Route 80 Corridor Study, which will include conclusions and recommendations. 
Included in study will be data, congestion and safety analysis, traffic flow and safety improvement 
recommendations (intersection geometric improvement, signal upgrade, bicycle and pedestrian 
accommodation, transit planning improvement, access management plan, location improvements, speed 
zoning, heavy vehicle exclusions, etc.) for implementation, and inclusion in MassDOT Project Initiation 
Form Data for MaPIT, as appropriate.  
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout the year and completed by the end of September 2026. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$74,400 $18,600 $93,000 

 
 
 
  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 48 of 55 
 

TASK 3700 - PERFORMANCE BASED PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT 
 
The cornerstone of the Federal transportation program transformation is the implementation of a 
performance-based outcome program. States and regions invest in projects to achieve targets that 
collectively will make progress towards national goals. Therefore, the objective is to develop performance 
measures and targets for the Old Colony Region for utilization in the planning process and inclusion in the 
Long-Range Transportation Plan. Projects and service implemented through the TIP will help to achieve 
the performance targets for Safety (PM1), Bridge and Pavement Condition (PM2), System Performance 
Measures (PM3), Green House Gas (GHG) Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP), and Transit 
Asset Management State of Good Repair. 
 
Performance based planning and management increases the accountability and transparency of the 
Federal-aid highway program and provides for a framework to support improved investment decision 
making through a focus on performance outcomes for key national transportation goals. The BIL supports 
and continues an overall performance management approach, within which states invest resources in 
projects that collectively will make progress toward national goals.  
 
The national planning factors include: 
 Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global 

competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency; 
 Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users; 
 Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users; 
 Increase accessibility and mobility of people and freight; 
 Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve the quality of life, 

and promote consistency between transportation improvements and State and local planned 
growth and economic development patterns; 

 Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between 
modes, for people and freight; 

 Promote efficient system management and operation; 
 Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system; 
 Improve the reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate stormwater impacts 

of surface transportation; and 
 Enhance travel and tourism. 

 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
MPO coordination, review and adoption of Statewide Performance Measures and Targets (PM1, PM2, and 
PM3, and Performance Measures and Targets for Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan Transit Asset 
Management (BAT); Long Range Transportation Plan; Regional Policy Plan; Congestion Management 
Process; Land Use Management System; Safety Management System; Pavement Management Systems; 
Road Safety Audits; and Reviews, comments, and site visits relating to Environmental Notification Forms 
and MEPA Environmental Impact Reports/ Environmental Impact Statements. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Establish and refine performance measures and thresholds for pavement conditions and performance 

of the federal aid network, bridge conditions, injuries, and fatalities, traffic congestion. The federal 
rulemaking process will establish performance measures for each of these items. As such, this does 
not preclude the region from establishing additional measures for use locally, and the Old Colony MPO 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=50d83bc36a57f1eab16c2b698164ef41&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:23:Chapter:I:Subchapter:E:Part:450:Subpart:C:450.306


DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 49 of 55 
 

will continue to review the supplement the performance measures developed and included in the 
2020 Long Range Transportation Plan, and review and include in 2024 Long Range Transportation 
Plan. Using information collected annually through other tasks outlined in this document, implement, 
and maintain a comprehensive strategy to evaluate the effectiveness of transportation improvements 
throughout the region. 

 
2. Determine and set performance measures and thresholds in support of the performance measures 

framework and describe how program and project selection will help achieve the targets. With 
acceptable thresholds or targets for performance measures, staff will continue to maintain relevant 
data for safety, pavement, and congestion management (e.g., RITIS Platform with INRIX Data, and 
transit automated passenger counter (APC) and Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL)) and provide 
comparison analyses before and after the implementation of projects. 

 
3. Review and comment on traffic studies submitted to member municipalities by developers under the 

Massachusetts Environmental Protection Agency (MEPA) process or as needed/requested for local 
permits. Review projects for consistency with the regional transportation goals and objectives, 
program consistency, etc. 

 
4. Consider utilizing INVEST TOOL - Projects will also be potentially evaluated on their sustainability 

through the FHWA web-based tool known as Infrastructure Voluntary Evaluation Sustainability Tool. 
Although voluntary, this information will be useful to determine the long-term effectiveness of 
improvement projects. 

 
PRODUCTS: 
Development and refinement of Performance Measures and Targets for the Old Colony Region; Review 
and comment on traffic studies submitted to member municipalities by developers under the 
Massachusetts Environmental Protection Agency; and Public Health Assessments. Performance 
measurement progress will be documented in the 2027-2031 Old Colony TIP, contained within relevant 
3C planning documents. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout the year and completed by the end of September 2026. 
 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
 $20,000   $5,000  $25,000 

 
  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 50 of 55 
 

TASK 4000 - OTHER TRANSPORTATION TECHNICAL ACTIVITIES, PLANNING STAFF, FUNDING 
SOURCES, BUDGETS, AND TASKS 
 
While conducting transportation and transportation related planning activities, it is often the 
case that certain activities are called for which do not fit into the existing work program elements. 
When this is the case, those activities are programmed under the element heading of Other 
Transportation Technical Activities, Planning Staff, Funding Sources, Budgets, and Tasks. 
 
Task 4100 - Transit Technical Assistance, and Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Support 
Task 4200 - BAT Planning and Technical Studies 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 51 of 55 
 

TASK 4100 - TRANSIT TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, AND SENIOR AND INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES 
SUPPORT AND ASSISTANCE 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To respond to short-range transit planning needs upon request from communities, BAT, GATRA, 
MassDOT, and MBTA. To maintain an understanding of the region's transit system to provide an accurate 
basis for future forecasting, planning and program analysis, and project evaluation.  
 
To maintain and update the Coordinated Public Transit - Human Service Transportation Plan as needed. 
 
To ensure the accessibility to public transit services for seniors and individuals with disabilities; Attend 
meetings of the senior and disability committees; Provide technical assistance to BAT, GATRA, region's 
municipalities, human service agencies, Councils on Aging, private non-profit agencies, and other parties 
involved in meeting special transportation needs. 
 
To provide Community Transit Grant support, technical assistance, and related coordination.  
 
To maintain and operate a Congestion Management Process. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
BAT - Aging in Place Studies; Comprehensive Regional Transit Plan (CRTP); Fare Elasticity and Equity Study; 
Fixed Route Ridership Analyses; Service Change Equity Analysis; Title VI Studies; Air quality analysis for 
CMAQ and Transportation Demand Management proposals; Rockland Transit Feasibility Study; System 
Time Study; Route 2A Analysis; Abington Transportation Study; Paratransit Expansion; Brockton -Taunton 
Fixed Route Options Study; Regional Coordinating Committee participation; and Human Services 
Coordination Plans. 
 
GATRA - Ridership analysis; Human Services Coordination Plan. 
 
Other - Assisted Communities, COAs and other public and private agencies with the Section 5310, 5317, 
and MAP; Transit Directories; RTA Fare Comparison; Queset Commons Transit Study; Rockland Transit 
Study; Senior and Individuals with Disabilities Neighborhood Sourcebook; Technical assistance to public 
and private non-profit organizations in preparing Federal Transit Administration applications for Section 
5310, and Mobility Assistance; Regional map showing the locations with high density of senior population 
(60+); Compilation of U.S Census data of senior population; Air quality analysis for CMAQ proposals; 
Abington Transportation Study; Human Services Coordination Plan; and Community Transit Grant 
support, technical assistance, and related coordination. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Provide technical planning assistance to transit providers and member communities on transit 

matters. This assistance may take the form of assistance in meeting federal reporting requirements 
and in assessing and evaluating routes; Title VI update; Fare change and service change equity 
analyses; Schedule and fare changes; Assessment of human and capital needs; Provide and improve 
BAT’s analytical and forecasting capabilities; Assist BAT with the Americans with Disabilities Act Plan 
update; Title VI Trend Analysis; and Service Area Demographic Trend Profiles. 

 
2. Provide technical planning assistance to area communities outside the transit authority service areas, 

on transit matters. This assistance can take the form of helping the communities in: Assessing 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 52 of 55 
 

potential membership in a transit authority; Assisting the communities in providing for private carrier 
service; Identifying and assessing park-and-ride lots; Assessing commuter rail lots; Encouraging 
private enterprise participation; and Census and journey-to-work technical assistance, etc. 

 
3. Prepare information as needed for FTA reports, State Implementation Plan submissions, MassDOT 

reports, and other required reporting. 
 

4. Provide transit inputs into regional transit and transportation modeling efforts, and conduct air 
quality analysis as needed for transit projects. 

 
5. Continue to aid and provide guidance to applicants for Community Transit Grant Program in preparing 

applications and coordinating service. 
 

6. Provide technical assistance to public and private non-profit agencies in the development, 
maintenance, and expansion of senior and/ or individuals with disabilities services in the region. 

 
7. Continue to provide support for the replacement of paratransit vehicles. 

 
8. Develop updates for the Coordinated Public Transit Human Service Coordination Plan in coordination 

with communities, transit providers, and regional coordination committees, as appropriate.  
 
9. Operate and maintain a Congestion Management Process. 
 
10. Conduct public health assessments and consider public health outcomes as part of ongoing planning 

and performance measures planning. 
 

11. Collection and mapping of data on bus stops, routes, and ridership. 
 

12. Attend and participate in Boston Region Transit Working Group meetings and similar coordination 
and engagement programs.  

 
PRODUCTS:   
OCPC staff to: Provide technical assistance to BAT, GATRA, MBTA, SSCAC, and to area communities as 
needed; Develop information for compliance with federal and state requirements for the TIP; 2023 
Coordinated Public Transit - Human Service Coordination Plan Updates; Community Transit Grant 
Program support and technical assistance; and Travel Demand Model, and LRTP updates, as appropriate. 

 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout FFY 2026. 

 
FUNDING: 

FHWA PL MassDOT TOTAL 
$16,000 $4,000 $20,000 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 53 of 55 
 

TASK 4200 - BAT PLANNING, TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, AND STUDIES 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
To provide transit-planning services, prepare technical studies, comprehensive service assessments, and 
aid in other planning related activities that are called for during the year which presently are not 
specifically identified in work program. 
 
PREVIOUS WORK: 
BAT Aging in Place Studies; BAT Comprehensive Regional Transit Plan (CRTP); BAT Fixed-Route Ridership 
analyses; Brockton Area Transit Farebox Analyses; Title VI Reports; BAT Service Change Equity Study: BAT 
Fare Equity and Elasticity Study; Air quality analysis for CMAQ and Transportation Demand Management 
proposals; Route 2A Study; Rockland Transit Feasibility Study; System Time Study; Abington 
Transportation Study; Brockton-Taunton Fixed Route Options Study; and Human Services Coordination 
Plan. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
1. Develop a detailed study(s) design/ estimated work time effort and cost for planning tasks requested 

by Brockton Area Transit. The following is a list of planning/ projects that could be undertaken as part 
of this task: Americans with Disabilities Act Plan Update; Route Evaluation Study/ Survey; Fare 
Increase Analysis; Service Change Study; Title VI Report; Title VI Trend Analysis; Transfer Study; 
Demographic/ Urban Area Analysis; Manley Street Industrial Park Route Analyses; Technical 
assistance to BAT, as needed, on the Intermodal Facility; Avon/ Stoughton Route extension planning; 
Fare Modeling Study; Massasoit Study; Comprehensive Regional Transit Plan (CRTP); Planning 
assistance and alternatives analyses as identified in the CRTP; and Stoughton Fixed Route Study. 

 
2. Prepare analyses, reports, maps, charts, as appropriate. 
 
3. Coordinate with BAT on the identification and prioritization of potentially needed rider amenities. 

 
4. Undertake planning, studies, and comprehensive service assessments in accordance with study 

requirements and available funding. 
 
PRODUCTS: 
OCPC staff to undertake and prepare studies such as: Fixed Route Evaluation Study; Fixed Route Ridership 
Report; Fare Change Equity Study; Service Change Equity Study; South Shore Medical Transportation 
Options Study; Avon/ Stoughton Route Extension Planning Study; Bridgewater State University Transit 
Route Expansion Study; Massasoit Reverse Commute Study; BAT Comprehensive Regional Transit Plan 
(CRTP); and Provision of planning assistance and alternatives analyses as identified in the CRTP. 
 
SCHEDULE: 
To be conducted throughout FFY 2025. Schedules and scopes are contract dependent and will vary 
throughout FFY 2025. 
 
FUNDING: 

BAT* TOTAL 
$15,000 $15,000 

*The source of funds is contract specific and may be either federal, state or local funds. 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page 54 of 55 
 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING STAFF 
 
The following OCPC staff members will be working on the FFY 2025 Unified Planning Work Program. The 
expected Task Areas are also provided. The percentage effort represents the approximate time devoted 
to the FFY 2025 UPWP. 
 

Table 3 
Transportation Planning Staff, Task Areas, and % Effort Estimates 

Name Task Areas % Effort Estimates 

Shawn Bailey, 
Senior Transportation Planner 1000, 2000, 3000, 4000 95%  

(1,549 Hours) 
Matthew Dyer,  
Senior Transportation Planner 1000, 2000, 3000, 4000 95% 

(1,549 Hours) 
Raymond Guarino, 
Principal Transportation Planner 1000, 2000, 3000 100% 

(971 Hours) 
Charles Kilmer, AICP, 
Deputy Director & Transportation 
Program Manager 

1000, 2000, 3000, 4000 100% 
(1,631 Hours) 

Guoqiang Li, PTP, RSP1 
Principal Transportation Planner 1000, 2000, 3000 100% 

(1,631 Hours) 
William McNulty, PTP,  
Principal Transportation Planner 1000, 2000, 3000, 4000 100% 

(1,631 Hours) 
Kyle Mowatt,  
Senior Transportation Planner 1000, 2000, 3000, 4000 95% 

(1,549 Hours) 
Andrew Vidal,  
GIS Manager 2000, 3000, 4000 95% 

(1,549 Hours) 
  



TASK DESCRIPTION  TOTAL

TASK

1000 ‐ Management & Support of Planning and Certification Activities

1100 3C Program Support 67,274$           16,819$           ‐$                  ‐$                       84,093$          

1200 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 16,000$           4,000$              ‐$                  ‐$                       20,000$          

1300 Public Participation Program (PPP) 56,000$           14,000$           ‐$                  ‐$                       70,000$          

1400 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 56,800$           14,200$           ‐$                  ‐$                       71,000$          

1500 Title VI 28,000$           7,000$              ‐$                  ‐$                       35,000$          

224,074$        56,019$           ‐$                 ‐$                       280,093$       

TASK

2000 ‐ Data Reconnaissance, Acquisition, and Analysis Activities

2100 Demographic Surveillance & Road Inventory Update 24,000$           6,000$              ‐$                  ‐$                       30,000$          

2200 Multi‐Modal Data Surveillance and System Monitoring 88,000$           22,000$           ‐$                  ‐$                       110,000$        

2300 System Planning and Resource Activities 60,000$           15,000$           ‐$                  ‐$                       75,000$          

2400 Geographic Information System (GIS) 78,400$           19,600$           ‐$                  ‐$                       98,000$          

2500 Management Systems and Travel Demand Modeling 108,000$         27,000$           ‐$                  ‐$                       135,000$        

‐$                      

358,400$        89,600$           ‐$                 ‐$                       448,000$       

TASK

3000 ‐ Short and Long Range Transportation Planning Activities

3100 Regional Multimodal Transportation Planning and Studies  83,200$           20,800$           ‐$                  ‐$                       104,000$        

3200 Local Highway Transportation Technical Assistance (LTA) 76,000$           19,000$           ‐$                  ‐$                       95,000$          

3300 Coordinated Human Services Transportation (CHSTP) Plan 40,000$           10,000$           ‐$                  ‐$                       50,000$          

3400 2028 Long Range Transportation Plan Phase 1 72,000$           18,000$           ‐$                  ‐$                       90,000$          

3500 Routes 53/139 Corridor Study (Pembroke) 76,000$           19,000$           ‐$                  ‐$                       95,000$          

3600 Route 80 Corridor Study (Kingston & Plymouth) 74,400$           18,600$           ‐$                  ‐$                       93,000$          

3700 Performance Based Planning 20,000$           5,000$              25,000$          

441,600$        110,400$         ‐$                 ‐$                       552,000$       

TASK

4000 ‐ Other Transportation Technical Activities

4100
16,000$           4,000$              ‐$                  ‐$                       20,000$          

4200 BAT Planning, Technical Assistance, and Studies ‐$                      ‐$                       15,000$      15,000$          

16,000$           4,000$             15,000$      ‐$                       35,000$          

1,040,074$     260,019$         15,000$      ‐$                       1,315,093$    

Note: At least $25,468.35of the overall budget will be funding Complete Streets activities, per the new federal requirement included in the BIL.

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Page  55 of 55

FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP)

MassDOT NFA

FHWA PL & FTA 

5303 BAT

Estimated FFY 2026 Budget

Element 3000 Subtotals

Element 4000 Subtotals

Element 2000 Subtotals

Element 1000 Subtotals

Total of All Elements

Transit Technical Assistance and Coordination, and Seniors and Individuals with 

Disabilities Support

Table 4



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) List of Appendices 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A 
FFY 2026 Old Colony Unified Planning Work Program Endorsement 
 
Appendix B 
23 CFR Part 450 Subpart C §450.336 - Self Certifications and Federal Certifications 
 
Appendix C  
Estimates of Other Funding Sources, and Other Transportation Planning Activities 
 
Appendix D 
Glossary of Terms and Acronyms 
 
Appendix E 
Public Review Period and Public Comments



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Appendix A - FFY 2026 Old Colony UPWP Endorsement 
 

APPENDIX A - FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM ENDORSEMENT 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

OLD COLONY METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) 
 

 

ENDORSEMENT OF  
FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 

 
 

This  is to certify that the Signatories of the Old Colony Metropolitan Planning Organization, at their 
Old Colony MPO meeting on June 17, 2025, hereby approve and endorse the FFY 2026 Old Colony 
Unified  Planning Work  Program  in  its  entirety  for  the Old Colony Region,  in  accordance with  the 
certified 3C Transportation Planning Process. 
 

 
 
 
 
                     
Monica Tibbits‐Nutt, Secretary and Chief Executive Officer 
Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) 
Chair, Old Colony Metropolitan Planning Organization (OCMPO)  
 
 
 
                     
Date 
 

 
  
 
 
 

Ex‐Officio Non‐Voting Members 
 

Noreen O’Toole, Chairperson 
Old Colony Joint Transportation Committee (JTC) 

 
Joi Singh, Massachusetts Division Administrator 

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
 

Peter Butler, Region 1 Administrator 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA)  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Appendix B - 23 CFR Part 450 Subpart C §450.336 - Self 
Certifications and Federal Certifications 

 

APPENDIX B - 23 CFR PART 450 SUBPART C §450.336 - SELF CERTIFICATIONS AND FEDERAL 
CERTIFICATIONS ENDORSEMENT 
 
 



Certification of the Old Colony MPO  
Transportation Planning Process 

The Old Colony Metropolitan Planning Organization certifies that its conduct of the 
metropolitan transportation planning process complies with all applicable requirements, 
which are listed below, and that this process includes activities to support the 
development and implementation of the Regional Long-Range Transportation Plan and 
Air Quality Conformity Determination, the Transportation Improvement Program and Air 
Quality Conformity Determination, and the Unified Planning Work Program. 

1. 23 USC 134, 49 USC 5303, and this subpart. 
2. Sections 174 and 176 (c) and (d) of the Clean Air Act, as amended (42 USC 7504, 7506 

(c) and (d) and 40 CFR part 93 and for applicable State Implementation Plan projects. 
3. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 USC 2000d-1) and 49 CFR Part 

21. 
4. 49 USC 5332, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, 

sex, or age in employment or business opportunity. 
5. Section 11101(e) of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) (Public Law 117-58) 

and 49 CFR Part 26 regarding the involvement of disadvantaged business enterprises in 
U.S. DOT-funded projects. 

6. 23 CFR part 230, regarding implementation of an equal employment opportunity program 
on Federal and Federal-aid highway construction contracts. 

7. The provisions of the US DOT and of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 
12101 et seq.) and 49 CFR Parts 27, 37, and 38. 

8. The Older Americans Act, as amended (42 USC 6101), prohibiting discrimination on the 
basis of age in programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance. 

9. Section 324 of Title 23 USC regarding the prohibition of discrimination based on gender. 
10. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794) and 49 CFR Part 27 

regarding discrimination against individuals with disabilities. 
11. Anti-lobbying restrictions found in 49 CFR Part 20.  No appropriated funds may be 

expended by a recipient to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee 
of any agency, or a member of Congress, in connection with the awarding of any 
federal contract. 

 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Monica Tibbits-Nutt, Secretary and Chief Executive Officer 
Massachusetts Department of Transportation 
Chair, Old Colony MPO 
 
 
 
                  
Date 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Appendix C - Other Funding Sources and Studies 
 

APPENDIX C - OTHER OLD COLONY PLANNING COUNCIL FUNDING SOURCES AND OTHER 
PLANNING STUDIES 
 
The OCPC is a comprehensive planning agency serving communities located in Southeastern 
Massachusetts. In addition to the range of transportation planning studies and activities described in this 
report, OCPC performs land use, economic development, elder services, environmental, and 
comprehensive planning. 
 
Estimates of Other OCPC Funding Sources 

 
1. Age & Dementia Friendly Plan     $   11,000 
2. Community Septic Management Program      $      5,650 
3. Economic Development Administration (EDA)      $ 249,469 
4. Executive Office of Aging & Independence (EOAI)    $ 478,850 
5. District Local Technical Assistance (DLTA) & DLTA Plus    $ 339,508 
6. Green Communities      $   30,000 
7. Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness (MVP) Food Hub    $   15,000 
8. Open Space Plans      $   50,000 
9. Regional Energy Planning Assistance (REPA)     $   39,500 
10. Utility Allowances      $     8,478 

 
 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Appendix D - Glossary/ Acronyms 
 

APPENDIX D - GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ACRONYMS 
 
List of Acronyms 

3C: Comprehensive, Cooperative, and Continuing Planning Process 
ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act 
BAT: Brockton Area Transit Authority 
BIL: Bipartisan Infrastructure Law 
CAAA: Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 
CIP: Capital Investment Plan 
CMAQ: Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program 
CMP: Congestion Management Process 
CTGP: Community Transit Grant Program 
DEP: Department of Environmental Protection 
EIR: Environmental Impact Report 
ENF: Environmental Notification Form 
EPA: Environmental Protection Agency 
EV: Electric Vehicle 
FAST ACT: Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 
FHWA: Federal Highway Administration 
FTA: Federal Transit Administration 
GATRA: Greater Attleboro-Taunton Regional Transit Authority 
GHG: Greenhouse Gases 
GWSA: Global Warming Solutions Act 
HPMS: Highway Performance Monitoring System 
HSIP: Highway Safety Improvement Program 
IRI: International Roughness Index 
JTC: Joint Transportation Committee 
LAP: Language Access Plan 
LEP: Limited English Proficient 
LOS: Level of Service 
LRTP: Long Range Transportation Plan 
MCAD: Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination 
MAP: Mobility Assistance Program 
MARPA: Massachusetts Association of Regional Planning Agencies 
MassDOT: Massachusetts Department of Transportation 
MBTA: Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority 
MOU: Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO: Metropolitan Planning Organization 
NAAQS: National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
NBIS: National Bridge Inventory Standards 
NFA: Non-Federal Aid 
NFP: National Freight Program 
NHPP: National Highway Performance Program 



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Appendix D - Glossary/ Acronyms 
 

NHS: National Highway System 
NOx: Nitrogen Oxides 
O&M: Operations and Maintenance 
P&B: Plymouth and Brockton Bus Company 
PM1: Safety Performance Measures 
PM2: System Preservation Performance Measures 
PM3: System Performance Measures (Congestion, Reliability, and Emissions) 
PMS: Pavement Management System 
POP: Programming of Projects 
PPP: Public Participation Plan 
PRC: Project Review Committee 
PSI: Pavement Serviceability Index 
PTASP: Public Transit Agency Safety Plan 
SGR: State of Good Repair 
SIP: State Implementation Plan 
SMS: Safety Management System 
SOV: Single Occupant Vehicle 
SSCAC: South Shore Community Action Council 
STBG: Surface Transportation Block Grant Program 
TAM Transit Asset Management 
TAMP Transportation Asset Management Plan 
TAN: Transportation Advisory Network 
TAP: Transportation Alternatives Program 
TCM: Transportation Control Measure 
TEC: Transportation Evaluation Criteria 
TERM: Transit Economic Requirements Model 
TIP: Transportation Improvement Program 
TITLE VI: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d 
TMA: Transportation Management Area 
ULB: Useful Life Benchmark 
VMT: Vehicle Miles Traveled 
VOCs: Volatile Organic Compounds 
  



DRAFT FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
   

Prepared by Old Colony Planning Council (OCPC) Appendix E - Public Review Period and Public Comments 
 

APPENDIX E - PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 



 1 

Old Colony Planning Council Review and Approval of the Slate of 
Title III Grantee Applicants for FFY 2026 

Very Important – Please Note, at this time, we are NOT requesting approval 
of any specific grant amounts as we currently do not know what the FFY 2026 
Funding figures will be.  It is highly likely that reductions will be necessary to 
many, perhaps even all, of the grantee requested amounts, due to a 
combination expiration of ARPA funding, reductions in Title III funding 
allocations to OCPC and increases to OCPC’s Ombudsman program costs.   

 
 

OLD COLONY PLANNING COUNCIL - AREA AGENCY ON AGING 
FFY 2026 Title III Grantee Applicants -Current Year Requests & Prior Yr Funding 

 
AGENCY: Avon Council on Aging 
PROGRAM: Memory Café & Volunteer MOW Driver Mileage Reimb  
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to support two goals, including providing a 
structured memory café for people with mid cognitive impairment, Alzheimer’s disease, and 
other memory related disorders, by helping attendees be mentally and socially active, which 
studies have shown is conducive to brain health. Monthly programming (approximately 12 
memory cafés) will consist informal conversation, refreshments, and facilitated activities at a 
cost of about $2,200. Café themes could include guest speakers, presentations, musical 
performances, art projects, reminiscing, as well as games and activities that engage both 
participants with memory loss and their caregivers. This program seeks to provide about 240 
units of social day care services to 80 unduplicated elders and their caregivers from Avon and its 
surrounding towns to enable people to stay longer within the home and community environment. 
Title III funding is requested to subsidize the program and all that it entails. *The grant also 
seeks funding to cover mileage reimbursement costs (about $1,800) for Avon COA volunteer 
Meals on Wheels drivers, who are not eligible for reimbursement through other public sources. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $3,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $3,500      
 
 
AGENCY: Brockton Area Multi-Services, Inc. (BAMSI) 
PROGRAM: Support for the Dorn-Davies Senior Center – in Public Housing 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide a variety of social, recreational, and 
supportive services to elders residing in low-income elder housing.  The focus of the program is 
low-income and minority elders who reside in public housing in Brockton and surrounding 
communities.  The program seeks to provide 22,800 units of service (older adult nutrition, 
information and assistance, outreach, exercise, recreational activities, telephone reassurance, 
letter writing/form completion, counseling, education, and others) to 2,900 unduplicated elders. 
Title III funding is requested to cover a portion of all operating costs for the center.  This is a 
Returning Title III program that has received funding for the past 30 years.  Past program 
monitoring and evaluation visits have not identified any major problems or areas of concern.  
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $30,600 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $36,720      
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 



 2 

AGENCY: Bridgewater Council on Aging 
PROGRAM: Alice’s Intergenerational Memory Café  
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide a structured memory café for people with 
mid cognitive impairment, Alzheimer’s disease, and other memory related disorders, by helping 
attendees be mentally and socially active, which studies have shown is conducive to brain health. 
Bi-weekly programming (24 memory cafés) will consist of facilitated activities, informal 
conversation, and refreshments. Café themes will include guest speakers, presentations, musical 
performances, art projects, reminiscing, as well as games and activities that engage both 
participants with memory loss and their caregivers. This program, which is entering its 3rd year, 
seeks to provide 192 units of social day care services to 75 unduplicated elders and their 
caregivers in Bridgewater and its surrounding towns to enable people to stay longer within the 
home and community environment. Title III funding is requested to subsidize the program and 
all that it entails. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $4,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $4,000      
 
 
AGENCY: Brockton Council on Aging  
PROGRAM: Exercise/Fitness classes to a vulnerable population - New for Std Title III 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide fitness/exercise classes to older adults 
through the Brockton Council on Aging, including but not limited to low-income and minority 
elders from Brockton and surrounding communities.  The program seeks to provide about 8,000 
units of service (exercise), to improve health and social outcomes for about 140 unduplicated 
older adults. Title III funding is requested to cover program instructor costs not covered by 
donations or in-kind contributions.  This would be the first year for use of Title III funding for 
this program through the Brockton COA although it replaces $5,000 of ARPA funded 
transportation assistance program from FFY 2024, while their senior center is renovated.    
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $15,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $15,000      
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: Buzzards Bay Speech Therapy 
PROGRAM: Brain Builders:  A Cognitive Wellness Program for Seniors  
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide subsidized social day care programs to 
elders who are in the greatest economic need.  The social day care program provides a structured 
environment for mildly confused or cognitively impaired elders where they can participate in 
socialization, recreational, and educational activities in a safe, supervised environment at local 
senior centers, or when necessary, remotely. Using three licensed Speech Therapists, this new 
program seeks to provide 68-70 hours of wellness and education units of services to between 50 
– 100 unduplicated elders.  Title III funding is requested to subsidize the cost of attendance for 
low-income elders. This will be the third year of applying for Title III funding for the Old 
Colony region and the program has also run successfully in the Coastline AAA catchment area 
for several years with great reviews. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $8,800 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $8,800      
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

AGENCY: Cape Verdean Association (Associacao Caboverdiana De Brockton, Inc.) 
PROGRAM: Unsung Voices 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide linguistically and culturally appropriate 
services to minority elders from Brockton and surrounding communities.  The program seeks to 
meet the mandate of providing services to low-income minority elders in the OCPC region.  The 
program seeks to provide 650 units of service in the categories of education, information and 
referral, and interpretation to 50 unduplicated elders.  Title III funding is requested to cover a 
portion of personnel and operating costs for the program.  This is a returning Title III program 
that has received funding for over 18 years. Past program monitoring and evaluation visits have 
not identified any major problems or areas of concern with this program. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $15,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $15,000      
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: Catholic Charities South 
PROGRAM: Elder Outreach & Home Visiting Program in several South Shore Communities 
SUMMARY: The Home Visiting component of the program seeks to provide a variety of 
supportive services to frail and homebound elders residing in the Avon, Brockton, and Kingston 
areas.  The program utilizes volunteers recruited through local faith communities. There are 
approximately 45 volunteers currently participating in the program.  More than 90% of the 
volunteers are older (60+) females. Volunteers are supervised by the Program Coordinator who 
manages all administrative aspects of the program.  The program seeks to provide 16,000 units 
of service to 6,500 unduplicated elders.  The program provides services in the following 
categories:  housekeeper services, chores, transportation, information and assistance, outreach, 
health screening, exercise, recreation, friendly visiting, telephone reassurance, letter writing, 
counseling, shopping, and others as needed.   
 
The Outreach (Mental Health) component of the program seeks to provide in-home mental 
health assessment, counseling, support, and general information and counseling services to elders 
in the OCPC-AAA region.  The program seeks to provide one-to-one counseling and family 
support to assist elders in maintaining their independence in the least restrictive setting possible.  
The program provides services in the categories of outreach, assessment, counseling, follow-up, 
and telephone reassurance.  This component of the program seeks to provide 1,900 units of 
service to 825 unduplicated elders.   
 
Title III funds have helped subsidize both components of the program and its services, which 
have received funding for the past 28 years. Title III funding is requested to cover a portion of 
personnel and support costs.  Past program monitoring and evaluation visits have not identified 
any major problems or areas of concern with this program. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $55,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $55,000      
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: East Bridgewater Council on Aging 
PROGRAM: Memory Lane Café  
SUMMARY: The proposed program is to provide a free, informal, social setting that brings 
people together living with Alzheimer’s/dementia and their care partners for a time of 
socialization. Cafés are a place to talk with others who understand what you are going through, 
to leave behind limitations and instead focus on strengths, to enjoy other’s company, and to 
explore new things. Our Memory café’s will run for two hours for each month, except for 



 4 

December, and will be available to individuals with dementia or cognitive impairment and 
include their care partners from East Bridgewater, and other interested communities including 
but not limited to: Bridgewater, West Bridgewater, and Whitman. The program seeks to provide 
200 units of informal support to 20 unduplicated elders and their caregivers. Title III funding is 
requested to subsidize the program and all that it entails. This will be the fourth year of Title III 
funding for East Bridgewater’s Memory Café supportive services program. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $2,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $2,000      
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: Living Independently for Equality (LIFE) 
PROGRAM: LIFE Drop-In Center – Accessible Activities and Services 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide services and activities to wheelchair 
bound elders from throughout the region.  The LIFE Drop-in Center is the only one of its kind in 
the OCPC-AAA region that is suited to the unique needs of wheelchair bound elders by 
providing them with opportunities to participate in various social recreational, and educational 
activities.  The program seeks to meet the OCPC-AAA service priority of addressing the needs 
of disabled elders.  Title III funding is requested to cover a portion of staff salary and to 
subsidize transportation costs for elder participants.  The program seeks to provide services in 
the areas of assisted transportation, recreation, Information, Outreach and Advocacy.  The 
program seeks to serve 28 unduplicated elders throughout the program year. This is a returning 
Title III program that has received Title III funding for the past 23 years.  Past program 
monitoring and evaluation visits have not identified any major problems or areas of concern with 
this program. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $10,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $10,000 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: Marshfield Council on Aging 
PROGRAM: The Webster Corner Social Day Program  
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide subsidized supportive day care services 
(and transportation when necessary) to elders who are in the greatest social and economic need.  
The supportive day program provides a structured environment for mildly confused elders where 
they can participate in various socialization, recreational, and educational activities in a safe, 
supervised environment.  The program seeks to provide 600 units of supportive day care services 
and transportation to 36 unduplicated elders of whom approximately 7 may be lower income 
elders. Title III funding is requested to subsidize the cost of program attendance for low-income 
elders, and transportation when necessary.  The Marshfield COA Social Day program is in year 
three of applying for Title III funding and recently expanded their program to three days a week.   
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $7,500 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $7,500 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: Middleborough Council on Aging 
PROGRAM: Supportive Day Program (“Good Times Club”) 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide subsidized supportive day care services to 
elders who are in the greatest social and economic need, including transportation when 
necessary.  The supportive day program provides a structured and safe environment for mildly 
confused elders where they can participate in various socialization, recreational, and educational 
activities. The program seeks to provide supportive day care services and transportation to 16 
unduplicated elders: two groups of 8.  Title III funding is requested to subsidize the cost of 



 5 

program attendance for low-income elders, and transportation if necessary. This is a returning 
Title III program that has received funding for the past 18 years.  Last year funding increased to 
$12,000 from the prior $7,000 due to increased programming and service costs. Program 
monitoring and evaluation visits have not identified any major problems or areas of concern. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $12,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $9,000 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: Old Colony Elder Services, Inc (OCES). 
PROGRAM: Emergency Assistance and In-Home Supportive Services for Frail Elders 
SUMMARY: The emergency assistance program (EA) seeks to meet the needs of at-risk elders 
who are in an emergency or crisis-situation that threatens either their health or living situation.  
The program provides emergency financial assistance that is not available through any other 
sources. Assistance is targeted to those elders who are in the greatest economic need (poverty 
status). The focus of the program is to ensure that the most basic and necessary needs of elders 
are met so that they can remain independent in their own homes.  The program seeks to provide 
emergency assistance in the areas of utility bill assistance, medication, food, shelter/emergency 
rent, medical and other necessary transportation, minor home furnishings and repairs, and 
personal care needs.   
 
In total, the program seeks to provide approximately 850 units of service (depending on need and 
demand) in the categories of financial assistance and in-home care to 255 unduplicated elders.  
Title III funding is requested to pay for emergency financial assistance, in-home care, and 
educational presentations.  Title III funding is requested to provide direct assistance to elders.  
Emergency Assistance is a returning Title III program that has received funding for 35 years.   
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $125,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $125,000- Approximate-depending on contract  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENCY: Old Colony Elder Services, Inc (OCES). 
PROGRAM: Family Caregiver Support Program (FCSP) 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to meet the needs of family caregivers (60+) from 
throughout the OCPC-AAA region by providing information, one-to-one assistance, training and 
support, respite, and supplemental services to family caregivers.  The program seeks to address 
the Area Plan priority of providing family caregiver supportive services.  The program seeks to 
address the OCPC-AAA Area Plan priority for Family Caregiver Support by providing 680 units 
of service to approximately 330 unduplicated elder caregivers in the following categories: 
counseling, support group services, training and education, respite, outreach, information, 
supplemental services, and others as needed.  Title III funding is requested to cover a portion of 
both personnel and support costs. This is a returning Title III program that has received funding 
for the past 14 years.  Past program monitoring and evaluation visits have not identified any 
major problems or areas of concern with this program.    
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $195,000 (This is a Required OAA Program) 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $195,000- Approximate-depending on contract  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: Old Colony Elder Services, Inc (OCES). 
PROGRAM: Evidence-based Medication Management & Healthy Living Program 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide supportive intervention focused on 
minimizing the risk of medication related complications and noncompliance with medication 
requirements for elders.  The Healthy Living component provides support to various Healthy 
Living Education Programs. The program also seeks to provide medication management services 



 6 

(support services, medication reminders, skilled nursing, and medication administration 
dispensers), and Education to 200 unduplicated elders between the two program components.  
Title III funding is requested to cover direct client services.  This is a returning Title III program 
that has received funding for the past 23 years.  Past program monitoring and evaluation visits 
have not identified any major problems or areas of concern with this program.    
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $31,248 (This is a Required OAA Program) 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $30,000- Approximate-depending on contract  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: Old Colony Elder Services, Inc (OCES). 
PROGRAM: Nutrition/Meal Program 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide congregate and home-delivered meals to 
participating communities throughout the OCPC-AAA region.  The program seeks to provide 
approximately 560,000 meals (70,000 Congregate and 490,000 HDM) to 3,600 unduplicated 
elders.  The total cost of the regional nutrition program is approximately $4.0 million dollars.  
Title III funding is requested to cover a portion of both personnel and program support costs.  
This is an existing Title III program that has received funding for 35 years. Past program 
monitoring and evaluation visits have not identified any major problems or areas of concern.    
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $741,791 (This is a Required OAA Program) 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $750,000- Approximate-depending on contract  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY: Old Colony Planning Council  (OCPC) – Area Agency on Aging  
PROGRAM: Volunteer Transportation (VTP) 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide transportation services to older adults or 
those who are disabled and without the means to get to necessary appointments.  The program 
provides mileage reimbursement to volunteer drivers who are recruited and coordinated by local 
COA’s.  Pre-Covid, trips were limited to specific types of needs (medical appointments, 
congregate nutrition, legal services, day care). Since Covid there has been more leeway to 
provide flexibility for the needs of older adults and those with disabilities who use the service.  
The program seeks to provide 4,000 units (trips) of transportation to 320 unduplicated elders.  
The program seeks to address what is one of the top service priorities for the region 
(transportation). Title III funding is requested to pay for mileage reimbursement matching offset. 
This is a returning program that has received funding for the past 30 years from program 
donations and more recently from MassDOT provided Community Transit Grant funding (5310 
operations grant from the U.S. Dept of Transportation). 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $30,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $30,000- Approximate-depending on contract  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENCY: Old Colony Planning Council  (OCPC) – Area Agency on Aging  
PROGRAM: Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks supplemental funding to continue the availability of 
the Long-Term Care Ombudsman services in the Old Colony region. The Ombudsman program 
seeks to identify, investigate, and resolve complaints made by or on behalf of long-term care 
residents in the region; protect resident’s rights; provide information and education; and advocate 
for positive changes to the long-term care system.   The program seeks to conduct 2,800 visits to 
long-term care facilities in the region. Additional Title III funding is requested in anticipation of 
the necessity to supplement existing Ombudsman funding and cover program operating costs.  
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $60,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $120,000- Approximate-depending on contract  
______________________________________________________________________________ 



 7 

 
 
AGENCY: Plymouth Council on Aging – Center for Active Living (CAL) 
PROGRAM: Congregate Nutrition Site Coordinator - Staffing 
SUMMARY: Title III funding is requested to help provide supportive services for 
approximately 650 seniors through outreach and distribution of between 6,000 to 8,000 
congregate meals at the Plymouth ‘Center for Active Living’ (CAL) nutrition site. Title III 
funding is requested for staffing costs of the Meal Distribution Coordinator-Nutrition Site role. 
This is a position that has been directly funded by Title III for over 30 years. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $19,854 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $21,106.40 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENCY: Rockland Council on Aging 
PROGRAM: Supportive Nutrition & Supplemental Kitchen Supplies  
SUMMARY: Title III funding is requested to support Rockland Senior Center nutrition services 
and replace heavily used Senior Center kitchen equipment and utensils, which is used to create 
close to 10,000 meals for about 250 individuals, at a rate of about 60 meals produced per day.  
Meals can be eaten in the center’s social hall five days a week or can be picked up four days a 
week (Grab & Go). The program serves both Rockland (85%) older adult residents and out of 
town (15%) older adults as well. Title III has directly funded the Rockland COA for 15 years. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $5,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $6,000 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENCY: South Shore Elder Mental Health Consortium (Duxbury, Plymouth, 
Bridgewater, and other local Councils on Aging/Senior Centers 
PROGRAM: Elder Mental Health Services through Senior Centers  - New for Std Title III  
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide access to clinical mental health 
counseling and support in a nurturing and supportive environment that is free from the stigma 
that mental health issues may present. This will be the second year of the program for six 
participating SSEMHC (Counsel on Aging) sites (Bridgewater, Brockton, Duxbury, East 
Bridgewater, Marshfield, and Plymouth), bringing in Masters of Social Work students from local 
universities for full academic year internships (with stipends), under the supervision of both a 
Field Study Coordinator and Clinical Supervisor, to provide 1) Confidential Mental Health 
Counseling appointments and 2) Group Education Programming and Workshops at the 
respective senior centers, online, or at home, providing both individual and group resources to 
proactively support better older adult mental health outcomes. This past year’s program, which 
was supported through ARPA funding, produced: A) More than 1,500 combined calls or emails 
made to providers, clients, and staff in support of the SSEMHC participants (951 calls and 580 
emails). B) 461 Individual Counseling sessions, C) 614 units of Group Counseling sessions (Ted 
Talks, Support Groups, and other Intern led programs to 163 participants, and D) 128 instances 
of Community-Based Support outside of the COA, such as delivering meals, outreach, and 
training for older adults.    
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $65,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $72,800 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 8 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENCY: Southeastern Coastal Counties Legal Services – Justice Center 
PROGRAM: Seniors Law Project 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide legal services to elders from throughout 
the OCPC-AAA region. The program provides direct legal assistance, impact litigation and 
legislative advocacy, community legal education, outreach, private bar involvement, 
coordination with other elder service provider agencies, and outreach to low-income minority 
elders.  The program provides legal services in the areas of income maintenance, health and 
long-term care, housing, and others.  The program seeks to provide 1,400 units of service in the 
categories of legal assistance, outreach, and education to 200 unduplicated elders.  The program 
is staffed by one attorney specializing in elder law and one supervising attorney. This program 
meets the mandated requirement for providing legal services in the OCPC-AAA service region.  
Title III funding is requested to cover a portion of all program costs. This is a longstanding Title 
III program that has received Title III funding for the past 40 or more years. Past program 
monitoring and evaluation visits have not identified any major problems or areas of concern. 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $125,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $125,000 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENCY: Taking People Places, Inc  (TPP) - New for Std Title III 
PROGRAM: Reduced Rate Rides using the Ride Sharing Platform from LYFT 
SUMMARY: The proposed program seeks to provide flexible and transportation services to 
older adults or those who are disabled by providing member non-profit organizations in the 
greater Plymouth area with access to the Ride Sharing Company, LYFT’s Concierge online 
portal to order rides for individuals with few if any affordable transportation options to get to the 
respective services they need, including: Medical services, Mental Health services, Addiction 
services, Employment for those with developmental disabilities, and more. The program is 
approaching its 5-year anniversary and recently obtained its own Not-For-Profit status 
designation. Primary funding has come from a partnership between member organizations 
program income and from MassDOT provided Community Transit Grant funding (5310 
operations grant from the U.S. Dept of Transportation). This will be second year of Title III 
funding for TPP, which in calendar year 2023 completed 3,553 rides through the Lyft-TPP 
transportation platform. About one third of the total, almost 1,200 rides provided were for Older 
Adults. And 65% of riders were classified as being disabled (either temporary or long-term). 
PRIOR YEAR FUNDING = $10,000 
CURRENT YEAR REQUEST = $12,000 
___________________________________________________________________ 
TOTAL Title III-B FUNDING REQUESTED =  $678,426 - All figures are approximate 
TOTAL Title III-C FUNDING REQUESTED =  $750,000 
TOTAL Title III-D FUNDING REQUESTED =  $31,000 
TOTAL Title III-E FUNDING REQUESTED =  $195,000 
STANDARD OMBUDSMAN FUNDING =           $118,249 
AREA PLAN ADMINISTRATION =   $171,427 Est Total:  $1,944,102 
 
TOTAL FUNDING ANTICIPATED = Unknown 
TOTAL FUNDING ALLOCATION =  Net Yet Confirmed by EOEA 
 

Please Move Vote for Council Approval of the Slate of FFY 2026 
OCPC Title III Grantees only, not the amounts requested.  



ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE CATEGORY
PRIOR MONTHS 

BALANCE

                       

ADM PROF FEES: AUDIT, LEGAL, CONSULTANTS 42,500 37,421 37,421 5,079
ADMIN BOOKS, DUES, SUBSCR, MEMB 22,590 78 17,200 17,200 5,390
AUTO EXPENSES:  DIRECT 1,650 1,244 1,244 406
ADMIN EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT 400 0 0 400
ADMIN EQUIP PURCHASE 7,050 5,350 5,350 1,700
ADMIN EQUIP RENTAL OCPC ONLY 7,050 970 5,226 5,226 1,824
ADMIN EQUIP SUPPLIES 1,600 1,218 1,218 382
ADMIN TRAINING & EDUCATION / PROF DVLP 3,350 100 2,529 2,529 821
ADMIN RECRUITMENT & RETENTION 133 100 100 33
ROM BUILDING REPAIR & MAINT (Improvements) 28,000 1,000 20,986 20,986 7,014
BUILDING UTILITIES 30,000 2,493 23,057 23,057 6,943
BUILDING MANAGEMENT 10,000 834 7,500 7,500 2,500
FRINGE BENEFITS 405,000 9,658 309,608 309,608 95,392
INSURANCE ADMIN VARIOUS & ROM BLDG 16,000 7,000 1,287 18,181 16,894 4,819
BUILDING LOAN 10,500 2,075 7,949 7,949 2,551
MEETING EXPENSES 10,500  409 7,867 7,867 2,633
MISC EXPENSES (Surplus Funds) 101,866 303 2,438 2,438 99,428
OFFICE SUPPLIES 15,000 145 34 11,347 11,347 3,798
PR SERVICE CHARGES 5,250 398 3,970 3,970 1,280
ADMIN SERVICE CHARGES 3,200 174 2,406 2,406 794
PAYROLL TAXES / ER Medicare, SUI 50,000 3,239 37,765 37,765 12,235
ADMIN PRINTING 1,000 789 789 211
POSTAGE 700 46 575 529 125
RENTAL EXPENSE 70,200 5,850 52,650 52,650 17,550
SALARIES / Adjusted Gross PR 2,108,390 168,211 1,596,710 1,596,710 511,680
TRAVEL ADMINISTRATIVE 3,400 238 2,584 2,584 816
DIRECT EXPENSES: TRAVEL & OTHER 88,650 3,981 67,052 67,052 21,598
TELEPHONE/COMMUNICATIONS 36,500 3,032 27,522 27,522 8,978
OPEB BENEFITS 60,000 45,000 45,000 15,000

FULL TOTAL BUDGET $831,380 

Rounding & Adj

NON-BUDGET ITEMS:

1,618.00

                                            

TOTAL Expense for month 206,029.24

BALANCING CHECKLIST

419,458.90

6,402.55

Total Gross PR 171,848.80

EFT Payment retirement - Payroll Acct (Payroll Summary) 16,720.96

EFT Payment deferment - Payroll Acct (Payroll Summary) 5,705.12 PR Ser Charge -398.47

EFT Payment TASC (HSA) - Payroll Acct (Payroll Summary) 1,184.62 23,610.70 ER Medicare Tax -2,352.29

TOTAL DISBURSEMENT 449,472.15 ER SUI Tax -886.86

      Consultant Disbursement - Pass-Through -154,947.22

      AAA Disbursement - Pass-Through -36,733.79 Adj Gross PR 168,211.18

Disbursement Subtotal 257,791.14

Adjusted Disbursement 257,791.14

      Cash Transfers -200,000.00 REGULAR CHKNG EXP TRACKING TO BAL

A/P OCPC (less PT) 27,777.89

        Total Net Salary (PR Summary) 112,065.21 Cash Transfers 200,000.00

        Total Liabilities Paid 29,226.70 AAA & Other PT 191,681.01

        ER PR Service Charge 398.47 OCPC TOT 419,458.90

                              Net Payroll 141,690.38 141,690.38

Total Disbursement 199,481.52  Exps ROM Chks 6,402.55

  

Adjusted Liability ER 6,547.72
Tot AP & Cash 

Transfers
425,861.45

206,029.24

Rockland Regular Checks:  ROM

OLD COLONY PLANNING COUNCIL & ROM

COMBINED STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES

APRIL 2025

Column Totals $3,061,979 $85,645 204,411.24 2,316,244

STATEMENT OF 

EXPENDITURES BALANCE 

B - E

 FY25 / OCPC 

WORKING BUDGET 
TOTAL COMBINED 

CURRENT MONTH 

EXPENSES

831,380

 FY24 / ROM 

WORKING BUDGET 

From Payroll Summary

2,314,911

COMBINED 

EXPENSES TO 

DATE

    COMMUNITY TRANSIT GRANT (CTG)

$3,147,624 

Rockland Regular Checks & Transfers Out:  OCPC Total
425,861.45

OTHER PASS-THROUGH EXPENSES



LAST MONTH:
BALANCES: MAR 2025

$108,381.30

$103,877.82

$477,892.49 

        Voluntary Transportation Restricted Funds $162,574.54 $640,467.03

$659,183.62

$45,000.00

ROM Rockland Account $146,431.64

$129,860.50

$21,975.08

Rockland Tr OPEB / Bal Funds Reseved Against Liab  (60K Annual Reserved Amount) $15,000.00

Reconciled Balance at Month End $1,870,176.99

FEB 28, 2025 OPEB Balance $1,281,920.15

MAR GAIN  / LOSS GAIN/LOSS -$33,082.82

MAR 31, 2025 OPEB Balance $1,248,837.33

DEPOSITS IN CURRENT MONTH:

Assisted Living $32,400.88

Drone Flight $365.50

EDA Site Inventory $19,407.21

EDA Standard $17,500.00

EDA WATER $44,241.51

EPA BROWNFIELDS $68,817.81

INTEREST INCOME $1,103.07

KINGSTON ADF $20,000.00

MADOT $91,074.02

MISC BLDG MGMT $834.00

SAFE STREETS FOR ALL $34,942.43
VTP DONATIONS (RESTRICTED FUNDS) $519.60

TOTAL INCOME: $331,206.03

$331,206.03

$2,201,383.02

INCOME ADJUSTMENTS: Payroll Adjustments MAR PR Paid in APR -$12,748.89

Payroll Adjustments APR PR Paid in MAY $21,779.33

Additional Tax Liability Q1 -$51.51

Misc. Discrepancies - HSA & Rounding $0.06

Various Service Charges (Dep Adj Tasc) -$6.00

TOTAL INCOME ADJUSTMENTS $8,972.99 $8,972.99

AAA Disbursements (pass-thru) 36,733.79

Consultant Disbursements (pass-thru) 154,947.22

ROM Adj Exp (X-fer OCPC Rent) -5,850.00

Miscellaneous Credit (Adjustments)

OCPC Disb Sub-Total (St of Exp) 257,791.14

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS: $443,622.15 -$443,622.15

$1,766,733.86

Net Payroll (PR Smry) -$141,690.38

Transfered to Payroll $200,000.00

Cash Available End of Month $1,825,043.48

CURRENT MONTH:
BALANCES: APR 2025

$108,774.15

$104,119.02

$388,016.95 

        Voluntary Transportation Restricted Funds $163,094.14 $551,111.09

$659,189.04

$45,000.00

ROM Rockland Account $145,879.09

$130,324.10

$65,646.99

Rockland Tr OPEB / Bal Funds Reseved Against Liab  (60K Annual Reserved Amount) $15,000.00

Reconciled Balance at Month End $1,825,043.48

MAR 31, 2025 OPEB Balance $1,248,837.33

APR GAIN  / LOSS GAIN/LOSS $11,207.70

APR 30, 2025 OPEB Balance $1,260,045.03

Rockland Trust Payroll Account #3849

Rockland Trust Savings #9472

Rockland Trust Regular Checking #9472

Northeaston Savings Bank CD #7191

Northeaston Savings Bank MM #7216

DISBURSEMENTS CURRENT MONTH

Plymouth County OPEB Trust (PCOT) Acct Balance

Rockland Trust Custody Account #641500

CASH POSITION

REPORT -  APRIL 2025

Rockland Trust Regular Checking #9472

Northeaston Savings Bank CD #7191

Northeaston Savings Bank MM #7216

Rockland Trust Savings #9472

Plymouth County OPEB Trust (PCOT) Acct Balance

Rockland Trust Custody Account #641500

Rockland Trust Payroll Account #3849

1

1



INCOME FROM BUDGET RESOURCES PROGRAMS FY25 & FY24 CARRY-OVER
 FY25 Budget 

Resources 

 FY25 Various Funds 

Received 
 Cumulative Balance 

Member Assessments 160,613 80,307 80,307

Economic Development Department

E. Bridgewater Business Assistance (153K 10/23-6/26) 65,000 56,846 8,154

EDA - East Bridgewater Sewer Line (65K 16 Mo) 56,800 4,923 51,877

EDA - Plymouth Holtec (35K 5/24-9/25) 25,600 2,667 22,933

EDA - Regional Water Study (4/23/4/25) (Included Pass-through Consultant Exp & Inc) 560,846 560,846 0

EDA - Site Inventory (75K &DLTA + Match 4/24-3/25)) 65,000 54,956 10,044

EDA - Standard YR 2 - (Apr 2023 - Mar 2024) 70,000 70,000 0

EPA - Brownfields Grant (146,96 7/23-9/27) 172,662 172,662 0

Transportation Department

Brockton Area Transit Authority (BAT) 5,000 5,000

MADOT Highway Planning #123116 1,273,417 804,408 469,009

Safe Streets 4 All 190,467 190,467 0

Statewide Trails Database - thru 6/25 9,800 9,800

Area Agency on Aging Department

AAA Admininistrative Funds 201,078 201,078 0

AAA Assisted Living Specialist 119,700 104,202 15,498

AAA Ombudsman Standard 180,500 177,898 2,602

Department of Housing and Community Development Department

Abington HPP 35,000 35,000 0

Abington OSRP (30K 1/24-12/25) 19,000 30,000 30,000

CRPG / MAPC - (8/23-8/25) 16,736 16,736 0

  DLTA AUGMENTATION 135,803 135,803 0

DLTA Standard Grant 203,705 203,705 0

Duxbury ADF Pt2 5,000 5,000 0

Duxbury OSRP (30K 1/24-12/25) 15,000 15,000 0

Efficiency & Regionalization 124,168 124,168 0

Green Communities 30,000 30,000 0

Kingston ADF 20,000 20,000 0

MAPC Flood - 1K - 8/24-10/24 1,000 1,000 0

MHP/MAPC Halifax $8280 - 8/24-12/24 8,280 3,149 5,131

MVP Food Hub - 30K - 8/24-6/26 15,000 15,000

Narragansett Bay Grant 62,530 62,530 0

REPA Grants 38,000 16,806 21,194

Whitman OSRP (30K 1/24-12/25) 29,000 15,000 14,000

Local Assistance Programs

Avon Septic Program 600 600

Cohassett Septic Program 600 600

Hanson Septic Program 1,200 1,200

Kingston Septic Program 1,650 1,650

Stoughton Septic Program 1,600 1,600

Utility Allowances 8,478 416 8,062

Miscellaneous Income

Management Fees 10,000 6,668 3,332

Miscellaneous Income - Other 12,714 12,714 0

Rom Rental Income - Building Space Rent Wright Tech Last Rent - Dec 24 30,000 15,000 15,000

ROM Rental Income OCPC - Line for Budget Offset Only 70,200 46,800 23,400

BUDGETED INCOME SUB-TOTAL 4,051,747 3,214,956 815,991

PROGRAMMATIC (PASS-THROUGH) FUNDS FY25 Budget Received Cumulative Balance

Area Agency On Aging - Standard & ARPA Pass-Through 190,325,991 2,222,768 188,103,223

CTG (Transportation) 20,000 18,711 1,289

Restricted Funds - Donations for Voluntary Transpotation Programs 5,000 3,799 1,201

TOTAL Pass- Through Funds 190,350,991 2,245,278 188,105,713

INCOME RECEIVED IN FY25 FROM PRIOR YEARS BILLINGS Received Balance

Avon MVP $25,212.73 $25,212.73 

Assisted Living $11,013.49 $11,013.49

Community Transit Grant (CTG) $11,137.92 $11,137.92

East Bridgewater Master Plan $15,025.66 $15,025.66

Plymouth OSRP $1,677.65 $1,677.65

Hanson Master Plan $10,000.00 $10,000.00

EDA Tool & Data $5,305.99 $5,305.99

Mass Highway Planning / MA Department of Transportation (MADOT) $180,134.08 $180,134.08

Plymouth Cedarville $1,500.00 $1,500.00 

Plympton OSRP $2,915.65 $2,915.65 

REPA $12,482.03 $12,482.03 

Septic Assistance Program $2,300.00 $2,300.00 

Statewide Trails $7,911.63 $7,911.63 

Utilities $8,062.00 $8,062.00

TOTAL $294,678.83 $294,678.83

Cumulative Total Cash Received - FY25 Running Total

Jul-24 $310,544.06 $310,544.06 Cross Check Balance - Receipts

Aug-24 $714,550.49 $1,025,094.55 $3,214,956.20

Sep-24 $492,542.68 $1,517,637.23 $2,245,277.56

Oct-24 $1,019,644.56 $2,537,281.79 $294,678.83

Nov-24 $413,787.37 $2,951,069.16 $5,754,912.59

Dec-24 $885,620.53 $3,836,689.69

Jan-25 $766,025.25 $4,602,714.94

Feb-25 $379,005.06 $4,981,720.00

Mar-25 $441,986.56 $5,423,706.56

Apr-25 $331,206.03 $5,754,912.59

STATEMENT OF CURRENT BUDGET RESOURCES  - APRIL 2025



 

OUTSTANDING 

BALANCE

AAA PASS-THROUGH ACTIVITY

AAA Pass-Through Standard $632,130.42

AAA Pass-Through ARPA $10,325.01

$642,455.43

AAA OMBUDSMAN & ADMIN ACTIVITY

ADM ARPA Credit Balance -$455.89

ADM STANDARD $63,438.10

ASSISTED LIVING $11,173.34

OMBUDSMAN STANDARD $67,213.97

$141,369.52

TOTAL ALL AAA OUTSTANDING FUNDS: $783,824.95

$162,574.54

Payments to Volunteers from Restricted Fund $0.00

Donations (Restricted Funds) for VTP Program $519.60

$163,094.14

Volunteer Transportation Restricted Funds Starting Balance

Volunteer Transportation Funds Ending Balance

APRIL 2025 REPORT

AAA ACTIVITY - FY23, FY24, FY25

VOLUNTEER TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM FUNDS

TOTAL FY23, FY24, FY25 OUTSTANDING AAA FUNDS

TOTAL FY23, FY24, FY25 OUTSTANDING ADMIN & OMBUDSMAN FUNDS

AAA FISCAL YEAR FY23 RUNS OCTOBER 2022 - SEPTEMBER 2023

AAA FISCAL YEAR FY24 RUNS OCTOBER 2023 - SEPTEMBER 2024



Corrected

06/2024 07/2024 08/2024 09/2024 10/2024 11/2024 12/2024 01/2025 02/2025 03/2025 04/2025 05/2025 06/2025

End Bal Prior Mo 162,580.31 162,212.24 157,992.91 160,445.88 163,522.33 166,293.62 167,789.90 166,143.60 161,376.81 150,793.22

INCOME:
Cumulative 

TOTALS

OCPC RENT 8,350.00 8,350.00 8,850.00 8,850.00 8,850.00 8,350.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 75,000.00

Misc Receipts 0.00

    MONTLY TOTAL INCOME 8,350.00 8,350.00 8,850.00 8,350.00 8,850.00 8,350.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 0.00 0.00 74,500.00

EXPENSES: TOTALS

1,357.98 1,483.18 889.11 665.97 1,522.83 486.37 1404.89 1,606.44 1677.37 1428.95 12,523.09

243.87 243.87 243.87 294.66 294.66 294.66 306.03 306.03 306.03 302.77 2,836.45

Burgess Pest Management 241.00 241.00 482.00

19.80 19.80 19.80 58.90 399.05 1,372.92 1,864.02 1,378.18 761.65 5,894.12

833.00 833.00 834.00 833.00 833.00 834.00 833.00 833.00 834.00 834.00 8,334.00

500.00 500.00 500.00 636.00 500.00 500.00 1,000.00 500.00 500.00 5,136.00

2,075.18 2,075.18 2,075.18 2,075.18 2,075.18 2,075.18 2,075.18 2,075.18 2,075.18 18,676.62

7,077.00 7,077.00

Anania Plumbing 1,910.16 1,910.16

Merry & Bright 1,728.00 1,728.00

Bay State Shredding 200.00 200.00

Commonwealth of MA 15.00 15.00

Alexander Hoxie 1,000.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 600.00 540.00 600.00 500.00 5,240.00

800.00 906.86 1,706.86

12.59 34.10 25.99 105.33 178.01

American Alarm 462.50 462.50

Wright Technology 0.00

Gibson Roofs, Inc. 4,580.00 4,580.00

0.00

0.00

Intuit 500.00 500.00

400.00 400.00

640.00 640.00

2,425.84 2,425.84

ADJ 1K 0.00

      MONTHLY TOTAL EXPENSES 13,569.33 5,896.03 5,074.55 5,278.71 6,124.72 7,925.23 13,085.11 10,818.66 7,270.76 5,902.55 0.00 0.00 80,945.65

Total Adj

-4851.26 6673.30 1322.48 994.84 -46.01 -1071.58 -5588.81 -201.87 9162.83 868.21 7,262.13

SUB TOTAL 8,718.07 12,569.33 6,397.03 6,273.55 6,078.71 6,853.65 7,496.30 10,616.79 16,433.59 6,770.76 0.00 0.00

0.00 162,212.24 157,992.91 160,445.88 163,522.33 166,293.62 167,789.97 166,143.60 161,376.81 150,793.22 149,872.46 0.00 0.00

Notes: 3,861.58

162,580.31 -3,493.37

1 time adj 999.93

Cumulative Income 74,500.00 500.00

Cumulative Expenditures -80,945.65 868.21

 Cumulative Adjustments -7,262.13

149,872.46

Eversource

OCPC Building Maint

FY25 Account Summaries

 Current Statement Balance

MONTHLY ADJUSTMENTS (SEE NOTES)

Reconciled Bank Statement Bal

Mannys Cleaning

Pierce Refeigeration

Rockland Loan

Arbella Insurance (Building)

Luis Lopez

Irvings Home Center

Mills Electric

Abington Locksmith

Old Colony Planning Council
Regional Operation and Management (ROM), Inc. 

July 2024 to June 2025

National Grid

Comcast

Dennis Masonry

ADJUSTMENTS

Metro South Chamber

Balance 7/1/2024

Prior Month Cleared MAR

Outstanding Payments MAR

Other Items Relative to Bal

TOTAL



July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025 Spent Remains

OCPC ROM
% Spent To 

Date
FY24 FY24 TOTAL FY25 FY25

Admin Professional Fees: Audit, Legal, etc. 42,500 42,500 37,421 5,079 88.05%

Administrative Books, Dues, Subscriptions 22,590 22,590 17,278 5,312 76.48%

Administrative Training & Education / Prof Dvlp 3,350 3,350 2,579 771 77.00%

Administrative Recruitment & Retention 133 133 133 0.00%

Auto Expenses: DIRECT (Van) 1,650 1,650 1,244 406 75.42%

Building Utilities - ROM 30,000 30,000 25,550 4,450 85.17%

Building Repairs & Maintenance - ROM 28,000 28,000 21,986 6,014 78.52%

Building Business Mgmt - ROM 10,000 10,000 8,334 1,666 83.34%

Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 400 0 400 400 0.00%

Equipment Purchase 7,050 7,050 5,350 1,700 75.89%

Equipment Rental / Printer & Postage Machine 7,050 7,050 6,197 853 87.90%

Equipment Supplies 1,600 1,600 1,218 382 76.13%

Fringe Benefits 405,000 405,000 309,787 95,213 76.49%

Insurance / Administrative 16,000 7,000 23,000 18,181 4,819 79.05%

Building Loan Expenses 10,500 10,500 8,779 1,721 83.61%

Adm Meeting Expenses 12,900 12,900 11,088 1,812 85.96%

Miscellaneous Expenses / to Balance to Budgeted Income 187,166 187,166 2 187,164 0.00%

Office Supplies 15,000 145 15,145 11,381 3,764 75.15%

Payroll Service Charges 5,250 5,250 4,332 918 82.51%

Adm Service Charges 3,200 3,200 2,512 688 78.51%

Payroll Taxes 50,000 50,000 40,713 9,287 81.43%

Printing 1,000 1,000 789 211 78.90%

Postage 700 700 575 125 82.18%

Rent 70,200 70,200 58,500 11,700 83.33%

Salaries 2,031,190 2,031,190 1,768,607 262,583 87.07%

Travel / Administrative 3,400 3,400 2,822 578 82.99%

Direct Travel & Other Direct Exp / Excluding Auto 88,650 88,650 69,414 19,236 78.30%

Telephone & Internet 36,500 36,500 30,553 5,947 83.71%

OPEB Benefits 60,000 60,000 45,000 15,000 75.00%

SUB-TOTALS 3,072,479 85,645 3,158,124 2,510,193 647,931 79.48%

TOTAL ADMIN EXPENSES

Ideal percentage spent in the 10th month of our fiscal year would be 83.3%.  We are at 79.48% which indicates a surplus 

of 3.82%.  Available surplus funds are currently at $187,164

APRIL 2025

OCPC  &  ROM

3,158,124

Ideal % Spent - 

Mo 10 of 12 = 

83.3%

3,158,124

BUDGET PAGE 1

OLD COLONY PLANNING COUNCIL

PROPOSED BUDGET FY25

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES / OCPC & ROM

FY25 BUDGET ACTIVITY
FY25 PROJECTED BUDGET



HIGHLIGHTED AREAS ARE NEW GRANTS GRANT DATES OCPC ROM

FY25 FY25

OCPC MEMBER COMMUNITY ASSESSMENTS 160,613

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

E. Bridgewater Business Assistance - (153K T 10/23-6/26) 10/23-6/26 65,000

Economic Dvlp District - EDA Standard - FY24 4/23-3/25 70,000

EDA - Plymouth Holtec (35K 5/24-9/25) 8/24-12/25 10,000

EDA - Site Inventory (75K & DLTA Augmentation Match) 4/24-3/25 71,419

EDA East Bridgewater Sewer Line (65K 16 mo) 9/23-6/25 18,800

EDA Regional Water Study (4/23-4/25) 5/23-5/25 66,718

EPA Brownfields Grant $146,961K (7/23-9/27) 7/23-9/27 24,000

TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT

BAT / Brockton Area Transit Authority - FY25 TBD 5,000

MADOT Highway Planning - FY25 Oct-Sep 1,225,035

Safe Streets For All (25K - 6/2025) End 6/25 24,473

Statewide Trails Database - thru 6/25 End 6/25 8,000

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF ELDER AFFAIRS

AAA Ombudsman Standard Program - FY24 10/23-9/24 175,000

AAA Administration Funds - FY24 10/23-9/24 180,500

Assisted Living Specialist (7/23-6/24) 7/24-6/25 131,850

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Abington HPP (35K 1/25-12/25) 1/25-12/25 35,000

Abington OSRP (30K 1/24-12/25 1/24/12/25 27,168

                                                                                                          CPRG / MAPC - (8/2023 - 8/2025) 8/23-8/25 8,000

District Local Technical Assistance - Augmentation (1/24-12/24) 1/25-6/25 135,803

District Local Technical Assistance (1/25-12-25) 1/24-12/24 203,705

Duxbury OSRP (30K 1/24-12/25 1/24-12/25 15,000

Duxbury ADF PT 2 End 6/25 5,000

Efficiency & Regionalization ($124,168) 12/9/24-6/30/26 End 6/26 124,168

Green Communities - FY25 7/24-6/25 30,000

Kingston ADF (35K) through FY26 20,000

Kingsston HPP 11,000

MAPC Flood - 1K - 8/24-10/24 8/24-10/24 1,000

MAPC Flood Phase 2 - 7500 - 8/24-10/24 8/24-10/24 7,500

MBTA E. Bridgewater 3/25-6/26 15,000

MHP/MBTA Halifax $8280 - 8/24-12/24 8/24-12-24 4,362

Moor Recreational Inventory 04/25- 20,000

MVP Food Hub - 30K 8/24-6/26 8/24-6/26 15,000

Narragansett Bay Grant ($100K - 11/22-9/24) 11/22-9/24 44,725

Plympton Culvert Assesment Assist (5/25-6/26) 5/25-6/26 10,500

Plympton OSRP (1/24-12/24 - 5K) 1/24-2/24 407

REPA - (79K 7/23-6/25) 7/23-6/25 42,000

Stoughton OSRP (30K FY26)

Walk Massachusetts ($6,500 1/25-12/25) 1/25-12/25 3,250

Whitman 40 R (3/25-6/26) 10,000

Whitman OSRP (30K 1/24-12/25 1/24/12/25 15,000

LOCAL ASSISTANCE AND/OR THER CONTRACTS

Area Utilities - FY25 7/23-6/25 8,478

Avon Septic Program - FY25 7/23-6/25

Cohasset Septic Program - FY25 7/23-6/25

Hanson Septic Program - FY25 7/23-6/25

Kingston Septic Program - FY25 7/23-6/25

Stoughton Septic Program - FY25 7/23-6/25

MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

Miscellaneous Income -ROM Management Fees - FY25 10,000

Miscellaneous Income -Other - FY25 8,800

ROM Income - Bldg Office Space Rental - FY25 15,000

ROM Income - Rent offset OCPC Expense - FY25 70,200

SUB-TOTAL INCOME 3,072,924 85,200

TOTAL INCOME

FY25 PROJECTED INCOME

3,158,124

BUDGET PAGE 2

INCOME/REVENUE

5,650



BUDGET PAGE 3

PROGRAMMETIC (PASS-THROUGH) FUNDS

Area Agency on Aging (AAA)

CTG / Community Transit / Pass-through

Donations for Volunteer Transportation

SUB-TOTAL PASS-THROUGH FUNDS

18,294

FY25 - PASS-THROUGH

4,581

1,996,327

1,973,452



Date Num Name Memo Amount

04/30/2025 33349 Carole Dick AAA Avon 3B Grant MAR 25 -25.20

04/30/2025 33352 Denis MacPhee AAA Avon 3B Grant MAR 25 -23.10

04/30/2025 33344 Avon Council on Aging AAA PT SUBGRANTEE Avon 3B Grant MAR 25 -261.38

04/30/2025 33351 Cauna Magner AAA PT SUBGRANTEE Avon 3B Grant MAR 25 -26.60

04/30/2025 33355 Kris Foley AAA PT SUBGRANTEE Avon 3B Grant MAR 25 -20.30

04/30/2025 33359 Nancy Puckett AAA PT SUBGRANTEE Avon 3B Grant MAR 25 -35.71

04/30/2025 33343 Duxbury Senior Center AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -10,000.00

04/30/2025 33345 Bridgewater COA AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -415.72

04/30/2025 33346 Brockton Area Multi Services Inc. AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -2,128.86

04/30/2025 33347 Brockton COA AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -438.00

04/30/2025 33348 Buzzards Bay Speech Therapy AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -1,608.32

04/30/2025 33350 Catholic Charities Hospice Outreach AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -4,355.00

04/30/2025 33353 Duxbury Senior Center AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -2,750.00

04/30/2025 33354 East Bridgewater COA AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -205.31

04/30/2025 33356 LIFE AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -833.33

04/30/2025 33357 Marshfield COA AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -625.00

04/29/2025 3076 Alexander Hoxie Adm Bldg Maint -500.00

04/29/2025 3077 Comcast Business Adm Util -302.77

04/29/2025 3078 Eversource Adm Utilities Bill -761.65

04/29/2025 3079 National Grid - Montello Adm Util 14841-69003 -1,100.98

04/29/2025 3080 National Grid - School Adm Util27281-96005 -327.97

04/29/2025 3081 Old Colony Planning Council Adm Bldg Mgmt MAR 25 -834.00

04/29/2025 3082 Rockland Trust Loan - 310807100 Adm Bldg Loan -2,075.18

04/30/2025 3083 Mannys Cleaning Adm Bldg Maint  APR 25 -500.00

04/16/2025 33293 Group Insurance Commission Employee Benef Adm Fringe EE -9,544.60

04/16/2025 33294 The Hartford Insurance Company Adm Insurance W/C: 15745861 -1,287.00

04/16/2025 33295 Verizon Wireless Misc 1056.97 Tele / Direct other -1,224.47

04/18/2025 33296 Lorenzo's Direct ALR Promo Retirment Party Room Rental -150.00

04/29/2025 33297 Accurate Counts Direct MADOT Outsorced Traffic Counts - INV 11532 -865.00

04/29/2025 33298 American Express Business Account Adm Misc -995.77

04/29/2025 33299 Bloor, Bill CTG  -Plymouth MAR 25 -34.30

04/29/2025 33300 Boston Mutual Ins. Division 1 Adm Fringe -79.10

04/29/2025 33301 Boston Mutual Ins. Division 2 Adm Fringe -9.45

04/29/2025 33302 Butta, Chris CTG  - Middleboro MAR 25 -18.90

04/29/2025 33303 Champagne, Cheryl CTG  - Lakeville MAR 25 -28.00

04/29/2025 33304 Dyer, Tuckerman Direct OMB Travel -56.00

04/29/2025 33305 Fafel, Mark CTG  -Pembroke MAR 25 -25.20

04/29/2025 33306 Freeman, MaryAnn CTG  -Pembroke MAR 25 -47.60

04/29/2025 33307 Graham, Robert CTG  - Lakeville MAR 25 -39.20

04/29/2025 33308 Grattan, Tom CTG  -Marshfield MAR 25 -17.50

04/29/2025 33309 Gregory, Katherine M. Direct OMB Travel -63.00

04/29/2025 33310 Hansen, Karen CTG  -Pembroke MAR 25 -156.10

04/29/2025 33311 Henry, Richard V Direct OMB Travel -427.00

04/29/2025 33312 Holmes, Janet H. CTG  -Plymouth MAR 25 -25.20

04/29/2025 33313 Houle, Paula CTG  - Lakeville MAR 25 -23.10

04/29/2025 33314 Infascelli, Elizabeth CTG  -Plymouth MAR 25 -19.60

04/29/2025 33315 Jackson, Annie Direct OMB Travel -4.20

04/29/2025 33316 James Walker CTG  -Marshfield MAR 25 -181.30

04/29/2025 33317 Jennifer Noel Direct OMB/ALR Travel -162.40

04/29/2025 33318 Kelly, Sandra CTG  -Pembroke MAR 25 -21.00

04/29/2025 33319 Li, Guoqiang (Vendor) Direct MADOT Travel -76.30

04/29/2025 33320 Melchin, John L. CTG  -Pembroke MAR 25 -252.00

04/29/2025 33321 Mowatt, Kyle Direct MADOT Travel 42 / Direct EDA Site Misc -52.50

04/29/2025 33322 Poole, Lindy CTG  - Marshfield MAR 25 -23.10

04/29/2025 33323 Quadient Finance USA Adm Postage -46.29

04/29/2025 33324 Quadient Leasing USA, Inc. Adm Equip Rental 00376162 -507.43

04/29/2025 33325 Regan, Joanne CTG  -Marshfield MAR 25 -211.40

04/29/2025 33326 Richard V Gallant CTG  - Middleboro MAR 25 -154.00

04/29/2025 33327 Rose, Laurie CTG  -Pembroke MAR 25 -17.50

COMBINED AP AND CASH TRANSFERS - APRIL 20205



04/29/2025 33328 Russell, Pamela Direct OMB Travel -63.84

04/29/2025 33329 Selig, Jane Direct OMB Travel -285.60

04/29/2025 33330 Silva, Patricia Direct OMB Travel -12.60

04/29/2025 33331 Simmons, Dale CTG  -Pembroke MAR 25 -253.00

04/29/2025 33332 Sore, Edward CTG  -Plymouth MAR 25 -32.20

04/29/2025 33333 Toshiba America Business Solutions Adm Equip Rental 9680478-001 -463.00

04/29/2025 33334 Wilson, Robert CTG  - Lakeville MAR 25 -37.80

04/29/2025 33335 Wright Technology Group, LLC Adm Tele -1,973.25

04/29/2025 33336 Matthew Dyer Direct MADOT Travel -175.91

04/29/2025 33337 OCPC/ROM Adm Rent -5,850.00

04/29/2025 33338 United Way of Greater Plymouth Adm Fringe -25.00

04/30/2025 33339 CDM Smith Inc. Direct EDA Water Study Consult -46,225.00

04/30/2025 33340 Desrosier, Jason V Direct DLTA Travel / Direct MBTA EB MHP Postage -412.04

04/30/2025 33341 Rhiannon Dugan Direct DLTA Travel / MAPC Flood 2 -26.60

04/30/2025 33342 Zygmunt, Joanne V Direct EDA Water Study -61.60

04/30/2025 33358 Middleboro COA AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -911.50

04/30/2025 33360 Plymouth COA AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -1,654.46

04/30/2025 33361 South Coastal Counties Legal Services AAA SubGr IIIB MAR 25 -10,416.00

04/30/2025 33362 Waldron, Mary V Adm Travel -238.00

04/30/2025 33364 Accurate Counts Direct MADOT Outsorced Traffic Counts - INV 11497 -920.00

04/30/2025 33365 BETA Group Inc. Direct SS4A Consult 14 -32,084.93

04/30/2025 33366 Verdantas Direct Brownfields Consult 131083 -76,637.29

04/11/2025 32912-2 Denis MacPhee Misc recon descrepancy (call in to pam tosi) -1.94

04/30/2025 EFT Positive Pay - Rockland Bank Adm Svc Chg -100.00

-225,861.45

OCPC 219,458.90

ROM 6402.55

225,861.45

PR Transfer 200,000.00

TOTAL AP & CASH TRANFERS APR 2025 425,861.45



Council Staff Report May 2025 
 
Administration, Fiscal and Communications 
Mary Waldron, Brenda Robinson, Megan Fournier, Sean Noel and intern Mackenzie Vianna 
 

• Mary attended a conference in Boston for ClimateTech where businesses, the Governor, 
Lt. Governor, and Mass Clean Tech CEO met.  Many conversations about the work of 
OCPC and its application for a Hub Tech. 

• Worked with Commissioner Hanley, and former Senator Marc Pacheco on the 
Transatlantic Conference.  Specific accolades to Megan Fournier for assisting in planning, 
Laurie Muncy, Rhiannon Dugan, Matt Dyer, and Jason Desrosier for participation in the 
resiliency panel.  

• Held interviews for a new staff member as the Administrative and Communications. Over 
35 applicants in a 2 week span, perform 6 video interviews and 3 in-person interviews. The 
hope is to hire and start date in early June.  

• Started end of year evaluations and manager/staff reviews 
• President Becky Coletta, Mary Waldron, and David Klein attended a meeting in Plymouth 

with Governor Healey, Lt. Governor Driscoll, Secretary of Health & Human Services Kate 
Walsh, and Secretary of Aging & Independence Robin Lipson to sign an Executive Order 
creating an age-friendly state for our older residents. 

• Megan met with the Comprehensive & Sustainability Department to develop standardized 
procedures for communications regarding projects with the region and our communities. 

• Held our monthly Manager’s Meeting 
• Celebrated many work anniversaries: Kyle Mowatt (16 years), Andrew Vidal (15 years), 

Shawn Bailey (12 years), Guoqiang Li (4 years), Richard Henry (3 years), Mackenzie 
Vianna (1 year). 

• Celebrating Jane Selig and Lila Burgess’ Retirement on Thursday, May 29th.  Current and 
old coworkers, council members and other colleagues that have played a role in their 
careers at OCPC will celebrate their years of service.   

• OCPC hosted an AARP training.  We offered our conference area for free, and Lila Burgess 
addressed the group.  
 

Grants Management 
Paul Umano 
 

• We are actively working with 10 of our communities to develop the FY2025 Regional 
Energy Planning Assistance (REPA) grant that will continue to allow us to provide direct 
technical assistance. Technical assistance includes the preparation of annual reports and 
competitive grant applications.  

• OCPC is actively applying for an SS4A Planning and Demonstration Grant to further 
expand safety countermeasures to be more inclusive of the safety needs of our 17 
communities.  

• OCPC is working with the Federal Highway Administration to begin work on our 
Prioritization Process Pilot Program (PPPP) grant to develop a prioritization process that 
is consistent with the strategic goals of the FHWA relative to the TIP, UPWP, LRTP, and 



SS4A Safety Action Plan. **Due to the ongoing Executive Orders, the post-award 
contracting process is on hold. 

• OCPC will be seeking to further our relations with the Federal Funds and Infrastructure 
Office (FFIO) to take advantage of matching funds legislation on behalf of our 
communities.   

• We will continue to strengthen ties with our State and Federal Delegation for more funding 
for our communities including the continued pursuit of Congressionally Directed Spending 
(CDS). OCPC has applied for CDS to develop a regional sewer study and policy plan.  

• OCPC is seeking to expand the use of the 501 c (3) through private and philanthropic 
organizations. As a staff we are developing a list of the top funding philanthropic 
organizations to identify and align with foundational priorities with the services we offer 
at OCPC. Organizations include the Barr Foundation, Boston Foundation, Kresge 
Foundation, Robert Woods Johnson Foundation and many more. 

 
AAA/Ombudsman   - DRAFT 

• David Klein, Lila Burgess, Donna Frett Hughes, Jane Selig, Richard Henry, and Sean 
Noel   

o Staffing Update: Donna Frett Hughes, started her OCPC tenure on May 12th.  
Donna will be assuming the AAA’s Long Term Care Ombudsman Program 
Director’s position when Lila Burgess retires from full-time work at the end of 
May (after 27 years at OCPC – following 3 years at South Shore Elder Services).   

o We are very happy to report that Lila has agreed to continue on as an Ombudsman 
in a part-time Ombudsman role covering a certain number of homes and acting as 
a resource for Donna and the program as a whole. 

o Jane Selig our current part-time Ombudsmen Assistant Director, is also retiring at 
the end of the month, after having served over 10 years as an OCPC - AAA 
Ombudsman.  

o The Ombudsman Monthly meeting was held at Lorenzos in Middleboro on 
May 6.  It was a great opportunity for the volunteers to say good-bye to Jane and 
to thank her for the past 10 years of service with the program. 

o Donna has hit the ground running! She is almost finished with the 9-part, three 
weeklong, Ombudsman Certification training.   

o We also want to extend a huge congratulations to Donna for successfully 
completing the nine-month Leadership Metro South program. The program began 
in September of 2024 and had its final event on May 21st, which was a Health & 
Human Services Day that included a panel discussion with local non-profit 
organization leaders and a bus tour visit to Father Bill’s new Mainspring facility 
and the  Friendly Food Pantry of Randolph, which is supported by the South Shore 
Food Bank.   



o Donna and Lila also attended a community event at Dorn Davis Senior Center in 
Brockton on May13th.  It was their annual summer kick off and a great opportunity 
to introduce the Ombudsman Program (Here’s Donna below). 

•  
• Susan Morrison, the Field Services Supervisor from E.O.A.I. was at OCPC on May 6 to 

conduct the Biannual Audit of the LTC Program-stay tuned for the results but the audit 
went well and there were no red flags. 

• The local Ombudsman Program Directors from Cape Cod and the Islands, Coastline, 
Bristol Elders, South Shore met for lunch on May 20th.Donna was introduced to this ‘Fab 
5” who meet quarterly.  The outgoing program director was thanked and given a beautiful 
bouquet of flowers. 

• We welcomed a newly certified volunteer from Lakeville, Laurel St-Pierre but sadly 
will be saying goodbye to Laurie Brundage who has served the residents well for the 
past 2 years.  The need for volunteers remains high and we are constantly brainstorming 
new ideas for recruiting more volunteers. 



• Assisted Living Residence (ALR) Ombudsman Program Director, Richard Henry 
continues to cover his 64 homes quarterly. Richard joins the LTC in regular brainstorming 
recruitment meetings. 
 
From Lila: “On a personal note, it has been an absolute honor and pleasure to represent 
Old Colony Planning Council as the LTC Ombudsman Program Director for the past 27 
years-where did they go!! I will assist Donna through the transition with the goal of 
ensuring this program remains strong.” 
 

• Other recent AAA Activity:  
• On May 2, Sean Noel and David Klein attended the inaugural Taking People Places 

(TPP) annual meeting at the Duxbury Free Library with guest speaker, MassDOT State 
Mobility Grant Manager – Rachel Fichtenbaum. TPP has provided thousands of subsidized 
Lyft rides to clients of 14 non-profits in the greater Plymouth region, including older adults, 
individuals with disabilities, and hospital and treatment patients.   

• On May 8th, David, along with OCPC Executive Director, Mary Waldron and Council 
President Becky Coletta, attended Governor Healey’s Executive Order signing in honor 
of the release of the State Plan on Aging at the Plymouth Center for Active Living, along 
with OCPC Executive Director Mary Waldron and Council President Becky Coletta.  

• News/Updates from Mass Aging Access:    
• Federal SNAP funding in danger: Under cuts proposed by the House Agriculture 

Committee - Supplemental Nutrition funding, commonly known as SNAP (and previously: 
Food Stamps) would be severely cut, harming millions of households – including 1 in 6 
MA residents. In a May 15th press release, Governor Healey called on Congress to reject 
federal SNAP cuts. Currently, the administrative costs are currently split 50% between the 
federal and state governments.  Proposed changes would adjust the state portion to 75% of 
the annual costs, an increase of about $53 million to the Commonwealth. 

• More to come.... 
 

 
 
Comprehensive Planning & Sustainability 
Laurie Muncy, Jason Desrosier, Rhiannon Dugan, Joanne Zygmunt, Alyssa Papantonakis, and 
Bill Napolitano 

Jason Desrosier continues to assist the Town of Whitman in updating their Open Space and 
Recreation Plan (OSRP).  Three (3) sections of the plan are near completion (Sections 3, 4, and 
6), and he is coordinating with Rhiannon Dugan on Section 5 (Inventory of Lands of Conservation 
& Recreation Interest). Sections 1, 2, and 7 are currently being drafted, and he will be working 
with the OSRP Steering Committee on Sections 8 (Goals and Objectives) and 9 (Seven-Year 



Action Plan). To support the OSRP process, Jason has organized a series of walks through the 
significant open space and recreation amenities in Town (Hobart Meadow, Bear/Bare Meadow, 
Flaherty Trail, Town Forest, and Peat Hole – members of the Conservation Commission will be 
joining these walks to identify opportunities for improvement and further conservation efforts. As 
of the writing of this report, Peat Hole, Town Forest, and Flaherty Trail have been completed and 
have been useful to determine which sites have opportunities (Town Forest, Flaherty Trail) and 
which do not (Peat Hole). Jason and members of the OSRPSC will be tabling at Whitman Day 
in the Park (Whitman Town Park 6/14 10am – 4pm) to get feedback on potential locations 
for a skate/bike park, dedicated dog park, and other open space/recreation opportunities. A 
public meeting is scheduled for July, and a formal comment period on the final OSRP will be held 
before the plan is submitted to the state later this fall.   

Jason is supporting the Town of Abington in updating its Housing Production Plan (HPP). 
Although fairly early in the process, Jason has worked with Laurie on updating the maps and tables 
for the HPP update, just launched a public survey (accepting responses until mid-July), and met 
with the Abington Affordable Housing Trust to discuss housing goals and priorities for the next 
five (5) years.   

The Regional Housing Strategy (RHS) for Avon, Brockton, and Stoughton is in process, with 
the Needs Assessment nearly complete – an Analysis of Fair Housing (an accompaniment to the 
Needs Assessment is being drafted. Jason and Rhiannon hosted a successful Housing Summit, 
where planning staff from each of the three participating municipalities were invited to hear 
findings from the initial research and data collection process and discuss collective housing 
strengths, weaknesses, challenges, and opportunities. The group also identified six (6) housing 
goals for the RHS (Housing Production & Choice, Housing Location, Housing Stability & 
Subsidized Housing, Housing Security, Fair Housing & Engagement, and Funding & 
Partnerships) - a Strategies Summit (an interactive workshop where a summary of the Needs 
Assessment will be presented to municipal stakeholders and elected officials as well as reviewing 
the six goals and identifying strategies for each goal). The Strategies Summit is scheduled for 
Monday, June 16th 6-7:30pm at Stoughton Town Hall.  A robust public engagement process is 
also planned for this effort, including a Vision and Goals survey, various interactive workshops 
and visioning sessions, and a public comment period before the plan is finalized.   

Jason has recently been invited to support the Town of Whitman with identifying a 40R and/or 
40Y zoning overlay district for the town. A 40R (Smart Growth) District would allow multi-
family zoning and provide a direct payment from the state after adopting the district (“Zoning 
Incentive Payment:” $10,000 to $600,000 based on housing capacity) and “Density Bonus 
Payments” (Additional payments based on each new unit of housing built within the 40R district). 
Communities with 40R districts also have priority status for several state grants (such as 
MassWorks). 40Y refers to the Starter Home Zoning District Program, which was created under 
the 2016 Economic Development Act. It’s designed to help cities and towns encourage the 



production of smaller, more affordable single-family homes, especially for first-time buyers, 
without the affordability requirements of 40R.  

Bill Napolitano continues to advise the Natural Resources Trust of Bridgewater and partners on 
developing Old State Farm Trail, a new 1.8-mile trail. East and West Bridgewater are engaged 
and interested in connecting their communities through trails in a ‘Bridging the Bridgewaters’ 
initiative.  

Joanne’s work on Duxbury’s Open Space and Recreation Plan continues, developing goals and 
strategies and preparing for the first public workshop.      

Joanne’s support for Phase 2 of Duxbury’s Age- and Dementia-friendly Action Plan has been 
completed. The town was provided with the results of six focus groups.  

Joanne is working on a new contract with Kingston to develop their Age- and Dementia-friendly 
Action Plan, funded through a Community Compact grant. The town is currently preparing to 
form a committee to lead the project.   

Joanne, Bill, and Don continue working on the Regional Water Plan, which is on track for 
completion by May. The plan is being revised for presentation to the Steering Committee for 
review. Dates for public comment sessions have been released.   

In partnership with DCR and MAPC, Rhiannon is working on the Brockton Flood Resilience 
Pilot Project, with Brockton serving as a pilot community for a new state initiative to address 
Flooding Concerns and climate impacts that impact EJ Communities on a grander scale than 
their counterparts. Three community liaisons were hired to meet with community members. Staff 
and liaisons tabled on Earth Day at Massasoit Community College. They held a public hearing 
session at Brockton Community Access on Earth Day to discuss the impacts of flooding on 
homeowners and renters and to view Nature-Based Solutions that Brockton can implement to 
address the flooding, research already completed.  

Rhiannon continues to assist with updating Abington’s OSRP. Data collection chapters 3, 4, and 
5 are completed. Rhiannon will continue to meet with relevant boards and committees to address 
the town’s goals over the next 10 years. Staff are working together to address the updated open 
space and recreation plan workbook moving forward.   

Alongside Wildlands and Paul Umano staff, Rhiannon drafted and submitted a SWIG grant to 
create Nature-Based Solutions to address concerns within D.W. Field Park as part of OCPC’s 
ongoing commitment to the D.W. Field Park Initiative. 

 

 

Community Septic Management Program 
Shawn Bailey 



 
• Town of Avon 

o The Town has received the first wave of funds. 
o Application packages have been sent to four homeowners; two have filled out them. 

Awaiting engineering proposals to get projects initiated. 
• Town of Cohasset 

o Provided application package to one homeowner – awaiting the return of the 
application. 

o The Town has $50,000 remaining to draw down from their current loan. The Town 
has decided to postpone applying for a new loan due to lack of homeowners seeking 
a loan. 

• Town of Hanson 
o Eleven homeowners have received applications. 

• Town of Kingston 
o Four homeowners have received applications, and one additional homeowner is on 

the waiting list. 
o Town is in the process of getting all approvals from the Massachusetts Clean Water 

Trust for their new loan – awaiting final authorizations. 
• Town of Stoughton 

o Three open projects – one in the engineering stage and two in the installation stage. 
o Twelve homeowners are on the waiting list. 
o The Town has acquired the remaining funds of their current loan – they have put in 

a Town Meeting warrant article for the spring 2025 Town Meeting to borrow 
another loan from the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust. 

 
Economic Development 
Don Sullivan and Nicholas Giaquinto  

• Work on the EDA Regional Water Study has been completed. Two public hearings were 
held in Brockton and Plymouth to obtain final input and comment. Following the project 
completion OCPC will begin establishment of a formalized Water Resources Committee 
to initiate implementation of the plan (see Comprehensive Planning for more details).    

• OCPC held a recent advisory committee for EPA Brownfields Site Assessment Program. 
Work continues on the 2nd yr effort with phase I&II site assessments. Potential 
redevelopment planning and cleanup is emerging in Hanson, Kingston and Whitman. Other 
efforts continue in Easton as well as.  

• Work is ongoing in East Bridgewater under the Business Assistance Program. Currently 
in the early stages of development on the Economic Development/Business Assistance 
page for the town. Page to be polluted with data including business resource guide, priority 
sites, businesses, goals/objectives and branding and marketing.     

• The EDA East Bridgewater Sewer Line Construction Project is out for bid. Bids are 
due at the end of the month with construction expected to commence in June.  



• OCPC work to be finalized early June on the EDA Regional Commercial & Industrial 
Site Inventory Project. Currently conducting outreach to communities for input on data 
and other information associated with more than 20 industrial/business parks and industrial 
zones throughout the district. OCPC is developing a project page on web site that will 
house commercial and industrial site matrix covering various categories or fields of 
information location, infrastructure, access, acres, SF development, #industries &jobs, and 
a series of projections as well as environmental considerations.     

• EDA Plymouth Holtec Master Plan is on schedule for completion in July. The planning 
effort provided a robust public outreach effort and resulted in the development of three 
conceptual development visions for sites. These development scenarios are under review 
and will be finalized in the comings week resulting in a preferred development concept.  

• EDA Planning Grant and CEDS 2025-2030 Update. These efforts are integrated with 
the next EDA Annual Planning Grant application which will be delayed under the new 
Administration. The CEDS update is currently being prepared as a draft document and will 
be completed sometime in June    

• Avon EDA Sewer line Design & Engineering Project is in the hands of the Secretary of 
commerce directly. Awaiting award on $2.5ML project attracting 1.2 ML sq of 
development space and 1,500 new jobs following design. 

• EDA application in process on Easton Sewer Line Design & Engineering Project expect 
submittal late June up to $3ML total project cost. EDA request is $1.5ML 

• EDA application submittal scheduled early June for a Regional Wastewater Sewer Study, 
a sister effort to the water plan recently completed. Total project cost estimated at $1.25ML  

• Additional EDA and other economic development opportunities in Avon, Hanson, 
Hanover, Kingston and Whitman  

 
 
Geographic Information Systems 
Andrew Vidal, Mackenzie Vianna, Rhiannon Dugan, and Guoqiang Li 
This month, the GIS Department worked on the development of a Commercial & Industrial Site 
Inventory web tool, an interactive map of our communities with web pages for each industrial park 
or area.  

GIS staff also compiled a listing of areas within our region that had experienced flooding at some 
point, and contributed them to a statewide effort undertaken by MARPA. 

For the upcoming pavement data collection, GIS staff began preparing the road inventory dataset 
so that the GIS line work more accurately reflects conditions during collection. 

GIS staff also assisted other state Area Agencies on Aging by creating service area maps using the 
same template as our own.  

As the fiscal year comes to a close soon, the GIS manager reviewed our software needs and 
recommended a software renewal plan for the upcoming year which will be a lower cost than last 
year. 

 



Transportation 
Charles Kilmer, Shawn Bailey, Matt Dyer, Ray Guarino, Guoqiang Li, Bill McNulty, Kyle 
Mowatt, Andrew Vidal 
 

• Dan Salvucci, Whitman OCPC Alternate, and Whitman Representative to the MBTA 
Advisory Board, inquired to the MBTA about the feasibility of having bicycle and 
pedestrian accommodations along the MBTA Commuter Rail Right of Way. The MBTA 
will consider the feasibility and report back at a future meeting of the MBTA Advisory 
Board. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Brockton Area Transit Authority Advisory Board 
Meeting on May 1, 2025. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Road Safety Audit - Commerce Way, Colony Place 
and Vicinity in Plymouth on May 1, 2025. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Old Colony Joint Transportation Committee 
(JTC) Meeting on May 1, 2025. During the meeting, the JTC reviewed and approved the 
FFY 2025-2029 Transportation Improvement Program Amendment 4 which moves 
Brockton Project - Centre Street at Plymouth Street Intersection Improvements from FFY 
2025 to FFY 2026. Also, at the meeting, BETA Group provided a presentation on the Draft 
Safe Streets for All (SS4A) Vision Zero Action Plan, and staff provided FFY 2025-2029 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) project updates, discussed the FFY 2026-2023 
TIP, Bay State Bike Month - May 2025, and the 2024 Measures of Effectiveness (MOE) 
Report. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Southeast New England Program Network 
(SNEP) Network Stormwater Planning Series Sessions on May 5, 2025. 

• Staff attended and participated in the OCPC/ MassDOT-Office of Transportation 
Planning Check-In Meetings on May 5, 2025 and May 19, 2025. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Old Colony MPO Certification Review Action 
Plan Quarter 6 Update Meeting with the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) on 
May 6, 2025. 

• Staff attended and participated in the 2025 MassDOT Transportation Innovation 
Conference in Worcester on May 6, 2025 and May 7, 2025. Each year, the conference 
provides an important opportunity for transportation practitioners to share knowledge, 
sponsor peer-to-peer learning, and collaborate on issues of mutual interest. Conference 
participants will have the opportunity to discuss the advantages and challenges associated 
with the innovative methods and technologies being presented. 

• Staff attended and participated in the MassTrails - Regional Planning Agencies -  Trails 
Database Check in + Hub Site Review on May 8, 2025. The database is a work-in-
progress, but it strives toward providing a comprehensive picture of the trails, shared use 
paths, and other bike/pedestrian facilities that form our statewide trails network—with a 



focus on making this data available for exploration and analysis by planners, advocates, 
and state and local decision makers. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Transportation Program Managers (TMG) 
Meeting on May 13, 2025. This statewide group consists of representatives from Regional 
Planning Agencies, MassDOT, MBTA, Federal Highway Administration, and Federal 
Transit Administration. 

• Staff attended and participated in the MA MPOs Climate Resilience Working Group 
Meeting on May 13, 2025. Presentation and discussion included Old Colony TIP 
Transportation Evaluation Criteria, Updates and Upcoming Grants, and Professional 
Development Opportunities 

• Staff attended and participated in the Brockton Area Transit Authority Triennial 
Review on May 14, 2025. The Triennial Review is one of the Federal Transit 
Administration’s management tools for examining recipient performance and adherence to 
current requirements and policies. Mandated by Congress in 1982, the Triennial Review 
occurs once every three years. 

• Staff attended and participated in the MassHire - Construction Career Day on May 14, 
2025. Staff provided information on planning activities such as traffic counting and culvert 
assessments, and had the OCPC Van on display. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Data Users Group (DUG) Meeting. The meeting 
focused on Updating Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZs) and Local Vulnerable Road User 
(VRU) Assessments on May 14, 2025. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Making Rural Roads Safe for All (FHWA 
Roadway Safety Webinar Series) on May 14, 2025. The webinar provided strategies, 
tools, and resources to: 1. Implement low-cost safety improvements on rural roads; 2. 
Conduct a Road Safety Audit on rural roads; 3. Develop State-local partnerships to 
accelerate project delivery to improve road safety; and 4. Identify available programs and 
resources to improve safety and transit services in rural communities. 

• Staff attended and participated in the RPA/ MassDOT Pavement Management 
Discussion May 15, 2025. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Old Colony Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(MPO) Meeting on May 20, 2025. During the meeting, the MPO reviewed and approved 
the FFY 2025-2029 TIP Amendment 4, which moves the Brockton - Route 123 at 
Plymouth Street Intersection Project from FFY 2025 to FFY 2026, and FFY 2025-2029 
TIP Adjustment 4 (which Adds Arc of Greater Brockton, Brockton Area Transit, and 
South Shore Community Action Council - Community Transit Grant Program/ 5310 
Projects, and makes cost adjustments to six BAT projects). The MPO also reviewed and 
approved the Draft FFY 2026-2030 TIP and Draft Safe Streets for All (SS4A) Action. 
The Draft TIP includes almost $300 million for 17 Road Projects and 4 Bridge Projects, 
and $78.3 Million for Brockton Area Transit Authority (BAT) capital projects and 



operational assistance. Additionally, the MPO reviewed and released the Draft FFY 2026 
Unified Planning Work Program to a 21-day public review and comment period. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Old Colony Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee (BPAC) Meeting on May 21, 2025. Guest speakers included Alexis Hosea-
Abbott, MassBike, and Sebastien St. Hubert, who discussed his upcoming World Record 
Attempt - Bike Ride from Boston to New York City. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Help Shape Safer Streets: Brockton Walk Audit 
(Montello Area - Spark Street) with WalkMassachusetts on May 21, 2025. This is the 
first of four walk audits being led by WalkMassachusetts in Brockton this year. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Avon - Route 28, Spring Street and Harrison 
Boulevard Design Public Hearing (611979) on May 21, 2025. The project is programmed 
in FFY 2027, in the amount of $7,644,110, in the FFY 2026-2030 Old Colony 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

• Staff attended and participated in the MA Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Board 
Meeting on May 28, 2025. The Massachusetts Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Board 
serves an advisory role in advancing bicycle and pedestrian transportation for MassDOT 
and other State Agencies. The Massachusetts Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Board was 
established by law on August 10, 2004. 

• Staff attended and participated in the Brockton Area Transit Authority Advisory Board 
Meeting on May 29, 2025. 

• Staff and BETA Group continued development of a Safe Street for All (SS4A) Regional 
Action Plan. The Regional Safety Action Plan allows for systematic analysis and a set of 
solutions to tackle the root causes of all crashes, with an emphasis on those involving non-
motorists. The Regional Action Plan considers a range of low-cost, high-impact strategies 
that can be deployed across the region. Completing the Action Plan allows the region’s 
communities to be eligible for SS4A Implementation Grants to leverage federal funding to 
implement strategies. With the SS4A Regional Action Plan under development, 
communities can apply for demonstration grants. On May 20, 2025, the Old Colony MPO 
endorsed the Draft SS4A Action Plan. OCPC and BETA Group will now work to finalize 
the Action, and complete the contract work by June 30, 2025. 

• Staff completed the Congress Street at Taylor Street Transportation Study 
(Pembroke). The study assessed existing conditions and provided a safety assessment and 
an all-way stop analysis of the intersection. The study was requested by Deputy Police 
Chief Wendy Lapierre, Pembroke. 

• Staff commenced development of the Old Plymouth Street (Halifax) Transportation 
Study. The study will assess current volumes, vehicle speeds, and vehicle type, and inform 
the potential for a heavy commercial vehicle exclusion. The study was requested by Steve 
Hayward, Highway Surveyor, Halifax. 

• Staff implemented several activities and events for Baystate Bike Month in May. Events 
included: Pedal Through Time at Borderland State Park (May 3), Untold Brewing in 
Plymouth Meet and Group Rides (May 10), and Bike with Brockton Area Transit Day 



(May 15). Old Colony Planning Council’s 2025 Bike Month festivities brought together 
cyclists, community leaders, and local businesses for a series of engaging events that 
celebrated active transportation and regional pride. With rides that ranged from scenic park 
tours to street-savvy road routes, the month-long celebration proved that biking can be both 
fun and impactful. The highlight of Bike Month was the “Bikes and Brews” event on 
May 10th in Plymouth, hosted in partnership with Untold Brewing and the Untold Cycle 
Club. The event welcomed over 60 riders who chose from three guided routes — 24.5 
miles, 13.5 miles, and 3 miles - designed to build confidence riding on local roads and 
encourage participation in group rides. Local business partners made the day even more 
special: Serious Cycles provided free on-site rider support, Jefes Food Truck served up 
mouthwatering tacos and savory treats, and Untold Brewing released a limited-edition 
session brew crafted just for the occasion. The event highlighted the power of local 
partnerships in promoting safe, social cycling experiences. 

• Staff continued development of the Routes 3A Corridor Study in Plymouth. The Study 
includes a complete assessment of existing conditions, including but not necessarily limited 
to, capacity and efficiency (main line and intersection levels of service) analysis, crash rate 
and severity analysis, vehicular speed and heavy vehicle traffic analysis, bicycle and 
pedestrian conditions, and transit efficiency. It is noted that the study area also includes 
Herring Pond Road extending to the Bourne Town Line. For more information, please visit: 
ROUTE 3A Corridor Study - Old Colony Planning 

• Staff continued development of the Routes 28 Corridor Study in Avon. The Study 
includes a complete assessment of existing conditions, including but not necessarily limited 
to, capacity and efficiency (main line and intersection levels of service) analysis, crash rate 
and severity analysis, vehicular speed and heavy vehicle traffic analysis, bicycle and 
pedestrian conditions, and transit efficiency. For more information, please visit: ROUTE 
28 Corridor Study - Old Colony Planning 

• Staff continued development of the Route 104 Corridor Study in Bridgewater. The 
Study includes a complete assessment of existing conditions, including but not necessarily 
limited to, capacity and efficiency (main line and intersection levels of service) analysis, 
crash rate and severity analysis, vehicular speed and heavy vehicle traffic analysis, bicycle 
and pedestrian conditions, and transit efficiency. For more information, please visit: 
ROUTE 104 Corridor Study - Old Colony Planning 

• Staff monitored MEPA Environmental Monitor and provided project summaries. 
• Staff prepared the FFY 2026-2023 Old Colony Transportation Improvement Program 

(TIP). The TIP serves as a prioritized listing of highway, bridge, and transit projects for 
implementation during the next five (5) federal fiscal years. Over the upcoming five years, 
the TIP provides the following funding: $300 Million - 17 Road Projects and 4 Bridge 
Projects; and $78.3 Million - Brockton Area Transit Authority (BAT) capital and 
operational assistance. The Old Colony MPO endorsed the FFY 2026-2023 Old Colony 
TIP at their May 20, 2025 meeting. 

https://oldcolonyplanning.org/rt3acorridor/
https://oldcolonyplanning.org/rt28corridor/
https://oldcolonyplanning.org/rt28corridor/
https://oldcolonyplanning.org/rt104corridor/


• Staff prepared the Draft FFY 2026 Old Colony Unified Planning Work Program 
(UPWP). The Unified Planning Work Program is an annual statement of work identifying 
the planning priorities and activities to be carried out within a metropolitan planning area. 
Additionally, the UPWP includes a description of the planning work and resulting products, 
who will perform the work, time frames for completing the work, the cost of the work, and 
the source(s) of funds. The budget of the Draft FFY 2026 Unified Planning Work Program 
is $1,300,913. 

 



 
 

APRIL 13, 2025, 12:00 PM 

MINUTES: 
Meeting Recording: https://youtu.be/Vhl0wfjnzo0 

 
1. Roll Call: Steven Santeusanio, Lee Hartmann, Sandy Wright, Becky Coletta 

a. OCPC Staff: Mary Waldron, Charles Kilmer, Megan Fournier, Brenda 
Robinson 

2. February 2025 Meeting Minutes: Unanimous Approval 
3. Review of Personnel Handbook for Amendments: Unanimous Approval 

• Is it possible to have performance reviews with salary increases before open 
enrollment? This would be helpful with budgeting and selecting the right 
coverage.   
o No, understand the question but timing does not work with fiscal year.   

• Could we consider partially subsidizing public transportation costs? Now that 
SCR is active, could staff opt for partially subsidized public transportation costs 
in replacement of the partially subsidized Lincoln Lot parking costs?  
• Parking program was put in for the purpose of safety of staff members who were 

parking in lots that were unsecure. Parking is paid in full from OCPC directly to the 
Parking Authority (with employees contributing through payroll deduction). OCPC 
currently subsidizes ~$9,000/yr for 17 employees.  

• With hybrid work, we are already encouraging actions to reduce carbon footprint with 
staff only required to be in the physical office twice a week.   

  
• At times, we work outside of our regular hours, and while we sometimes try to 

“flex” that time within the same week, it's not always feasible. In many cases, I still 
find myself needing to work during those supposed flex hours. Having comp time 
reflected on our paychecks could help ensure that extra hours are acknowledged  
• As salaried employees, we are not allowed to provide “comp time”. If working during 

flex hours/schedule, employees should work with their manager to amend the hours/ 
schedule.  

• We have an open discussion during manager meetings and staff retreats for all 
handbook items.  

  
• GIC Benefit rules for membership – needs to be updated in personnel handbook  

• Example, interns and temporary, when do we consider them to be temporary vs. 
permanent part-time prior to the end of probationary period. This is important to 
evaluate when to update their contributions to benefits plans. (looking at social 
security contributions)  

  
• Retirement rules for employees coming back to work for OCPC. Page 48  

• Onus on employee to monitor number of hours.  
• Add in terminology to include a “rate of pay” discussion upon return  

o “if the employer and employee mutually decides to return to OCPC part-time, a 
new terms of employment will be established.”  

 
 
 

 

https://youtu.be/Vhl0wfjnzo0


  
 
4. Committee adjourned into an executive session Unanimous Approval 

• A review of the merit recommendations for the FY26 proposed budget and discussion by 
members of the Personnel Committee. 

• Lee Hartmann made a motion to approve the recommendations and seconded by Becky 
Coletta.  Unanimous Approval 

• Lee Hartmann made a motion to adjourn the Executive Session and back to the 
Personnel Committee, seconded by Sandra Wright.  Unanimous Approval 

5. Steven Santeusanio asked if there were any other business, with none, a motion was then 
made by Sandra Wright to adjourn, seconded by Lee Hartmann 

 
6. Meeting Adjourned 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Draft FFY 2026 Old Colony UPWP, May 20, 2025.pdf
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	INTRODUCTION
	TASK 1000 - MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT OF THE PLANNING PROCESS AND CERTIFICATIONACTIVITIES
	TASK 2000 - DATA RECONNAISSANCE, ACQUISITION, AND ANALYSIS ACTIVITIES
	TASK 3000 - SHORT- AND LONG-RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ACTIVITIES
	TASK 4000 - OTHER TRANSPORTATION TECHNICAL ACTIVITIES, PLANNING STAFF, FUNDINGSOURCES, BUDGETS, AND TASKS
	APPENDIX A - FFY 2026 OLD COLONY UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM ENDORSEMENT
	APPENDIX B - 23 CFR PART 450 SUBPART C §450.336 - SELF CERTIFICATIONS AND FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS ENDORSEMENT
	APPENDIX C - OTHER OLD COLONY PLANNING COUNCIL FUNDING SOURCES AND OTHER PLANNING STUDIES
	APPENDIX D - GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ACRONYMS
	APPENDIX E - PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD AND PUBLIC COMMENTS

	Financial Packet - Regular Financials APR 2025.pdf
	1 STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - APR 2025
	2 CASH POSITION  - APR 2025
	3 BUDGET RESOURCES - APR 2025
	4 AAA - APR 2025
	5 ROM CHECKING SPREADSHEET - APR 24
	6-1 BUDGET EXPENSES APR FY25
	6-2 BUDGET INCOME APR FY25 5.15.25
	6-3 BUDGET PASS-THRU MAR FY25
	7 AP APR 2025




